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Our Corporate Mission

ission is 10 be a world-class leader in help-
ing people communicate using information networks and services.
NYNEX is a global communications and media corporation that

provides a full range of services in the northeastern United States

and high-growth markets around the world, including the United

Kingdom, Thailand, Gibraltar, Greece, Indon
Poland, Slovakia and the (Czech Republic. NYNEX is a leader in
telecommunications, wirefree communications, directory publish-

ing and video entertainmént and information services.




NYNEX in 1995: Our story
for the year is a positive one: New
services. More customers. Exciting
alliances. Strong financial results.
Significant growth. And a solid
platform for growth for the years

to come....
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¥ 45 a result of the formatian of the Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mobile cellular partnership in
the third quarter of 1995, cellular resilts are now reported on an aquity basis rather
than a consolidated basis. Revenues adjusted to permit comparison. For 1995,
revenues are alzo adjusted for a change in presentation of gross receiplts tax.
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Financial .Highlights

December 31,
{I:Cmillions. except per share data and total employees) 1995 1594 1993
Operating Data .
Operating Revenues $ 13,407 $ 13,307 $ 13,408
Earnings (Loss) before Extraordinary Item and

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle $ 1,069 g 793 3 (272
Extraordinary Item for the Discontinuance of Regulatory

Accounting Principles, Net of Taxes $ (2,919) — —
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

for Postemployment Benefits, Net of Taxes — — (122)
Net Income (Loss) $ (1,850) $ 793 $ (394
Per Share Data
Earnings (Loss) before Extraordinary Item and

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle $ 250 $ 1.89 $ (.66
Extraordinary Item $ (6.84) — —
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle — — $ (29
Earnings (Loss) $ (434 $ 1.89 $ (95)
Dividends $ 236 $ 236 $ 236
Book Value $ 1406 $ 2026 $ 2028
Other Data
Total Assets $ 26,220 $ 30,068 $ 29,458
Stockholders' Equity % 6,079 ‘ $ 8,581 $ 8416
Capital Expenditures* $ 3,188 | $ 3012 $ 2,717
Network Access Lines in Service 17.1 16.6 16.0
Total Employees 63,800 ‘ 70,600 76,200
1995 results inctude un extranrclinary charge of $2.9 billion, ot $6.84 * Exeludes udditions under vupital lrase obligations und, prior to the
per share, for discontinuance of accounting under Staternent 71 and discontinuance of Statement 71, the equity cumpaonent of
a net.charge of $327.0 million, or $0.77 per share, for the enhanced allowasce for funds used during construction,

pension offer and non-recurring gains and charges, 1994 results
include after-tax charges for the enhunced pension offer of $452.8
million, or $1.08 per share. 1993 results include after-tux charges of
$1.6 billior, or $3.95 per share, for business restructuning and other
charges, primarily related to efforts to redesign operations and to
force reduction programs.
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In 1995, NYNEX made excellent progress on the
road to becoming a global provider of communi-
cations, entertainment and information products
and services. Our growth — and our strong
financial results — were fueled by some exciting
new customer initiatives, key strategic
wins, a strong management team and an
energized, committed work force. I'm

pleased to report the following:

+ Net income for the year was up 12.1
percent to $1.4 billion, or $3.27 per
share, and included three straight quar-
ters of double-digit earnings growth.
These figures are adjusted for certain

non-recurring items for 1994 and 1995™

» Consolidated revenues (which don't
include revenues from our Bell Atlantic
NYNEX Mobile joint venture) were

up 3.8 percent to $13.1 billion —

NYNEX CableComme, TelecomAsia and

Chibraltar NYNEX Communicatians Lid,

driven by strong volume growth across

all businesses.

#41 995 resulis exchude an extraordinary charge of $2.9 billiin. or
$6.84 per share, for discontnuance of aecounting under Stateament
71 and a nat charge of $327.0 million, or $0.77 per share, lor the
cobaneed peusion offer end non-recurring gains and charges, 14994
results exclude aftor-tax charges for the enhanced pension aller of
$432.8 million, or $1.08 per share,

lvan Seidenberg

Chatrman and
Chigf Executive Officer

+ Consolidated operating expenses rose (.9

percent over 1994 to $10.3 billion. This expense
growth — significantly lower than our revenue |
growth - was driven by across-the-board
productivity gains. The combination of strong

revenue growth and productivity gains expanded

operating margins, which rose 2.2 percentage

points in 1995 to 21.3 percent.

+ The number of access lines in use worldwide
rose by more than a million in 1995, to about
18 million. In addition to 17.1 million lines in
the Northeast, that includes some 246,800
telecommunications lines for United Kingdom-
based NYNEX CableComms; 710,000 lines for
TelecomAsia, our strategic alliance to expand
Bangkok's telephone network; and 15,800 lines

for our Gibraltar partnership.

We're building share owner value with new
choices and freedoms, and a renewed focus on
serving our existing customers, developing new
markets domestically and expanding our

markets glabally.
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The new market freedoms spelled outin

the national legislation complement the
state regulatory breakthroughs we’ve
already achieved.

]New Choices, New Freedoms more efficiently. In fact, NYNEX already is using

its new pricing flexibility to introduce a number of
A Platform for Growth . . .
_ . popular optional calling plans for busi-
The communications reform bill signed into law 1 resid ) Northeast Access Lines
ness and residence customers.
by President Clinton in February 1996 helps us per Telecommunications

Employee
grow to our full potential — and lets us take .
_ |Serving Our Customers

advantage of new freedoms to provide a range of 500
services that include new communications, infor-  Today, our customers want more flexibility
mation and entertainment choices. and control. We're meeting the “chal- 28p

lenge of choice” through aggressive
We intend to move aggressively to meet all the marketing, impressive new services anda 20
requirements that will enable us to offer long- continued focus on quality and customer .

distance services to our current customers and to . .
satisfaction. Qur strategy — to meet cus-

new customers - across the nation and around : . : |
tomer requirements —- is reaping rewards: 220

the globe. And we are poised to offer a full array

of wireline and wirefree services - - voice, data, * NYNEX's core telecommunications busi- 200 a a

information and entertainment — in packages ness in the Northeast experienced record #1192 95 94 95
tailored to meet customers’ individual needs. growth last year. Access lines were up 3.4

percent over 1994. And access usage was up
We worked hard for this legislation, and so did

8.6 percent,
many of you. Thanks for your letters and calls to
Congress in support of telecommunications » Sales of our value-added services — such as
reform. You helped make a difference in a tough ~ NYNEX PhoneSmart® Services, NYNEX Voice
legislative battle, Messaging Service and NYNEX VoiceDialingsM

Service (developed by NYNEX Science &

The new market freedoms spelled out in the Technology, Inc., our leading-edge research and

national legislation complement the state regulatory development lab) — grew more than 40 percent

breakthroughs we've already achieved. With The number of 1SDN lines in service nearly dou-

“incentive regulation” plans approved in New bled. to more than 90.000

York, Massachusetts and Maine, we've brought the
regulation of more than 95 percent of our telecom-  « Private line revenues, led by sales of NYNEX
munications operations into line with marketplace Enterprise Services, rose more than 3 percent in

realities. These plans provide the right framework 1995, marking the first vear of growth for spe-

for growth - and provide an incentive to operate
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Cellular Customers
{in thousands)
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*1995 figure reflects the Formation of a
joint venture with Bell Atlaniic's wire-

#

less business,

cialized business services since the mid-1980s.
And Centrex lines were up 14.5 percent, to a

total of 1.4 million lines in service.

* We also introduced iMPOWER, our new strate-
gic network vision. Working with IBM and a host
of other technology companies, we're creating an
information infrastructure — the NYNEX Business
Network Architecture  to provide voice,

data, image, video and multimedia ser-

vices to knowledge workers,

Serving customers better with quality

service and more cheice is the reason

.

we continue to invest $2.4 billion annu-
ally in our Northeast wireline network
- bulding an all-digital network that
helps people communicate via voice,

data or video.

B It’s why we continue to butld and nur-

ture multilingual sales channels to tap

92 9% 94 95+

into high-growth ethnic markets.

And it's why we're reinventing our busi-
ness around customers. Service on the
customer's schedule will be the order of the day,
along with simplified, more flexible bill-paying
options, proactive network maintenance and
more. Our process re-engineering initiatives are
focused on improving the quality of our

service. And NYNEX will be able to handle
increased demand for new products and services

more efficiently than ever.

Serving customers better with quality
service and more choice is the reason we
continue to invest $2.4 billion annually
in our Northeast wireline network.

When our re-engineering initiatives are completed,
some 50 megacenters will be in place — down
from about 400 service centers in 1993. And about
17,000 people will have left the payroll through

our special pension enhancement offer.

|Developing New Markets Domestically

At NYNEX, the world of communications is a
wuorld of wireline and wirefree solutions ... voice,
video and data services ... information and enter-
tainment. As we enter new lines of business,
we're focused on increasing revenue from existing

customers and building our customer base:

« In 1995, Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mobile Commu-
nications enjoyed 43 percent customer growth —
adding more than 1 million new customers
through innovative value-priced offerings such as
TalkAlong™ and MobileReach*roaming.
MobileReach enables the partnership's 3.4 million
customers to take advantage of the single largest
cellular service territory in the United States,

stretching from Maine to South Carclina.

*» T'o establish a national presence in the wirefree
marketplace, Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mgbile,
along with the AirTouch/U § WEST cellular
partnership, invested $1 billien in personal com-
munications services (PCS) licenses. We'll begin
deploying PCS in 1996. When combined with
existing cellular services, the potential market for

this wirefree alliance is 165 million customers.
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» Qur TELE-TV joint venture with Bell Atlantic
and Pacific Telesis is getting ready to entertain
you, delivering nationally branded entertainment
and information services over our networks. As
NYNEX and its partners work to deploy full-
service broadband networks, we plan to begin
offering TELE-TV service later this year through
our investment in CAI Wireless. This investment
will give us the ability to reach up to 7 million
NYNEX customers with digital wireless cable

technology.

+ At NYNEX Information Resources Company —
the premier directory publisher in the Northeast
— stronger sales and process improvements led
to 5.4 percent revenue growth, double the growth
rate of 1994. Information Resources introduced
the NYNEX Interactive Yellow Pages on the
World Wide Web (http:#/www.niyp.com} —

a service that enables individuals to access the
names, addresses and phone numbers of 16.5

million businesses throughout the United States.

|[Expanding Our Markets Globally

NYNEX CableComms, the second largest cable TV
and telecommunications operator in the United
Kingdom, now passes 1.2 million of 2.7 million
homes in 16 franchise areas. In 1995, the number
of residence telecommunications lines grew

135 percent, business phone lines jumped 168 per-
cent and the number of cable TV customers grew

61 percent. CableComms revenue growth more

than doubled in 1995. In June 1995, we completed
an initial public offering of CableComms stock,

raising more than $600 million.

NYNEX CableComms
NYNEX continues to work with global Subscribers® '
{in thousands) :
partners in Europe and the Asia/Pacific
region to pursue high-growth opportu-
500

nities overseas capitalizing on our
strength in building and managing com-  44g

plex telecommunications networks:

» Through TelecomAsia, our strategic
alliance with the CP Group, we've built
1.56 million lines of a 2 million-line net-
work in Bangkok, Thailand. We also
received government approval to build

an additional 600,000 lines. UTV, a 7

92 93 94 95

TelecomAsia subsidiary, now offers

*Includes subscribers for residence and
business telecommunications services and
cable TV, Some customers subscribe to
miore than one service.

cable TV services gver the fiber-optic

backhone of the TelecomAsia network.

= Through our interest in another CP company,
Orient Telecom & Technology Holdings, we're
pursuing telephone and cable opportunities in

China — where only three phone lines exist for

every 100 people.

+ To help develop new services and technical
strategies for our Bangkok networks and the
emerging communications markets of Southeast
Asia, NYNEX has opened a research and develop-
ment lab in Thailand - an overseas arm of our

Science & Technology facility.
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« NYNEX, along with Telecom Holding and
Benpres Holdings Corp., has begun building at
least 300,000 new phone lines in the Philippines.
The holding company will provide local and inter-

national toll service on the island nation.

» NYNEX is the managing sponsor of FLAG, our
Fiber-optic Link Around the Globe project.
When FLAG is completed next year, it will be the
longest undersea fiber-optic cable ever built - - a
17,000-mile cable system with 12 landing sites
from London to Tokyo, including China. FLAG
will have the capacity to handle 600,000 calls
simultaneously, delivering state-of -the-art broad-
band services, In addition to NYNEX, the FLAG
alliance inclides leading international businesses
that have come together to finance construction of

the cable.

+ In 1995, we announced a venture to bring digi-
tal cellular phone service to Indonesia — a

potential market of 195 million people.

« STET Hellas, the Greek cellular company in
which we have a 20 percent stake, is serving

124,000 customers, up 71 percent for the year.

» Revenue from our international directory pub-
lishing efforts in Poland, the Czech Republic,
Slovakia and Gibraltar is up 67 percent year over
year, In 1995, we distributed some 6.7 million

directories overseas. NYNEX Information

We're delivering on our ob)ective of
steady earnings growth, driven by
increased revenue, enhanced produe-
tivity and superior performance in the
world’s “hottest” industry.

Resources publishes more than 338 different

directaries in the United States and overseas.

NYNEX is a new kind of company in a newly
competitive world, Our share owner value-based
compensation plan — which includes employee
stock ownership programs — gives all of our peo-
ple a stake in working for our continued success.
And as we expand the scope of our business,
we're keeping a sharp focus on our commitment
to “NYNEX Winning Ways.” These guiding
principles, which include integrity, diversity,
teamwork and accountability, define us as a team
and help us put our core values - - Quality, Ethics

and Caring for the Individual - - into action.

That's the NYNEX story in a nutshell. We're
delivering on our objective of steady earnings
growth, driven by increased revenue, enhanced
productivity and superior performance in the
world’s “hottest” industry. We're making excellent
progress on our vision for communications and
multimedia in the Northeast and around the globe.
And we're building real momentum for continued

growth and expansion in 1996 and beyond.

Wam

Ivan Seidenberg

Chatrman and
Chief Executive Officer




Corpoerate Citizenship:
Helping the Communities We Serve

As a leading corporate citizen, NYNEX gives high priority

lo helping people communicate through technology —

and helping people enrich their lives. In 1995, we

distribuled approximately $19.5 million in grants, matching

gifts and voluntary recognition program awards. Qur

grant-making philosophy is guided by three priorities:

1) Improve the quality of education;

7} Promote long-term wellness by supporting health and
human-services pregrams; and

3)Promole diversity by sponsoring cultural and

community partnerships.

For information about NYNEX's philanthropic programs, or
for a complete tist of contributions, write to, call or fax:
NYNEX, Corporate Philanthropy, 1095 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036. Phone: (800) 340-7955;
Fax: (212} 398-0951.

The e-mail address for Corporate Philanthropy is
notes.sdubose@ab0vmi.trg.nynex.com
Information about our philanthropic programs also is
featured on NYNLCX's World Wide Web site

(hittp:/www.nynex.com).
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Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Nature of Operations

NYNEX Corporation {“NYNEX") is a global commu-
nications and media corporation that provides a full
range of services in the northeastern United States and
in high growth markets around the world. NYNFEX has
expertise in telecommunications, wireless cornmuni-
cations, directory publishing, and video entertainment
and information services. NYNEX's principal operating
subsidiaries are New York Telephone Company
(“New York Telephone”) and New England
Telephone and Telegraph Company (“New England
Telephone™) (collectively, the “telephone sub-
sidiaries”). Intrastate comrnunications services are
regulated by various state public service comrmissions
(“state commissions”), and interstate communications
services are regulated by the Federal Communications
Commission (“FCC™,

|Business Restructuring

NYNEX's 1993 results included pretax charges of
$2.1 billion ($1.4 billion after-tax) for business
restructuring, predominantly within the telecommu-
nications business. Business restructuring resulted
from a comprehensive analysis of operations and
work processes, resulting in a strategy to redesign
them to improve efficiency and customer service, to
adjust quickly to accelerating change, to implement
work force reductions, and to produce savings neces-
sary for NYNEX to operate in an increasingly
competitive environment.

The 1993 charges were comprised of: $1.1 billion in
employee termination costs to reduce the work force
by approximately 16,800 employees by the end of
1996; $626 million of process re-engineering charges,
primarily for systems redesign and work center con-
solidation; $283 million in costs associated with
planned exits from certain nontelecommunications
businesses; and $106 million for asset write-offs and
loss contingency accruals.

1995 and 1994 Additional Charges

During 1994, NYNEX announced retirement incen-
tives to provide a voluntary means of implementing
substantially all of the planned work force reduc-
tions, The retirement incentives were to be offered
at different times through 1996 according to local
foree requirements and were expected tc generate

an estimated additional $2.0 billion in pretax
charges ($1.3 billion after-tax) over that period of
time as employees elected to leave the business
through retirement incentives rather than through
the severance provisions of the 1993 force reduction
plan. In 1995 and 1994, respectively, approximately
4,700 and 7,200 employees accepted the incentive
plan. This resulted in $514.1 million ($326.8 mil-
lion after-tax) and $693.5 million ($452.8 million
after-tax), respectively, of incremental charges for
the cost of retirement incentives. The reserves
established in 1993 for severance have been and
will continue to be transferred primarily to the
pension liability on a per employee basis as a result
of employees’ accepting the retirement incentives.
Much of the cost of the enhancements will be
funded by NYNEX’s pension plans.

Employee Reductions

The 1993 employee termination costs of $1.1 billion
were comprised of $586 million for employee sever-
ance payments (including salary, payroll taxes, and
outplacement costs) and $520 million for post-
retirement medical costs {total after-tax charges were
$700 million). These costs were for planned work
force reductions of 4,200 management employees and
12,600 nonmanagement employees. At December 31,
1994, the actual number of employees who elected to
leave through retitement incentives in 1994 and the
expectation for 1995 and 1996 were as follows:

1994 1995 1996 Total
Management 3,700 500 — 4200
Nonmanagement 3,500 5,600 3,500 12,600
Total 7,200 6,100 3,500 16,800

At December 31, 1994, the actual addifional pretax
charges for the retirement incentives and related
postretirement medical costs in 1994, and the ex-
pected additional charges for 1995 and 1996 were
as follows:

{In miilions) 1594 1995 1596 Total
Management $191 § 31 % $ 222
Nonmanagement 503 804 434 L7741
Total - $694  $835 3434 $1,963

Current Status

During 1995, it became evident that the number of
management employees leaving under the retirement
incentives would exceed the original estimate due to
additional management staff reduction efforts. It was
also determined that, due to volume of husiness
growth, the expected reduction in the number of
nonmanagement employees would be less and would
not be fully realized until 1998.
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The actual number of employees who elected to
leave through retirement incentives in 1994 and 1995
are as follows:

1594 1005 | Toul
Management 3,700 2,300 6,000
Nonmanagement 3,500 2,400 | 5,900
Total 7,200 4,700 11,900

ber of employees who will elect to take the pension
enhancements to be in the range of 17,000 to 18,000,
consisting of approximately 7,000 management and
10,000 to 11,000 nonmanagement employees depend-
ing on work volumes, needs of the business, and
timing of the incentive offers.

NYNEX continues to monitor the estimated addition-
al charges to be recorded and, at December 31, 1995,
still anticipates the additional charges to be in the
range of $2.0 billion ($1.3 billion after-tax), despite
the increase in the expected number of employees
who will elect to take the incentive. This estimate is
based on favorable actuarial experience for actual
postretirement medical costs, and favorable demo-
graphics of employees actually accepting the offer,
which have resulted in per capita charges being
sornewhat lower than expected. The actual additional
pretax charges for the retirement incentives and
related postretirement medical costs in 1994 and
1995 are as follows:

{In millions) [ 1 1695 Tatat
Management $ 151 $268| $ 459
Nonmanagement 503 246 749
Total $ 654 $514¢ $1,208

At the present time, it is expected that the future ad-
ditional pretax charges for retirement incentives will
be approximately $600 ta $800 million, consisting of
$100 million for management and in the range of
$500 to $700 million for nonmanagement employees.

The actual severance reserves utilized and the applica-
tion of the postretirement medical liability established
in 1993 during 1994 and 1995 are shown below:

Severance Reserve

{In millions) o 1964 1995 l Total#

Management® $ 303 $ 53 $ 356

Nonmanagement 3 29 63

Total $337 |$ 82| 419
———1

* 1994 includes $45 million of the 1991 severance reserves reraining at
December 31, 1993,

# The severance utlization amounts in 1995 and 1994 are comprised of $79
andl $315 million, respectively, of severance reserves mansferred to the pension
lizhility and $3 and $22 million, respectively, wilized for ather retiree costs,

Pastretirement Madical Liability

{Ir. millions) 1994 1995 Total
Management $ 129 $20 % 149
Nonmanagement 50 32 102
Total $ 179 $ 72 $ 251

Assuming that employees will continue to leave
under the retirement incentives, it 1s expected that
the remaining $212 million of severance reserves will
be utilized and the remaining $269 million of the
postretirement medical liability will be applied in the
years 1996 through 1998,

Process Re-engineering

Approximately $626 million of the 1993 charges
{$395 million after-tax) consists of costs associated
with re-engineering service delivery to customers.
During the period 1994 through 1996, NYNEX is
decentralizing the provision of residence and busi-
ness customer service throughout the region, creating
regional businesses to focus on unique markets, and
centralizing numerous operations and support func-
tions. At December 31, 1994, the actual 1994
utilization of reserves for process re-engineering and
the revised expected utilization for 1995 and 1996
were as follows:

(In millione) 1904 1965 1996 Total
Systems redesign $108 §162 $2 %272
Work center

consolidation 27 97 49 173
Branding 21 21 — 42
Relacation — ] 1 7
Training — 21 28 49
Re-engineering

implementation 43 28 12 83
Total $199  $335 $92  $626

Systems redesign is the cost of developing new sys-
tems, processes and procedures to facilitate
implementation of process re-engineering initiatives
in order to realize operational efficiencies and enable
NYNEX to reduce work force levels, These projects
consist of radical changes in the applications and
systems supporting business functions to be
redesigned as part of the restructuring plan. All of
the costs associated with these projects are incremen-
tal to ongoing operations. Specifically, only software
purchases and external contractor expenses, which
are normally expensed in accordance with NYNEX
policy, were included in the 1993 restructuring
charges. The business processes included in systems,
redesign are customer contact, customer provision-
ing, customer operations, and customer support.

Management's Discussion and Analysis n
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Customer contact represents the direct interface with
the customer to provide sales, billing inquiry and
repair service scheduling on the first contact.
Customer provisioning involves the development of
the network infrastructure, circuit and dialtone
provisioning and installation, and process standard-
ization. Customer aperations focuses on network
meonitoring and surveillance, trouble testing, dispatch
control, and proactive repair, with reliability as a
critical competitive advantage. Customer support facil-
itates low-cost, reliable service by providing support
for the other three business processes.

Waork center consolidation costs are incremental costs
associated with establishing work teams in fewer loca-
tions to take advantage of lower force levels and
system efficiencies, such as moving costs, lease termi-
nation costs (from the date premises are vacated), and
other consolidation costs. Branding includes the costs
to develop a single “NYNEX" brand identity associat-
ed with restructured business operations. Relocation
costs are required to move personnel to different
locations due to work center consolidations and
include costs based on NYNEX's relocation guidelines
and the provisions of collective bargaining agree-
ments. Training costs are for training nonmanagement
employees on newly-designed, cross-functional job
positions and re-engineered systems created as part of
the restructuring plan, which will permit one employ-
ee to perform tasks formerly performed by several
employees, and include tuition, out-of-pocket course
development and administrative costs, facilities
charges, and related travel and lodging. Re-engineering
implementation costs are incremental costs to complete
re-engineering Initiatives.

Current Status

At December 31, 1995, the actual 1994 and 1995
utilization of reserves and the revised expectation for
1996 are as follows:

{In millions) 19594 1995 1986 Total
Systems redesign $ 108 %207 $ 61 $376
Work center ,

consolidation 27 51 43 121
Branding 23 11 1 33
Relocation — 3 2 5
Training — 6 12 18
Re-engineering

implementation 43 27 3 73
Total $100 (5305 $122 $626

Systems redesign: During 1994, it was determined
that systems redesign would require a larger than
anticipated upfront effort to fully integrate interfaces
between various systems and permit development of

multi-tasking capabilities. A higher degree of com-
plexity and additional functionality required by
real-time, interactive systems contributed to the
increase. During 1985, systems estimates increased
due to the complexity and extensiveness of integra-
tion testing and quality assurance processes.
Approximately $84 and $44 million relating to soft-
ware systems that were addressed by the restructure
plan but not specifically provided for in the 1993
accrual was expensed in 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The actual 1994 and 1995 utilization and the revised
expected utilization in 1996 of the systems redesign
reserves, by business process, are as follows:

(In millions} 14594 1995_| 1656 Total

Customer contact $ 52 | $109 $30 $191

Customer provisioning 11 21 — 32

Customer operations 19 44 26 39

Customer support 26 33 5 64

Total 5108 |$207 $61  $376
|

Work center consolidation was revised in 1994 for an
increase in the number of work centers from what
was originally planned based on union agreements.
The revised estimate for 1996 is based on actual
costs incurred to date and reflects the completion of
the majority of the planned work centers. Relocation
of employees was revised downward in 1994 due to
the increase in the number of work centers and
terms of the union agreements. At the end of 1995,
the majority of the work centers are complete.
Training was delayed in 1994 due to the timing of
the union agreements and the higher degree of com-
plexity of systems redesign; total expected costs were
decreased due to the planned use of more in-house
training. Training was accomplished in 1995 through
in-house, on-the-job and multi-media training.
Re-engineering implementation is winding down and
will be reported with the related projects in 1996.

Other Restructuring Charges

Approximately $283 million of the 1993 restructur-
ing charges ($271 million after-tax) related to
NYNEX's sale or discontinuance of its information
products and services businesses, including the sale
of AGS Computers, Inc. ("AGS") and several of its
business units and The BIS Group Limited (“BIS").
These charges included the write-off of the net book
value of the businesses and estimated provision for
future operating losses and disposal costs. NYNEX
utilized $22, $62 and $185 million in 1995, 1694
and 1993, respectively, of these restructuring
reserves. 1t is expected that the remaining balance of
$14 million will be utilized in 1996.
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An additiona! $106 million {$69 million after-tax)
was recorded in 1993 for write-offs of assets and
accrual of loss contingencies directly associated with
restructuring at other nontelephone subsidiaries.
These reserves were not utilized in 1995, but were
utilized in 1994 and 1993 in the amounts of $51
(primarily for the disposition of NYNEX Properties
Company) and $9 million, respectively. It is esti-
mated that the remaining balance of $46 million
will be substantially utilized in 1996.

Future Cash Effects and Cost Savings

The 1993 restructuring charges had anticipated
approximately $550 million in cash outflows during
the three-year period from 1994 through 1996 for
severance and re-engineering costs. In 1994, NYNEX
implemented retirement incentives and no longer
expects to Incur significant severance costs for the
planned work force reductions. Cash outflows for
1993 re-engineering accruals are expected to total
approximately $395 million ($125, $191, and

$79 million in 1994, 1995, and 1996, respectively).
Noncash restructuring charges include the pension
enhancements, postretirernent medical costs, charges
related to discontinuance of information products and
services businesses, and write-offs of assets at other
nontelephone subsidiaries. Capital expenditures for
1994 through 1996 are expected to total approximate-
ly $560 million ($170, $230 and $160 million in
1994, 1995, and 1996, respectively), primarily related
to systemns re-engineering and wark center consolida-
tion. Qver time, it is anticipated that savings
generated by restructuring will provide the funds
required, and any short-term cash flow needs will be
met through NYNEX’s usual financing channels.

Since the inception of process re-engineering and the
special pension enhancement program in 1994,
approximately 11,900 employees have accepted the
retirement incentives. On an annualized basis, this
will equate to an average reduction in wages and
benefits of approximately $650 miilion. Partially off-
setting these cost savings will be the effects of wage
and price inflation, growth in volume of business and
higher costs attributable to service improvements,

It is anticipated that the restructuring will result in
reduced costs during the period of restructuring and
reduced annual operating expenses of approximately
$1.7 billion beginning in 1997. These savings
include approximately $1.1 billion in reduced wage
and benefit expenses due to lower work force levels,
and approximately $600 million in non-wage savings
including reduced rent expense for fewer work loca-

[ ——

tions and lower purchasing costs. Partially offsetting
these savings are higher costs due to inflation and
growth in the business.

[Results of Operations

NYNEX reported a net loss for the year ended
December 31, 1995 of $(1.8) billion, or $(4.34) per
share. Net income for the year ended December 31,
1994 was $792.6 million, or $1.89 per share. The
net loss for the year ended December 31, 1993 was
$(394.1) million, or ${.95) per share.

The net loss for 1995 includes an extraordinary
charge and non-recurring charges and credits totaling
$3.2 billion after-tax, or $7.61 per share. Included in
this amount are: an extraordinary charge of $2.9 bil-
lion, or $6.84 per share, for the discontinuance of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71
(“Statement No. 71”) (see Note B); charges of
$549.5 million, or $1.29 per shate, for non-recurring
iterns and for pension enhancements; a gain of
$155.1 million, or $.36 per share, as a result of an
initial public offering (“IPO") of NYNEX's UK cable
business (see Note ]); and a net gain of $67.4 mil-
lion, or $.16 per share, from the sale of certain
cellular properties as a result of the formation of the
Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mobile cellular partnership
(“BANM") (see Note F). Results for 1994 include an
after-tax charge of $452.8 million, or $1.08 per
share, for pension enhancements. Adjusting for these
items, 1985 net income was $1.4 billion, an increase
of 12.1% over 1994. Results for 1993 include after-
tax charges of $1.6 billion, or $3.95 per share, for
business restructuring and other charges. Adjusting
for these charges, 1993 net income was $1.2 billion.

Operating revenues for 1995 were $13.4 billion, an
increase of $100.3 million, or .8%, over 1994,
Included in this increase were changes in presenta-
tion in 1995 of gross receipts tax and revenues from
NYNEX Mobile Communications Company
{"NYNEX Mobile”} as a result of the BANM cellular
partnership (see Note A}. Adjusting for these items,
operating revenues increased 3.8% to $13.1 billion.
Revenues from the telephone subsidiaries and
Telesector Resources Group, Inc. (collectively, the
“telecommunications group”) increased 3.0% to
$11.9 billion, and revenues from NYNEX's other
subsidiaries {the “nontelephone subsidiaries”™)
increased 11.6%, to $1.2 hillion. Supporting the
telecommunications group's revenue growth were a
3.4% growth in access lines and an §.6% increase in
access usage over last vear,
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Operating revenues for 1994 were $13.3 billion, a
decrease of $101.2 million, or .8%, from 1993,
Included in this decrease were changes in presenta-
tion of revenues from NYNEX Mobile and from
information products and services businesses that
were sold in 1993 and 1994. Adjusting for these
items, operating revenues increased 4% to $12.6 bil-
lion. Revenues from the nontelephone subsidiaries
increased 6.4% to $1.1 billion, supported by growth
in NYNEX CableComms' customer base. Revenues
from the telecommunications group were essentially
flat at $11.5 billion, due principally to a revenue
reduction ordered by the New York State Public
Service Commission {"NYSPSC”).

Operating expenses for 1995 were $11.3 billion,

a decrease of $235.7 million, or 2.0%, from 1994,
Included in this decrease (and as described below)
were: pension enhancement charges in both periods;
non-recurring net charges in 1995; and changes in
presentation in 1995 of gross receipts tax and
expenses from NYNEX Mobile as a result of the
BANM cellular partnership (see Note A). Adjusting
for these items, operating expenses were $10.3 bil-
lion, an increase of $93.8 million, or .9%. At the
telecommunications group, operating expenses
increased $8.1 million, or .1%, and at the nontele-
phone subsidiaries, operating expenses increased
$85.7 million, or 9.8%.

Operating expenses for 1994 were $11.6 billion,

a decrease of $1.5 billion, or 11.7%, from 1993.
Included in this decrease (and as described below)
were: business restructuring and other charges in
1993; pension enhancement charges in 1994; and
changes in presentation of expenses from NYNEX
Mobile and from information products and services
businesses that were sold in 1993 and 1994,
Adjusting for these items, operating expenses were
$10.2 billion, an increase of $122.7 million, or 1.2%.
At the telecommunications group, operating expenses
increased $119.6 million, or 1.3%, and at the non-
telephone subsidiaries, operating expenses were
essentially flat.

Operating income, adjusting for non-recurring items
and the year-over-year change in the operating
income of NYNEX Mobile, was $2.8 billion in 1995,
an increase of $381.9 million, or 15.9%. Operating
margin for 1995 improved 2.2 percentage points to
21.3% from 19.1%. This improvement resulited
from increased productivity as adjusted expense
growth of .9% was outpaced by adjusted revenue
growth of 3.8%.

Operating income, adjusting for non-recurring items
and the year-over-year changes in the operating
income of NYNEX Mobile and the information prod-
ucts and services businesses that were sold, was

$2.4 billion in 1994, a decrease of $73.0 mullion, or
3.0%. Operating margin for 1994 declined to 19.1%
from 19.7%, resulting from adjusted expense growth
of 1.2% exceeding adjusted revenue growth of .4%.

Operating Revenues

{In millions} 1995 1994 1993

Local service $ 6,722.2|% 66054 % 64729

Long distance 1,039.2 108lL2 11,1244

Network access 3,557.57 3,4470 33872

Other 20880 2,173.0 24133

Total operating revenues |$13,406.9/$ 13,306.6 $13,407.8
—

Local service reveriues increased $116.8 million, or
1.8%, in 1995 due primarily to a net $164 million
increase in demand driven by growth in access lines
and sales of calling features. This increase was par-
tially offset by $35 million in rate reductions in New
York and Maine, an $8 million decrease attributable
to potential customer billing claims at New York
Telephone, and a $5 million decrease due to the
1994 reversal of previously deferred revenues in

Rhode Island.

Local service revenues increased $132.5 million, or
2.0%, in 1994 due primarily to: a net $240 million
increase in demand driven by growth in access lines,
sales of calling features and higher usage associated
with wintet storms, and a $23 million increase in
rates due to a rate restructuring in Massachusetts
(offset by decreases in long distance rates mentioned
below), partially offset by a $135 million revenue
reduction pursuant to an NYSPSC order.

Long distance revenues decreased $42.0 million, or
3.9%, in 1995 due primarily to: $24 million 1n
required rate reductions at New England Telephone;
$7 million in price reductions in New Hampshire;
and a decrease in demand for wide area telecommu-
nications services as a result of customer shifts to
lower priced services offered by the telephone sub-
sidiaries and increased competition. It should be
noted that certain competitive losses in long distance
revenues are mostly offset by increases in network
access revenues.

Long distance revenues decreased $53.2 million, or
4.7%, in 1994 due primarily to: $25 million in rate
decreases due to the previously mentioned
Massachusetts rate restructuring; $8 million in price
reductions in New Hampshire; a $13 million revenue
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reduction pursuant to an NYSPSC order; a $12 mil-
lion shift in interstate toll revenues from long
distance to network access at New York Telephone;
and the previously mentioned decrease in demand
for wide area telecommunications services. These
decreases were partially offset by increased demand
for message toll services.

Network access revenues increased $165.7 miilion, or
4.8%, in 1995 excluding a $55.2 million decrease
attributable to a change in the presentation of gross
receipts tax collected by New York Telephone on
behalf of interexchange carriers. (In the third quarter
of 1995, as a result of a change in tax law, New
York Telephone was no longer required to pay gross
receipts tax to New York State on interstate access
revenues. Prior to this change, these taxes were col-
lected from interexchange carriers and remitted to
the taxing authority and were included in both
operating revenues and operating expenses) (see
Operating expenses.) The increase in Network access
revenues resulted from a $157 million increase in
interstate demand partially offset by a $29 million
reduction in interstate rates, and a $44 million
increase in intrastate demand partially offset by a
$10 million reduction in intrastate rates.

Network access revenues increased $59.8 million, or
1.8%, in 1994, There was a $127 million increase in
interstate demand partially offset by a $69 million
reduction in interstate rates, and a $21 miilion
increase in intrastate demand offset by a $24 million
reduction in intrastate rates. In addition, there was a
$12 million increase at New York Telephone due to
the aforementioned shift in interstate toll revenues
and a $12 million recognition of previously deferred
revenues, partially offset by a $12 miilion revenue
reduction pursuant to an NYSPSC order.

Other revenues increased $235.2 million, or 16.2%,
in 1995, after adjusting for a $320.2 million decrease
associated with the July 1, 1995 deconsolidation of
NYNEX Mobile due to the formation of the BANM
cellular partnership (see Note A) ($399.8 million for
six months of 1995 compared with $720.0 million
for twelve months of 1994), The increase of

$235.2 million reflects the following: NYNEX
CableComms revenues increased $70.2 millicn,
more than doubling, due to significant increases in
cable television customers and in residence and
business telecommunication lines. NYNEX Infor-
mation Resources revenues increased $48.7 million,
or 5.4%, due primarily to increased Yellow Pages
advertising revenues, from both domestic and inter-
national directories. Telecommunications revenues

increased $110.2 million, due to the following at
New York Telephone: {1} $109.2 million due to the
cessation of “setting aside” revenues in the second
quarter of 1995 as a result of an NYSPSC order
approving a performance-based regulatory plan (the
“Plan'), (2} $10 million due to the elimination of
the deferral of intrastate revenues as a result of the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting principles
(see Note B), (3) $4.5 million from revenues earned
under a service improvement plan implemented in
1994 and (4) $5 million recognized in connection
with intralLATA presubscription (“ILP") commit-
ments that were met in 1995, These increases were
partially offset by a $22 million decrease in billing
and collection revenues pursuant to a contract with
ATE&T Corp.

With respect to (1) above, future quarters will

no longer reflect the setting aside of revenues of
$38 million per quarter experienced in 1994 and
early 1995. At December 31, 1995, $188 million of
revenues remains deferred ($161 million pursuant
to the Plan and $27 million pursuant to the service
improvement plan) and will be recognized as com-
mitments are met or obligations are satisfied (see
State Regulatory),

Other revenues decreased $89.4 million, or 5.8%,

in 1994, after adjusting for a $279.5 million increase
associated with the deconsolidation of NYNEX
Mobile ($720.0 million for 1994 compared with
$440.5 million for 1993} and a $430.4 million de-
crease associated with the sale of information products
and services businesses. The decrease of $89.4 million
reflects the following: Telecommunications revenues
decreased $153.8 million, due principally to a

$153 million revenue reduction ordered by the
NYSPSC. NYNEX Information Resources revenues
increased $22.2 million, or 2.5%, reflecting higher
Yellow Pages advertising revenues and increased rev-
enues from the publication of directoties in the Czech
Republic. NYNEX CableComms revenues increased
$37.0 million, more than doubling in 1994,

Operating Expenses

(In millions) 1995 1994 1993
$11,314.7| $11,550.4 $13,074.5

Operating expenses for 1995 were $11.3 billion, a
decrease of $235.7 million, or 2.0%, from 1994,
Included in this decrease (as discussed below) were:
pension enhancement charges in both periods; non-
recurring net charges in 1995; and changes in
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presentation in 1995 of gross receipts tax and
expenses from NYNEX Mobile as a result of the
BANM cellular partnership. Adjusting for these
items, operating expenses were $10.3 billion, an
increase of $93.8 million, or .9%.

Operating expenses for 1994 were $11.6 billion, a
decrease of $1.5 billion from 1993. Included in

this decrease (as discussed below} were: business
restructuring and other charges in 1993; pension
enhancement charges in 1994; and changes in pre-
sentation of expenses from NYNEX Mobile and from
information products and services businesses that
were sold. Adjusting for these items, operating
expenses were $10.2 billion, an increase of

$122.7 million, or 1.2%.

Operating expenses included pretax pension
enhancement charges of $514.1 million and

$693.5 million in 1995 and 1994, respectively. The
non-recurring net charges in 1995 included: (1)
accruals of $291.5 million related to various self-
insurance programs, legal and regulatory
contingencies, operating tax provisions and revised
benefit charges, reflecting events that occurred in
1995 and additional information made available
through revised estimates and analyses completed
during 1995, and (2) a $53.5 million net expense
reduction resulting primarily from the recognition of
a pension curtailment gain and certain non-recurring
charges associated with the formation of the BANM
cellular partnership (see Note F}. There was a

$55.2 million change in presentation in 1995 of gross
receipts tax collected by New Yark Telephone on
behalf of interexchange carriers (see Network access
revenues), and a $332.9 million decrease associated
with the deconsolidation of NYNEX Mobile as a
result of the BANM cellular partnership {see Note A)
($336.2 million for six months of 1995 compared
with $669.1 million for twelve months of 1994).

At the telecommunications group, operating
expenses were $9.3 billion in 1995, an increase of
$8.1 million, or .1%. Employee related costs
increased $9.5 million in 1995. Higher salaries and
wages resulting primarily from wage rate and vol-
ume-related increases were substantially offset by
reductions in the work force and lower benefit costs
{including revised estimates associated with workers
compensation accruals). Offsetting these increases
was a $1.4 million net decrease in non-employee
costs, primarily as a result of decreases in deprecia-
tion and amortization (see Note B) offset by
increases in bad debt expense, advertising and mar-
keting costs, and gross receipts taxes (primarily from
a tax settlement at New York Telephone}.

At the nontelephone subsidiaries, operating ex-
penses were $959.9 million in 1995, an increase of
$85.7 million, or 9.8%. This increase was almost en-
tirely due to the expansion of NYNEX CableComms.

QOperating expenses for 1994 included pretax pension
enhancement charges of $693.5 million. Operating
expenses for 1993 included business restructuring
and ather charges of $2.2 billion, There was a
$290.5 million increase associated with the deconsoli-
dation of NYNEX Mobile ($669.1 million for 1994
compared with $378.6 million for 1993) and a
$435.1 million decrease associated with the sale of
information products and services businesses.

At the telecommunications group, operating expenses
were $9.3 billion in 1994, an increase of $119.6 mil-
lion, or 1.3%. Employee related costs increased
$38.0 million in 1994. Higher salaries and wages
resulting from wage rate increases, single enterprise
employee transfers, and volume-related increases
were partially offset by reductions in the work force
and lower benefit costs. In addition, there was an
$81.6 million increase in non-employee costs, pri-
marily as a result of increases in depreciation and
amortization, bad debt expense, and contracted ser-
vices, partially offset by decreases in property taxes.

Gain on sale of stock by subsidiary

An IPO of the shares of NYNEX CableComms
Group PLC (“UK CableComms”) and NYNEX
CableComms Group Inc. (“US CableComms™)
(collectively, “CableComms”} was completed in
June 1995. The offering represented 33% of the
total units outstanding, with NYNEX retaining
the balance. Net praceeds from the offering were
approximately $610 million. NYNEX recognized a
pretax gain of $264.1 million in recognition of the
net increase in the value of NYNEX's investment in
CableComms (see Note J).

Other income {expensa) - net

{In millions} 1995 | 1694 1993
$(4.9)| $43.8) $(870)

Other income (expense) - net for 1995 improved
$38.9 million over 1994. The principal components
of this change were a $70.3 million non-recurring
gain on the sale of cellular properties in connection
with the formation of the BANM cellular partnership
(see Note F), partially offset by a $26.7 million
increase in minority interest expense and $17.4 mil-
lion from unrealized “mark to market” valuation
adjustments (see Finanecial Instruments).
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Other income {expense) - net for 1994 improved
$53.2 million over 1993, The principal components
of this change were: in 1993, $84 million was
expensed for the interstate portion of call premiums
and other charges associated with the refinancing of
long-term debt, partially offset by an $11 million
increase in minority interest expense in 1994,

Intarest expense

({In millions} 1995 1994 1993
$7339 | $6738 § 6505
— |

Interest expense for 1995 increased $60.1 million, or
8.9%, over 1994 due primarily to higher average
interest rates of 7.2% compared to 6.5% in 1994.
The higher average interest rates are due to increased
short-term rates and a lengthening in the maturity of
the debt portfolio in the latter half of 1994 (77%
long-term in 1995 compared to 70% in 1994). Total
debt remained essentially flat at $9.8 billion. This
increase in interest expense was partially offset by a
reversal in 1995 of $14 million of previously record-
ed interest on the revenue set aside as ordered by the
NYSPSC (see State Regulatory).

Interest expense for 1994 increased $14.3 million,

or 2.2%, over 1993 due primarily to an increase

in average debt levels from $8.7 billion in 1993

to $9.7 billion. However, total debt decreased

$214.6 million to $9.9 billion (see Cash Flows
from Financing Activities). Average interest rates
declined from 7.3% in 1993 to 6.5% primarily as a
result of long-term debt refinancings throughout 1993,

Income (loss) from lang-term investments

(In millions) I_ 1905 1904 1993
5 929 § 577 3 (21.9)
|

Income (loss) from long-term investments for 1995
improved $35.2 million, or 61.0%, over 1994. This
increase was due primarily to equity income of
$90.7 million from the BANM cellular partnership
(see Note F), partially offset by losses from invest-
ments in the Tele-TV Partnerships, FLAG Limited
(“FLAG") and PCS Primeco.

Income (loss) from long-term investments for 1994
improved $79.6 million over 1993, principally as a
result of $53 million of dividends received in 1994
from Viacom Inc. (*Viacom') and the $31 million
effect of restructuring charges on 1993 amounts.

Income taxes

{In millions} 1995 1504 1993
$640.9 | $3037 $(172.7)
I |

Income taxes for 1995 increased $337.2 million over
1994, attributable primarily to an increase in pretax
income of $614.1 million, or 56.0%, and a five per-
centage point increase in the effective tax rate for
1995 primarily reflecting the discontinued application
of Statement No. 71 and a $71.7 million deferred tax
valuation allowance benefit in 1994.

Income taxes for 1004 increased $476.4 million over
1993, attributable primarily to an increase in pretax
income of $1.5 billion in 1994 and a reduction in the
effective tax rate for 1994 reflecting a $71.7 million
reduction in the deferred tax valuation allowance.

Extraordinary item

The discontinued application of Statement No. 71
required NYNEX, for financial accounting purposes,
to adjust the carrying amount of telephone plant and
equipment and to eliminate non-plant regulatory
assets and liabilities from the balance sheet. This
change resulted in an after-tax charge of $2.9 billion,
consisting of $2.2 billion to adjust telephone plant
and equipment and $0.7 billion to write off non-
plant regulatory assets and liabilities. NYNEX now
utilizes sharter asset lives for certain categories of
telephone plant and equipment than those previously
approved by regulators, The elimination of the
amortization of net regulatory assets and the effects
of certain changes in accounting policies are not
expected to have a significant impact on financial
results in future periods (see Note B).

|Capital Resources and Liquidity

Management believes that NYNEX has adequate
internal and external resources available to finance
ongoing operating requirements, business develop-
ment, network expansion, and new investments for
the foreseeable future.

During 1995, net cash used in investing activities
exceeded net cash provided by operating activities
by $218.1 million. This difference was funded pri-
marily by IPO and minority interest proceeds and
equity issuances.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $3.6,
$3.7 and $3.7 billion in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respec-
tively. In 1995, cash provided by operating activities
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decreased $51.9 million. Net income excluding the
extraordinary item and gain on an IPQ of shares of
CableComms was essentially flat. Depreciation and
amortization expense decreased $73.8 million, pri-
marily at the telecommunications group as discussed
above. Changes in operating assets and liabilities
provided $20.9 million of cash flows in 1995 over
1994, primarily as a result of increased trade pay-
ables partially offset by increased accounts receivable.
Costs associated with re-engineering activities
reserved for in 1993 resulted in cash outlays of

$191 million in 1995 and $125 million in 1994,
Pension enhancement charges in 1995 and 1994 did
not materially affect operating cash flows when
recorded since the cash outflows will be incurred pri-
marily by the NYNEX Pension Plans in future years.

In 1994, cash provided by operating activities in-
creased $49.5 million. Net income decreased

$442.5 million from 1993, after excluding $1.6 bil-
lion due to 1993 business restructuring and other
charges. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased $106.6 million, primarily at the telecom-
munications group as discussed above. Changes in
operating assets and liabilities provided $203.4 million
of cash flows in 1994 over 1993, primarily as a result
of decreased accounts receivable and prepaid expenses,
partially offset by decreased trade payables.

Excluding the effects of restructuring charges,
Management anticipates cash provided by operating
activities in 1996 to increase, primarily as a result of
garnings growth.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $3.9, $3.2
and $4.3 billion in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Capital expenditures in 1995 were $3.2 billion, an
increase of $175.9 million over 1994, Rapid buildout
of the cable television/telecommunications network in
the United Kingdom continued, The largest compo-
nent of capital expenditures continues to be far the
telephone subsidiaries. These capital expenditures
continued at the same level over the three-year peri-
od, funded primarily through cash generated from
operations, and it is anticipated that 1996 capital
expenditures will be similarly funded. Total capital
expenditures in 1996 are projected to remain at a
level comparable to 1995,

Capital expenditures in 1994 were $3.0 billion, an
increase of $295.0 million over 1993 for the con-
struction and upgrade of mobile cell sites and the
continued buildout of the cable television/telecom-
munications network in the United Kingdom.

Tnvestment in leased assets: In 1995, the $71.6 million
increase in investments in leased assets was the result
of increased activity in the middle market portfolios at
NYNEX Credit Company (“Credit Company”).

In 1994, decreased investments in leased assets
were the result of heightened competition in the
leasing market.

Other investing activities: In 1993, cash flows from
other investing activities - net were $518.3 million,
$474.7 million higher than in 1994 as a result of
investments in: PCS Primeco (a venture to provide
national wireless communications services), BANX
Partnership (a partnership formed to invest in
wireless cable systems), Bayan Telecommunications
Holdings Corporation, the Tele-TV Partnerships,
FLAG and P.T. Excelcomindo Pratama and from the
effect of cash received in 1994 from the exit from
the information products and services business, par-
tially offset by $90 million of cash received from
the sale of cellular properties overlapping with Bell
Atlantic Corporation's cellular properties prior to
the formation of BANM,

In 1994, cash flows from other investing activities -
net were $43.6 million, $1.3 billion lower than in
1993, NYNEX did not make any significant long-
term investments in 1994, [n 1993, cash outflows
resulted from a $1.2 billion investment in Viacom
and investments in: Orient Telecom & Technology
Holdings Ltd. {to develop telecommunications
opportunities in China), STET Hellas (a Greek
cellular project) and an additional investment in
TelecomAsia Corporation Public Company Limited
(for a network expansion project in Thailand).

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Short-term and long-term debt: Total debt was essen-
tially flat in 1995 as compared to 1994. The debt
ratio increased to 61.8% as of December 31, 1995,
compared with 52.9% as of December 31, 1994,
primarily as a result of the $2.9 billion after-tax
extraordinary charge which reduced equity.

During 1995, commercial paper decreased as a result
of using the proceeds from the monetization of a
portion of NYNEX's investment in Viacom Preferred
Stock (see Viacom below). Credit Company issued
$135 million of medium-term notes.

During 1994, commercial paper and short-term debt
decreased a net $1.7 billion, due primarily to the
repayment of commercial paper through the issuance
of long-term debt. New York Telephone issued
$450 million in debentures and $150 million in notes

S
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and used the proceeds to repay short-term borrow-
ings from NYNEX. The proceeds were, in turn, used
by NYNEX to repay commercial paper borrowings.
NYNEX Capital Funding Company (“CFC”) issued
$863 million of medium-term notes in order to
reduce NYNEX's commercial paper requirements. It
is estimated that these refinancings will confinue to
result in an annual interest savings of approximately
$62 million for the next two years, with savings
thereafter varying as debt matures.

Total debt decreased $214.6 million in 1994 as com-
pared to 1993. The debt ratio decreased to 52.9%

as of December 31, 1994, compared with 53.9% as
of December 31, 1993, primarily as a result of the
$1.6 billicn after-tax business restructuring and other
charges which reduced equity.

The majority of the telephone subsidiaries’ refinanc-
ing charges in 1993, including call premiums, were
deferred and amortized for intrastate rate-making
purposes and were subsequently eliminated as a
result of the discontinuance of Statement No. 71.

Issuance of common stock: In 1995, 1994 and 1993,
NYNEX continued to issue common stock for
employee savings plans, the Dividend Reinvestment
and Stock Purchase Plan {“DRISPP"), stock compen-
satlon plans, and employee stock option plans.
These issuances increased equity by approximately
$333 million in 1993, $320 million in 1994, and
$128 million in 1993. The noncash issuance of stock,
primarily for dividends in connection with TIRISPP,
is $110, $107, and $30 million, respectively. The
dividends for common stock remained unchanged at

$2.36 per share in 1995, 1994 and 1993,

Purchase of treasury stock: In October 1994, NYNEX
granted additional stock options in connection with
the employee stock option plans established in 1992.
NYNEX purchased treasury stock in 1993 and
released shares into the open market as stock options
were exercised, In November 1995, NYNEX began
issuing new shares of its common stock as stock
options were exercised.

Minority interest: Financing cash flows in 1995
included net funds of $289.2 million primarily pro-
vided by a minority interest in the financing
structures formed in December 1993 and 1994 for
the network construction program in the United
Kingdom and by the monetization proceeds (see
Viacom below). Financing cash flows in 1994 includ-
ed net funds of $359.2 million primarily provided by
a minority interest in the financing structures formed
in the United Kingdom.

Proceeds from the sale of stock by subsidiary-net:
During the second quarter of 1995, $610 million of
proceeds were received from the IPO of
CableComms (see below).

Current and Future Financing Strategies
CableComms: NYNEX CableComms is constructing
and operating a $3 billion broadband (high capacity)
network, to be substantially completed by 1997, for
the provision of cable television and telecommunica-
tions services in certain licensed areas in the United
Kingdom.

During 1993 (for licensed areas in the Southern
United Kingdom or “South”) and 1994 (for licensed
areas in the Northern United Kingdom or “North™),
NYNEX entered into a series of financing transac-
tions that coupled a financing partnership and
limited liability companies for funding construction
of up to $425 million in the South and up to $1.1 bil-
lion in the North, for a total of up to $1.5 billion (as
these loans are denominated in pounds sterling, these
amounts are based on applicable year-end exchange
rates). In connection with the financing of the South
and North, NYNEX has provided certain guarantees
and indemnifications to the financing partnership
and limited liahility companies regarding the com-
pletion of the construction program and any breach
of the agreements due to events prior to the creation
of the entities. This type of financing could provide
significant additional funds over the first five years of
each financing to help complete the funding of
NYNEX CableComms' network. Management antici-
pates having sufficient funds, either from these or
other funding sources, to complete construction of
the network.

During February 1995, two entities were

formed: a UK public limited liability company

(UK CableComms) and a Delaware corporation

(US CableComms). The sole assets of UK
CableComms and US CableComms are 90% and
10%, respectively, of the outstanding stock of NYNEX
CableComms Holdings, Inc. which holds, through
various subsidiaries and partnerships, interests in
cable television and telecommunications franchises,
assets and operations in the United Kingdom.

An IPO was completed in June 1995 of 305 million
equity units of CableComms. These units are

traded as “stapled units” and are comprised of one
ordinary share of UK CableComms and one share of
common stock of US CableComms (the “Combined
Offering”). The Combined Offering represented
33% of the total units outstanding, with NYNEX



1Management's Discussion and Analysis

NYNEX 1795 Annual Report ‘

retaining the balance. Net proceeds from the offering
were approximately $610 million. CableComms 1s
using the proceeds to repay outstanding revolving
loans under credit facilities, to fund a portion of the
cost of construction of its network, and for operating
cash flow and interest.

Viacom: In December 1995, NYNEX entered into a
contract for the non-recourse securitization that per-
mits a monetization of approximately 50% of its
investment in the Viacom Series B Cumulative
Preferred Stock, of which 8% was implemented in
1995, NYNEX realized proceeds of $100 million from
this monetization which were used to reduce out-
standing commercial paper.

The term of the monetization transaction 1s five
years at which time the third party interest that pro-
vided the funding for this transaction will be
redeemed through the sale of the assets securitizing
this transaction. Under the terms of an extension
agreement, NYNEX has the ability and intends to
increase the amount of monetization up to $600 mil-
lion by March 31, 1996 under terms and conditions
that are substantially the same as the December 1995
transaction. NYNEX may, upon meeting certain
funding requirements, elect to purchase the third
party interests or terminate the transaction and cause
the liquidation of the securitized assets.

At December 31, 1995, NYNEX had $950 million of
unissued, unsecured debt and equity securities regis-
tered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC"). The proceeds from the sale of these
securities would be used to provide funds to NYNEX
and/or NYNEX's nontelephone subsidiaries for their
respective general corporate purposes, At December
31, 1995, CFC had $637 million of unissued medi-
um-term debt securities registered with the SEC.
When issued, these securities will be guaranteed by
NYNEX. The proceeds from the sale of these securi-
ties may be used to provide financing for NYNEX
and the nontelephone subsidiaries. At December 31,
1995, New England Telephone and New York
Telephone had $500 and $250 million, respectively,
of unissued, unsecured debt securities registered
with the SEC.

In the third quarter of 1995, an independent bond
rating agency lowered its rating of the long-term
debt of NYNEX Corporation, which includes Credit
Company and CFC. The bond ratings of New York
Telephone and New England Telephone were
reaffirmed at current levels, but the rating outlook
on New England Telephone was placed on negative

outlook by the agency. However, Management
believes that the bond ratings are indicative of strong
credit support for timely principal and interest pay-
ments in the foreseeable future.

On Novermnber 10, 1995 NYNEX and Credit
Company entered into a $2.75 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility, with Chemical Bank as the
administrative agent. (Credit Company may borrow
up to $300 million under this facility.) Further,
NYNEX may request an increase in the aggregate
commitments under the facility of up to $500 mil-
lion. The initial term is for five years, but the
borrowers may request two extensiens of the facility,
in each case for an additional year. Currently, a fee
of .075% per annum is paid by NYNEX on the
aggregate outstanding commitments, Under the
terms of the agreement, the proceeds may be used to
fund working capital and/or any lawful corporate
purposes, including support of outstanding commer-
cial paper. NYNEX had no borrowings under this
credit facility at December 31, 1995. However,

$1.9 billion of outstanding commercial paper
borrowings was classified as Long-term debt at
December 31, 1995 because NYNEX has the intent
to refinance the commercial paper borrowings on a
long-term basis and has the ability to do so under
the credit facility.

The venture between NYNEX, Bell Atlantic
Corporation, AirTouch Communications Inc, and

U 8 WEST Inc. is comprised of two partnerships,
one of which, PCS Primeco, participated in the FCC
auction of personal communications services (“PC8")
licenses and bid a total of approximately $1.1 billion
for licenses in eleven cities, of which NYNEX's
portion was approximately $277 million. The bid
was paid upon grant of the licenses and final review
of bidder qualifications by the FCC in June of 1995.
NYNEX'’s portion of the bid was funded through the
issuance of commercial paper. In 1996, the venture
plans to continue to build markets and build out
the network for prospective offering of services to
customers.

Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management

NYNEX has entered into transactions involving

the use of derivative instruments as part of its finan-
cial risk management program. The purpose of this
program is to manage NYNEX's aggregate financial
risk and to protect against adverse changes 1in for-
eign exchange rates, interest rates, and other prices
or rates, and to otherwise facilitate NYNEX's
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financing strategy, without holding or issuing any
financial instruments solely for trading purposes.

The derivative instruments used to manage these
risks may be separated into three fundamental types:
forwards, options and swaps. NYNEX assesses finan-
cial exposures and matches its derivative positions
accordingly, Liquidity and results of operations are
not expected to be, but may be, materially affected
by NYNEX's financing strategy, a portion of which is
accomplished through the aforementioned risk man-
agement program.

NYNEX's use of derivatives for risk management
purposes is represented by notional amounts. These
notional values solely represent contractual amounts
that serve as the basis or reference amount upon
which contractually stipulated calculations are based.
Therefore, these amounts are intended to serve as
general volume indicators only and are not indicative
of the potential gain or loss from market or credit
risks, or future cash requirements, At December 31,
1995 and 1994, NYNEX had derivative transactions
maturing between 1995 and 2004 with notional
amounts as follows (categorized by the type of risk
being managed):

(Inmilliopesy 1995“ 1994
Basis swaps/Swaptions $1,001.0/% 1,001.0
Foreign currency/Interest rate swaps 928.4; 9284
Foreign currency forwards (short dated)|  556.3 -
Interest rate swaps/Caps 279.2. 2859
Foreign currency swaps/Other 60.0 61.5
Structured note swaps o 55.0 55.0
Tatal $2,879.9%2,331.8

Basis swaps: In 1993, NYNEX entered into J.J.Kenny/
LIBOR basis swaption agreements as part of a risk
management program to protect against the effect of
increased corporate tax rates on Credit Company's
leveraged lease portfolioc. NYNEX received approxi-
mately $12 million of premiums on the basis swaption
agreements, which were exercised in January of 1994,
The recording of these basis swaps at fair market
value as of December 31, 1995 resulted in an unreal-
ized mark to market adjustment of approximately
$17.4 million net of previously unamortized premium,
which is included 1n Other income (expense) - net in
the consolidated financial statements,

Foreign Exchange Risk and

Interest Rate Risk Management

Foreign currency/ Interest vate swaps: NYNEX hedges
the US Dollar value of many of its international
investments. In some cases, direct borrowings in the
foreign currency are used. In other cases, NYNEX

uses derivatives to create synthetic non-US Dollar
denominated debt, thereby hedging or funding these
investments more cost-effectively and with greater
flexibility. Generally these transactions involve a
derivative contract which includes both interest rate
and foreign currency components, With respect to
the foreign currency components, cumulative net
gains of $7.4 and $5.9 million at December 31, 1995
and 1994, respectively, have been recorded as direct
adjustments to Stockholders’ equity. In connection
with managing the cost associated with the currency
components, the interest rate swap components gen-
erally require NYNEX to receive interest at a fixed
rate averaging approximately 3.4% and 3.3% as of
Drecember 31, 1595 and 1994, respectively, and to
pay a floating interest rate (three-month or six-month
LIBOR) which averaged approximately 6.1% and
6.0% on December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Foveign currency forwards (short dated}: In connection
with the receipt in 1995 of demand loans denomi-
nated in UK pounds from NYNEX CableComms,
NYNEX entered into foreign curtency forward con-
tracts to manage the foreign currency exposures
associated with the loans' repayments.

Interest rate swaps/Caps: In order to manage nterest
rate exposures, NYNEX employs various strategies
primarily involving interest rate swaps which some-
times incorporate interest rate options. The net costs
of these options are amortized to interest expense
over the lives of the applicable agreements.

NYNEX has entered into several interest rate swap
agreements to modify the interest rate profile of its
liability portfolio. These swaps are associated with
either a portion of commercial paper or non-callable
medium-term notes and are designed to achieve a tar-
geted mux of floating and fixed rate debt for the
NYNEX portfolio. The following table indicates the
types of interest rate swaps used for this purpose and
their weighted average interest rates. Variable rates are
based on the expected future rates based on the yield
curve at the reporting date; those may change
significantly but are not expected to have a material
effect on future cash flows. These swap contracts,
with remaining maturities of between one and eight
years, are as follows:

{In millions} 1998 1954

Receive-fixed swaps-notional amount | $186.7 | $ 186.7
Average receive rate 6.60% 6.60%
Average pay rate 5.48% 8.20%

Pay-fixed swaps-notional amount $ 925 |$ 892
Average pay rate 6.08% 6.34%
Average receive rate 5.23% 8.45%
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Foreign currency swaps/Other: In order to mitigate
the impacts of foreign currency and interest rate
fluctuations on certain payments in conjunction with
the financing of the network construction project In
the UK, NYNEX entered into two cross-currency
swaps. The contract terms for these swap agreements
include foreign currency and interest rate compo-
nents which are settled quarterly when payments are
made and received. For the swap relating to the
financing of the franchises in the North {entered
into on December 19, 1994), the exchange rate is
1.5625 $/£. For the swap relating to the financing
of the franchises in the South (entered into on
December 31, 1993), the exchange rate is 1.4795
$/£. The swaps require NYNEX to pay in US dol-
lars an average fized interest rate of 13% and 15.4%
for the North and South financings, respectively, and
to receive a variable interest rate based on 3-Month
LIBOR, payable in UK Pounds. The net impact of
activities related to the swaps is recorded in income
from continuing operations.

Structured note swaps: During 1994, NYNEX entered
into three derivative contracts in connection with the
issuance of three structured medium-term notes with
a total principal amount of $55 million in order to
lower financing costs. The three derivative contracts
have effectively converted the structured notes into
standard medium-term notes with effective interest
rates of 7.18% ($20 million principal), 7.785%

($10 million principal) and 3-Month LIBOR + 0.15%
($25 million principal).

Impact on Operations

In 1095, 1994, and 1993, NYNEX's income from
continuing operations was reduced by $32.0, $8.6
and $10.7 million, respectively, from all risk man-
agement activities. The $32.0 million reduction in
1995 was primarily due to $17.4 million from an
unrealized “mark to market” valuation adjustment
for the basis swaps. The remaining $14.6 million
reduction in 1995 and reductions in 1994 and 1993
were primarily due to the interest expense associated
with interest rate management and synthetic non-

Dollar debt.

NYNEX's policy requires the evaluation of the hedg-
ing of international equity investments on a
case-by-case basis. By hedging the foreign currency
risk associated with some of these investments,
NYNEX has incurred additional costs. These incre-
mental costs reflect the higher cost of capital in the
relevant international markets. For the hedges
utilizing derivatives, these incremental costs have
been reflected in interest expense and in the fair

value of the respective derivative liabilities. As of
December 31, 1995 and 1994, approximately $(34.9)
and $(43.6) million, respectively, of the fair market
value of derivative (hedging) liabilities reflects any
remaining unamortized incremental cost of hedging
equity investments in the UK and Thailand, These
remaining incremental costs are discounted based
upon the rates implied in the yield curve at the
reporting dates. The interest expense associated with
these hedges is managed as part of NYNEX's overall
interest rate structure.

|Collective Bargaining Agreements

In May 1994, agreements were ratified with the
Clommunications Workers of America and the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
(“IBEW") in New York to extend the collective bar-
gaining agreements through August 8, 1908, A
similar agreement was reached with and ratified by
the IBEW in New England in August 1994. There
will be basic wage increases of 10.5% during the life
of the agreements. The wage rates increased 4.0% in
August 1995, and will increase 3.5% and 3.0% in
August 1996 and 1997, respectively. In 1997, there
may also be a cost-of-living adjustment. The agree-
ments also provide for retirement incentives, a
commitment to na layoffs or loss of wages as a result
of company-initiated “process change,” an enhanced
educational program and stock grant and othet
incentives to improve service quality.

\Competitive and Regulatory Environment

Competition

NYNEX believes that, while it will face significantly
increased risks in its traditional markets, there will
be significant opportunities in its many new markets.

Federal and state regulators continue to adopt
policies favoring competition and have initiated
various proceedings to further those policies. Those
policies will be advanced by the enactment of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, which immediately
opens NYNEX's local telecommunications markets to
full competition. An increasing number of national
and global companies with substantial capital and
marketing resources are expected to enter many of
NYNEX's local markets. At the same time, the 1956
Act frees NYNEX to enter the long distance, video
entertainment and information markets. NYNEX is
granted immediate relief for long distance calling
(both U 8. and international) originating outside of
the NYNEX region, as well as for long distance ser-
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vices incidental to wireless, video and information
services, and for video programming.

Most of the services that NYNEX provides in its
local telecommunications markets have been facing
increasing competition for the past several years.
NYNEX has responded by obtaining increased pric-
ing flexibility under incentive regulation, introducing
new services, and improving service quality.
Increases in 1995 Private Line/Special Access rev-
enues, and the number of Centrex “win-backs” from
PBX vendors indicate NYNEX's ability to respond
effectively in its most competitive markets.

Competition for intraLATA toll revenues has
intensified, beginning in 1994 with the increased
marketing of “dial-around” programs by inter-
exchange carriers, However, to date, the “retail” toll
revenues NYNEX has lost to such programs are
being offset in part by increased revenues from
wholesale access charges, ILP began in New York in
late 1995 and was completed in February 1996.
Future wholesale pricing is the subject of pending
regulatory proceedings.

In the highly competitive interstate access market,
NYNEX received a waiver from the FCC in 1995, to
de-average switched access rates in the metropolitan
New York LATA and introduce a new fixed monthly
charge paid directly by interexchange carriers. This
has enabled NYNEX to charge prices that more accu-
rately reflect the market conditions in its most
competitive area.

To provide interLATA long distance service for calls
originating within its region, NYNEX must meet
certain technical and regulatory requirements and the
FCC must determine it to be in the public interest.

NYNEX considers itself well positioned to enter the
in-region long distance business quickly, as in New
York and Massachusetts it already meets many of
the requirements of this competitive “checklist.”
NYNEX provides for physical collocation of competi-
tors' facilities and has signed interconnection
agreements which include number portability and
reciprocal compensation for terminating traffic with
local exchange competitors. NYNEX has also un-
bundled many components of its network and offers
them on a wholesale basis, and completed ILP in

New York in February 1996,

Significant regulatory developments of 1995 are
discussed below.

State Regulatory

During 1995 the telephone subsidiaries were able to
replace rate of return regulation with price regulation
plans in New York, Massachusetts and Maine,
which represent approximately 95% of their access
lines collectively. These state regulatory plans elimi-
nate the telephone subsidiaries’ obligation to share
earnings with customers, allow the companies greater
flexibility to vary prices to meet competition and
impose service quality performance measurements,
In January 1996, New England Telephone filed 2
proposed price regulation plan with the Rhode
Island Public Utilities Commission.

Massachusetts

Incentive Plan: In Massachusetts, the price
regulation plan approved by the Massachusetts
Department of Public Utilities ("MDPU") governs
New England Telephone’s Massachusetts intrastate
operations through August 2001. Certain residence
exchange rates are capped, and pricing rules limit
New England Telephone's ability to increase prices
for most services. The MDPU also established a
quality of service index and ordered that New
England Telephone's inability to meet the perfor-
mance levels in any given month would result in a
one-twelfth of one percent increase in the productivi-
ty offset used in the annual price cap filing. New
England Telephone's initial price plan tariff filing,
which became effective in September 1995, contains
rate changes that will result in an annual revenue
reduction of approximately $38 million. The
MDPU's Order has been appealed to the Supreme
Judicia! Court of Massachusetts.

Competition Proceeding: In 1995, hearings com-
menced in the MDPU's investigation of intraLATA
and local exchange competition in Massachusetts.
The MDPU has indicated that among the matters it
intends to address are collocation, interconnection of
networks, intraLATA toll presubscription, telephone
number assignment and portability and universal
service funding.

New York

Incentive Plan: In 1995, the NYSPSC approved with
modifications a Plan that changes the manner in
which New York Telephone will be regulated by the
NYSPSC aver the next five to seven years. Prices are
capped at current rates for “basic” services such as
residence and business exchange access, residence and
business local calling and LifeLine service, and price
reduction commitments are established for a number
of services, including toll and intral ATA carrier
access services, Certain prices may be adjusted

[ —————
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annually based on an inflation index and costs associ-
ated with NYSPSC mandates and other defined
“exogenous’ events. Depending on whether the Plan
remains in effect for five or seven years, New York
Telephone's prices will have been decreased by an
amount that, based on current volumes of business,
would produce an aggregate revenue reduction over
the term of the plan of $1.1 billion at the end of five
years, or $1.9 billion at the end of seven vyears.

The Plan also establishes service quality targets with
stringent rebate provisions if New York Telephone is
unable to meet some or all of the targets, and sets

an accelerated schedule for the provision of ILP.
New York Telephone’s compliance tariffs under the
Plan became effective on a temporary basis as of
September 1, 1995, and will remain temporary pend-
ing the NYSPSC Staff's review and investigation.

The NYSPSC has rejected various petitions that had
been filed for reconsideration of the order approving
the Plan and indicated that it had approved a

Staff plan for monitoring New York Telephone’s
compliance, In late 1995, MCI Communications
Corporation (“MCI") commenced a proceeding in
the New York Supreme Court seeking to overturn
the NYSPSC's orders with respect to the Plan. MCI
challenges the lack of an earnings cap and asserts
that New York Telephone's rates should be further
reduced anpually by the amount of the $153 million
set-aside,

Competition 1I Proceeding: In 1995, the NYSPSC
issued an order resolving certain issues in its
proceeding on local exchange competition in New
York State. New York Telephone must provide
White Pages directory listings at no charge to cus-
tomers of competitive local exchange carriers
(“CLECs"), but may negotiate fees with CLECs for
delivery of the directories to their customers. The
NYSPSC also established a reciprocal compensation
scheme for the payment of access rates when

New York Telephone and CLECs terminate traffic on
each other's networks. In general, the NYSPSC’s plan
permits “full-service, facilities-based"” local exchange
carriers to pay a lower rate than other carriers will be
required to pay. The NY5PSC also determined that
New York Telephone must, upen request, provide
services to interconnect CLECs that are collocated in
New York Telephone’s central offices.

The NYSPSC alsa directed New York Telephone to
file tariffs to remove restrictions on the resale of resi-
dential services, effective February 1996, or to show
cause why such restrictions should not be removed.

show-cause response requesting more time for imple-
mentation, the NYSPSC issued an order requiring
implementation, with respect to both residential and
business services, in October 1996

In January 1996, following New York Telephone's \’

The NYSPSC has issued orders resolving various pro-
cedural and operational issues related to ILP. The
NYSPSC approved New York Telephone's proposal

to implement ILP for analog central offices as those
switches are replaced by digital equipment. By the end
of February 1996, New York Telephone had imple-
mented ILP in all of its digital switching systems.

Other: In 1691, the NYSPSC authorized a $250 mil-
lion increase in New York Telephone’s rates, of
which $47.5 million annually remains subject to
refund pending resolution of certain issues related
to New York Telephone's transactions with other
NYNEX affiliates in 1984 -1990. In 1995, the
NYSPSC’s independent consultant concluded its final
report detailing findings and recommendations, and
an NYSPSC administrative law judge issued a proce-
dural ruling for future hearings and the filing of
evidence. In January 1996, New York Telephone
filed notice with the NYSPSC of its intention to open
settlement discussions in this case and requested an
extension of the date for the filing of testimony.

Federal Regulatory

Price Cap Plan: The telephone subsidiaries are sub-
ject to incentive regulation in the form of price caps.
Price cap limits are subject to adjustment each year
to reflect inflation, a productivity factor and certain
other cost changes. In 1995, the FCC issued 2 Notice
of Proposed Rulemaking regarding the productivity
factor used by local exchange carriers (“LECs”)

in the FCC price cap formula, The Proposed Rule-
making will consider changes in the determination of
the productivity factor, the recognition of exogenous
costs, the extent of carrier sharing, and the formula
for calculating the price cap index for certain ser-
vices. The FCC expects to issue an order in time

for the final changes to be reflected in LECs’ rates as
of July 1996. The FCC has also issued a Notice of
Proposed Rulemaking to determine how the price
cap rules should be medified to accommodate 1n-
creasing levels of competition, The FCC asked for
comments on a proposal by the telephone subsidi-
aries that earnings sharing be reduced or eliminated
as an LEC implements measures to promote com-
petition for local exchange services. The FCC has
indicated that it intends to establish a rulemaking
proceeding in 1996 to consider reform of the rules
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concerning the structure of access charges. This
rulemaking proceeding would consider changes that
might be necessary as competition increases in the
local telephone market.

Other Federal Regulatory: In January 1996, the
FCC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking
addressing the charges made for interconnection
between LECs and wireless carriers. Currently, such
charges are established by contracts under the juris-
diction of the state regulatory commissions. The
FCC requested comment on its tentative conclusion
to require, pending the completion of its Proposed
Rulemaking, reciprocal “bill-and-keep” compensa-
tion arrangements under which the originating
carrier would no longer pay the terminating carrier

for access. Adoption of the proposed procedure
would have a negative effect on the revenues of the
LECs, including the telephone subsidiaries. The
telephone subsidiaries plan to participate actively
in the proceeding.

During 1996, the FCC will conduct a number of
rulemaking proceedings in order to implement
the Telecommunications Legisiation enacted in
February 1996.

In February 1996, New England Telephone advised
the FCC that it relinquished authorization to con-
struct advanced video dialtone network facilities in
portions of Massachusetts and Rhede Island.

Selected Financial and Operating Data

{In millions, except per share amounts) 1995 1694 1993 1592 1991
Operating revenues $ 13,407 $ 13,307 $ 13,408 $ 13,183 $ 13,255
Operating expenses $ 11,315 $ 11,550 $ 13,075 % 10,655 $ 11,665
Interest expense $ 734 $ 074 $ 660 § 685 $ 728
Earnings (loss} before extracrdinary item

and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle $ 1,069 $ 793 $ (272 $ 1,311 $ 601
Extraordinary item for the disconfinuance

of regulatory accounting principles, ;

net of taxes $ (2,919) $ — $ — $ — $ —
Curaulative effect of change in accounting for

postemployment benefits, net of taxes 5 - 8 — $ (122 $  — $ —
Net income (loss) $ (1850): $ 793 $ (394  $ 131 $ 601
Earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle $ 250 $ 189 $ (60 $ 320 $ 149
Extracrdinary item per share $ (6:84) 3 — $ - 5 — $ —
Cumulative effect per share of change in i

accounting principle $ — $ — $ (29 ] - $ —
Farnings (loss) per share $ 434 $ 189 $ {93 $ 320 $ 149
Dividends per share $ 236 $ 236 § 236 $ 232 $ 228
Property, plant and equipment-net $ 17,055 $ 20,623 $ 20,250 $ 19,973 $ 19,915
Total assets $ 26,220 $ 30,068 $ 29,458 $ 27,732 $ 27,503
Long-term debt $ 9,337 $ 7.785 $ 6,938 $ 7,018 % 6,833
Stockholders’ equity $ 6,079 $ 8,581 $ 8416 $ 9,724 $ 6,120
Book value per share $ 1406 $ 2026 $ 2028 $ 23.51 $ 2238
Capital expenditurest $ 3,188 $ 3012 § 2,717 $ 2450 $ 2,499
Network access lines in service 17.1 16.6 16.0 15.6 15.3

T

See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiens for the effect of non-recurring ftems un 1993 results, and restructuring
charges on 1445, 1994 ancl 1993 resuhs of operations. Results of operations {or 1991 include $841 million of pretax (3530 million after-tax} restructuring chargen,

¥ Extludes additions under capital lease sbligations, and prior to the discontinuance of Statement No. 71, the equity component of allowance for funds used duning
construction,
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Report of Independent
Accountants

To the Share Owners and Board of Directors of
NYNEX Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of NYNEX Corporation and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes
in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 1995.
These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of NYNEX Corporation’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with gener-
ally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. An audit alse
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial state-
ment presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of NYNEX
Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
1995 and 1994, and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1995, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B to the consolidated financial
statements, in the second quarter of 1995, NYNEX
Corporation discontinued accounting for the opera-
tions of its telephone subsidiaries in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 71,
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation.” Additionally, as discussed in Note D to
the consolidated financial statements, in the fourth
quarter of 1993, NYNEX Corporation adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits” retroactive to January 1, 1993.

(onsecs ¢ Yluaced 41

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.
New York, New York
February 5, 1996




NYNEX 1995 Annual Report

Report of Management '

Report of Management

Management of NYNEX Corporation and its sub-
sidiaries { “NYNEX"} has the responsibility for
prepating the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and for their integrity and objectivity.
The financial statements were prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, which
require management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect reported amounts, Actual resuits
could differ from those estimates. In Management’s
opinion, the consolidated financial statements are
fairly presented. Management also prepared the
other information in this report and is responsible
for its accuracy and consistency with the consoli-
dated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. ("Coopers &
Lybrand”), independent accountants, whose appoint-
ment was ratified by NYNEX's stockholders,
Management has made available to Coopers &
Lybrand all of NYNEX’s financial records and related
data, as well as the minutes of stockholders’ and
directors' meetings. Furthermore, Management
believes that all representations made to Coopers &
Lybrand during its audit were valid and appropriate.

Management of NYNEX has established and main-
tains an internal control structure that is designed to
provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the consolidated financial statements,
the protection of assets from unauthorized use or
disposition, and the prevention and detection of
fraudulent financial reporting. The concept of rea-
sonable assurance recognizes that the cost of the
internal contro! structure should not exceed the
benefits to be derived. The internal contro! structure
provides for appropriate division of responsibility
and is documented by written policies and proce-
dures that are communicated to employees with
significant roles in the financial reporting process.
Management monitors the internal control structure
for compliance, considers recommendations for
improvement from both the internal auditors and

Coopers & Lybrand, and updates such policies and
procedures as necessary. Monitoring includes an
internal auditing function to independently assess the
effectiveness of the internal controls and recommend
possible improvements thereto. Management believes
that the internal control structure of NYNEX is ade-
quate to accomplish the objectives discussed herein.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
which is comprised of directors who are not employ-
ees, meets periodically with Management, the
internal auditors and Coopers & Lybrand to review
the manner in which they are performing their
responsibilities and to discuss matters relating to
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting.
Both the internal auditors and Coopers & Lybrand
periodically meet privately with the Audit
Committee and have access to the Audit Committee
at any time,

Management also recognizes its responsibility for
conducting NYNEX activities under the highest stan-
dards of personal and corporate conduct. This
responsibility is accomplished by fostering a strong
ethical climate as characterized in NYNEX's Code of
Business Conduct, which is publicized throughout
NYNEX. This code of conduct addresses, among
other things, standards of personal conduct, potential
conflicts of interest, compliance with all domestic
and foreign laws, accountability for NYNEX proper-
ty, and the confidentiality of proprietary information.

\\J&M N

Ivan Seidenberg
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Gt T Cvme

Peter M. Ciccone
Vice President and Comptroller
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Far the year ended December 31, (In millions, except per share amaunts) 1995 1994 19493
Qperating Revenues

Local service $ 67222 $ 66054 $ 64729

Long distance 1,039.2 1,081.2 1,134.4

Network access 3,557.5 3,447.0 3,387.2

QOther 2,088.0 2,173.0 24133

Total operating revenues 13,406.9 13,306.6 13,407.8
Operating Expenses

Maintenance and support 3,069.0 3,039.7 3,194.2

Depreciation and amortization 2,566.8 2,640.6 2,534.0

Marketing and customer services 1,422.2 14157 14411

Taxes other than income 1,015.6 953.2 1,038.9

Selling, general and administrative 2,484.5 2,639.7 4,031.1

Other 756.6 821.5 835.2

Total operating expenses 11,314.7 11,550.4 13,074.5
QOperating income 2,092.2 1,756.2 333.3
Gain on sale of stock by subsidiary [Note J] 264.1 — —
Other income (expense) — net (4.9) (43.8) (97.0)
Interest expense 733.9 673.8 659.5
Income (loss) from long-term investments 92.9 57.7 (21.9)
Earnings (loss) befare income taxes, extraordinary item

and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1,7104 1,096.3 (445.1)
Income taxes 640.9 303.7 (172.h
Earnings (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 1,069.5 792.6 (272.4)
Extraordinary item for the discontinuance of regulatory

accounting principles, net of taxes [Note B) (2,919.4) — —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for

postemployment benefits, net of taxes [Note D] — — (121.7)
Net income (loss) $ (1,849.9) $ 7926 $ (394.0)
Earnings (loss) per share before extraordinary item and

cumnulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 25 $ 1.89 3 (.66)
Extraordinary item per share (6.84) — —
Cumulative effect per share of change in accounting

principle — — (.29)
Earnings (loss) per share $ (439 $ 1.89 $ (.85)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 426.5 418.8 412.7

See accompanying notes to consoliduted financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Decerber 31, {In millions, except share amounts) 1995 1594

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $§ 932 $ 1375
Receivables (net of allowance of $221.6 and $226.7, respectively) 2,636.2 2,532.5
[nventories 141.3 1733
Prepaid expenses 360.2 361.2
Deferred charges and other current assets 456.5 593.5
Total current assets 3,687.4 3,798.0
Property, plant and equipment — net 17,055.3 20,6234
Long-term investments [Note F] 3,286.2 1,959.4
Deferred charges and other assets 2,191.1 3,647.2
Total Assets $ 26,2200 $ 30,068.0

Liabilities and Stockhelders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,902.2 $ 2,6682
Shaort-term debt 506.6 2,128.8
Other current liabilities 583.7 1,053.5
Total current liabilities 3,992.5 5,850.5
Long-term debt 9,336.9 7,784.5
Deferred income taxes 1,650.2 3,364.7
Unamortized investment tax credits 108.8 3044
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits 3,885.0 3,615.3
Minority interest, including a portion subject

to redemption requirements [Note ]} 1,077.4 567.2

Commitments and contingencies [Notes G, M, N, Q and 5]

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock — $1 par value, 70,000,000 shares authorized —_ —
Preferred stock — Series A Junior Participating — $1 par value,

5,000,000 shares authorized —_ —
Common stock — $1 par value, 750,000,000 shares authorized 447.2 439.7
Additional paid-in capital 6,566.9 6,942.0
Retained earnings - 2,208.2
Treasury stock — (14,756,356 and 16,102,683 shares,

respectively, at cost) (591.1) (644.3)
Deferred compensation — LESCP Trust (343.8) (364.2)
Total Stockhelders’ Equity 6,079.2 8,581.4
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $26,220.0 $ 30,068.0

See accompanying netes to cunsofidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Deferred
Additional Compensation Tatal
Common Common Paid-In Retained Treasury LESCP  Stockholders'
(In milfions) Shares Stock Capital Earnings Stock Trust Equity
Balance, December 31, 1992 214.2 $ 2142 $65200 $ 39587 $(5729 $(306.3) $9,723.7
Employee benefit
and dividend
reinvestment plans 2.3 2.3 100.3 — {67.0) 16.0 51.6
Stack split [Note K] 214.6 214.6 — (2064 (8.2) — — !
- Dividends
($2.36 per commeon share) — — — (974.8) — — (974.8) i
Other — — 4.2 49 — — 91
Net loss — — —  (394.1) — — (3941
Balance, December 31, 1993 431.1 $ 4311 $66245 $ 23883 $(648.1) $(380.3) $ 8,415.5 I
Employee benefit
and dividend
reinvestment plans 3.6 8.6 317.4 — 38 16.1 345.9
Dividends
($2.36 per common share} — -— — (993.0) — {(993.0)
Other — - 1 20.3 — — 20.4
Net income - — —_ 792.6 — — 792.6
Balance, December 31, 1994 439.7 $4307 $69420 $ 22082 $(6443) $(3642) $8,581.4
Employee benefit
and dividend
reinvestment plans 7.1 7.1 273.5 — 53.4 20.4 354.4
Dividends [Note K]
($2.36 per common share) — — (674.4) (337.1) - —  (1,011.5)
QOther 4 4 25.8 (21.2) {2) — 48
Net loss — — — (1,849.9) — — (1,849.9)
Balance, December 31, 1995 472 $4472 $6,5669 $ —  ${591.1) $(343.8) $6,079.2

At Decernber 31, 1993, there were 804,833 stockholders of record of eommuon shares.

See uecomnpanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, (In millions) ) ) | 1995 1g9u4 1993

\ |
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:®
Net ncome (loss) $ (1,849.9) $ 7926 $ (354.1)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

i

provided by operating activities: ~
Extracrdinary item, net of taxes 2,919.4 — —
Depreciation and amortization 2,566.8 2,640.6 2,534.0
Amortization of unearned lease income — net (92.1) {82.0) (91.7)
Deferred income taxes — net \ 156.8 {160.2} (671.1)
Deferred tax credits — net ' (42.0) (49.8) (39.7)
Giain on sale of stock by subsidiary k (264.1) — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Receivables S (212.6) (93.4) {56.9)

Inventories \ 25.9 {4.1) 17.3

Prepaid expenses (12.3) (55.0) 14.8

Deferred charges and other current assets \ 118.3 255.9 (303.7)

Accounts payable - 359.4 (190.2) 284.4

Other current liabilities \ (257.8) 290.2 (47.7)
Other — net _ 232.0 355.1 2,424.6
Total adjustments 5,497.7 2,907.1 4,044.3
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,647.8 3,699.7 3,650.2

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (3,188.1) (3,012.2) (2,717.2)
Investment in leased assets ! (245.4) (173.8) (241.5)
Cash received from leasing activities B5.9 67.0 57.7
Other investing activities — net (518.3) (43.6) (1,349.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,%65.9) (3,162.6) {(4,250.5)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: |

{ssuance of commercial paper and short-term debt ' 13,94013 18,230.0 14,438.6
Repayment of commercial paper and short-term debt (13,981.2) (19,905.6) (11,985.6)
Issuance of long-term debt _ 136.4 1,556.2 2,410.9
Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases (144.5) (127.9) (141.3)
Debt refinancing and call premiums — — (3,120.3)
Tssuance of common stack 2227 213.2 98.3
Purchase of treasury stock e (92.3}
Dividends paid {893.4) {882.5) (944.1)
Minority interest 280.2 359.2 5.0
Proceeds from sale of stock by subsidiary — net | 610.3 — —_
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 173.8 (557.4) 669.2
Net (decrease) increase in Cash and temporary cash investments (44.3) (20.3) 68.9
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of year 137.5 157.8 88.9
Cash and temporary cash investments at end of year $ 932 $ 1375 $ 1578

* Excludes non-cash efeoss of deconsulidation of cellular subsidiery in 1995, iSee Note F) L_

Sez accompanying nutes to cansalidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements

m“:ountlng Policies

Nature of Operations

NYNEX Corporation (“NYNEX”) is a global commu-
nications and media corparation that provides a full
range of services in the northeastern United States
and in high growth markets around the world.
NYNEX has expertise in telecommunications, wireless
communications, directory publishing, and video
entertainment and information services. Intrastate
communications services are regulated by various state
public service comrnissions (“state commissions’'), and
interstate communications services are regulated by
the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC").

The communications and media industry continties
to experience fundamental changes at an ever-increas-
ing pace. Telecommunications, information and
entertainment services are converging in the market,
driven by technology and released by landmark feder-
al legislation that will remove historic regulatery
barriers. These changes are likely to have a significant
effect on the future financial performance of marny
companies in the industry. NYNEX cannot predict
the effect of such competition on 1ts business.

NYNEX is implementing a major restructuring of its
business, has entered into domestic strategic alliances,
and is expanding globally in select international
markets in order to respond to competition. [n
addition, NYNEX is pursuing reforms in telecom-
munications policy at both the state and federal
levels. In February, the Telecommunications Act of
1996 was signed into law. This legislation will lead
to the development of competition in local and long
distance telephone service, cable television, and
information and entertainment services.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of NYNEX and its subsidiaries. Investments
in entities in which NYNEX does not have control,
but has the ability to exercise significant influence
over operations and financial policies, are accounted
for using the equity method. Other investments are
accounted for using the cost method.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (‘GAAP”). GAAP requires
Management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at

the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the report-
ing period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The 1994 and 1993 consolidated financial
staterments have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s format.

In the second quarter of 1995, NYNEX discontinued
using GAAP applicable to regulated entities for the
operations of New York Telephone Company
(“New York Telephone”) and New England
Telephone and Telegraph Company (“New Engiand
Telephone”) (collectively, the “telephone subsidiaries™)
(see Note B).

In the third quarter of 1995, NYNEX deconsolidated
certain assets and liabilities of NYNEX Mobile
Communications Company ("NYNEX Mahile”}, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NYNEX, 1n exchange for
an equity interest in a cellular partnership between
NYNEX and Bell Atlantic Corporation (“Bell
Atlantic”) (see Note F). As a result, NYNEX Mobile's
results for the first half of 1995 were reported on

a consolidated basis. For the second half of 1995,
NYNEX's share of the partnership’s results were
reported on an equity basis included in Income {loss)
from long-term investments.

Upon the deconsolidation of NYNEX Mobile, Man-
agement reassessed its determination of reportable
segments and concluded that a dominant portion of
NYNEX's operations is in a single industry segment.
In the third quarter of 1995, NYNEX discontinued
reporting segment information in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 14,
“Financial Reporting for Segments of a Business
Enterprise.” This change had no effect on NYNEX's
results of operations or financial position.

Cash and Temporary Cash Investments
Temporary cash investments are liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less. Temporary
cash investments are stated at cost, which approxi-
mates market value.

Inventories

The telephone subsidiaries’ inventories consist of
materials and supplies that are carried principally at
average cost. Inventories purchased for resale are
carried at the lower of cost or market (determined
using weighted average cost). Certain other invento-
ries are carried at the lower of cost or market
(determined on a last-in, first-out basis).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at its
original cost and is depreciated on a straight-line
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basis over its useful life. When depreciable plant is
disposed of by the telephone subsidiaries, the carry-
ing amount is charged to accumulated depreciation.

As a result of the implementation of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 101, “Regulated
Enterprises - Accounting for the Discontinuation of
Application of FASB Statement No. 717 (“Statement
No. 101"}, in the second quarter of 1995, the tele-
phone subsidiaries began recording depreciation
expense using shorter asset lives based on expecta-
tions as to the revenue-producing lives of the assets
{see Note B), calculated on a straight-line basis.
Previously, depreciation rates used by the telephone
subsidiaries were prescribed by the FCC and by the
state comumissions for interstate operations and for
intrastate operations, respectively, and were calculat-
ed on a straight-line basis using the concept of
“remaining life."

Capitalized Interest Cost

As a result of the application of Statement No. 101,
capitalized interest for the telephone subsidiaries is
recorded as a cost of telephone plant and equipment
and a reduction of interest, in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost”
(“Statement No. 34"). Previously, regulatory authori-
ties allowed the telephone subsidiaries to capitalize
interest, including an allowance on shareowner's
equity, as a cost of constructing certain plant and as
income, included in QOther income (expense) - ret,
Such income was realized over the service life of the
plant as the resulting higher depreciation expense
was recovered through the rate-making process. All
other subsidiaries account for capitalized interest in
accordance with Statement No, 34.

Financial Instruments

NYNEX manages certain portions of its exposure to
foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations through
a variety of strategies and instruments. Generally,
foreign currency derivatives and forwards are valued
relative to the period ending spot rate. Gains and
losses applicable to these derivatives are recorded to
income currently with the exception of amounts
related to foreign currency derivatives that have been
identified as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
subsidiary, which are recorded as adjustments to
Stockholders” equity until the related subsidiary is sold
or substantially liquidated. The interest elements of
these foreign currency derivatives are recognized ta
income ratably over the life of the contract. Interest
rate swaps and related interest rate derivatives (swap-
tions, caps) identified as hedges are generally not

carried at fair value. Rather, interest rate swap receipts
or payments are recognized as adjustments to interest
expense as received or paid. Swap termination pay-
ments and fees or premiums applicable to swaptions
and caps are recoghized as adjustments to interest
expense over the lives of the agreements.

Computer Software Costs

The telephone subsidiaries capitalize initial right-
to-use fees for central office switching equipment,
including initial operating system and initial
application software costs, For non-central office
equipment, only the initial operating system software
1s capitalized. Subsequent additions, modifications, or
upgrades of initial software programs, whether oper-
ating or application packages, are expensed. NYNEX
CableComms capitalizes initial right-to-use fees for
switching equipment, including initial operating
system and initial application software costs. All
nontelephone subsidiaries expense computer software
acquired or developed for internal use as incurred.

Refinancing Charges

As a result of the application of Statement No, 101,
the telephone subsidiaries no longer defer call premi-
ums and other charges associated with the redemption
of long-term debt, and previously deferred refinancing
costs were eliminated (see Note B). The intrastate
portion of these costs had been deferred and amot-
tized over periods stipulated by the state commissions.
The interstate portion had been expensed as required
by the FCC.

Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 1993, NYNEX adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Account-
ing for Income Taxes” (“Staternent No. 109”).
Statemnent No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets
and liabilities be measured based on the enacted tax
rates that will be in effect in the years in which tem-
porary differences are expected to reverse.

For the telephone subsidiaries, prior to the applica-
tion of Statement No, 101, the treatment of excess
deferred taxes resulting from the reduction of tax
rates in pricr years was subject to federal income tax
and regulatory rules. Deferred income tax provisions
of the telephone subsidiaries were based on amaounts
recognized for rate-making purposes. The telephone
subsidiaries recognized a deferred tax liability and
established a corresponding regulatory asset for tax
benefits previously flowed through to ratepayers, The
major temporary difference that gave rise to the net
deferred tax liability is depreciation, which for
income tax purposes is determined based on acceler-
ated methods and shorter lives. Statement of
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Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accounting
tor the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”
(“Statement No. 71"), required the telephone sub-
sidiaries to reflect the additional deferred income
taxes as regulatory assets to the extent that they
would be recovered in the rate-making process. In
accordance with the normalization provisions under
federal tax law, the telephone subsidiaries reversed
excess deferred taxes relating to depreciation of regu-
lated assets over the regulatory lives of those assets.
For other excess deferred taxes, the state commissions
generally allowed amortization of excess deferred
taxes over the reversal period of the temporary differ-
ence giving rise to the deferred taxes. As a result

of the application of Statement No. 101, income tax-
related regulatory assets and liabilities were
eliminated (see Note B).

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 repealed the invest-
ment tax credit (“ITC”), effective January 1, 1986,
As required by tax law, ITC for the telephone sub-
sidiaries was deferred and is amortized as a reduction
to tax expense over the estimated service lives of the
related assets giving rise to the credits.

Discontinuance of
E Regulatory Accounting Principles

In the second quarter of 1995, NYNEX discontinued
accounting for the operations of the telephone sub-
sidiaries in accordance with the provisions of
Statement No. 71. As a result, NYNEX recorded an
extraordinary non-cash charge of $2.9 billion, net of
income taxes of $1.6 billion.

The cperations of the telephone subsidiaries no
longer met the criteria for application of Statement
No. 71 due to a number of factars including:
significant changes in reguiation (achievement of
price regulation rather than rate-of-return regulation
in New York, Massachusetts and Maine, and on-
going efforts to achieve price regulation in the
remaining jurisdictions); an intensifying level of
competition; and the increasingly rapid pace of tech-
nological change. Under Statement No. 71, NYNEX
had accounted for the effects of rate actions by fed-
eral and state regulatory commissions by establishing
certain regulatary assets and liabilities, including the
depreciation of its telephone plant and equipment
using asset lives approved by regulators and the
deferral of certain costs and obligations based on
approvals received from tegulators. NYNEX had con-
tinually assessed its position and the recoverability of
its telecommunications assets with respect to
Statement No. 71.

Telephone plant and equipment was adjusted
through an increase in accumulated depreciation, to
reflect the difference between recorded depreciation
and the amount of depreciation that would have
been recorded had NYNEX not been subject to rate
regulation. Gross plant was written off where fully
depreciated, and non-plant regulatory assets and lia-
bilities were eliminated from the balance sheet.

The after-tax extraordinary charge recorded consists
of $2.2 billion for the adjustment to telephone plant
and equipment and $0.7 billion for the write-off of

non-plant regulatory assets and liabilities.

The net decrease of $3.6 billion to telephone plant
and equipment was supported by a depreciation
analysis, which identified inadequate depreciation
reserve levels which NYNEX believes resulted prin-
cipally from the cumulative under-depreciation of
telephone plant and equipment as a result of the
regulatory process. An impairment analysis was
performed that did not identify any additional
amounts not recoverable from future operations.
ITC amortization was accelerated as a result of the
reduction in asset lives of the associated telephone
plant and equipment.

The major elements of the write-off of non-plant reg-
ulatory net assets were as follows:

{In millions) Prefax  After-tax
Compensated absences $1732 $1094
Deferred pension costs 381.1 239.5
Refinancing costs 235.6 166.5
Deferred taxes — 557
Other 1308 856
Total $940.7 $656.7

With the adoption of Statement No. 101, NYNEX
now uses estimated asset lives for certain categories
of telephone plant and equipment that are shorter
than those approved by regulators. These shorter
asset lives result from NYNEX's expectations as to
the revenue-producing lives of the assets. A com-
parison of average asset lives before and after the
discontinuance of Statement No. 71 for the most
significantly affected categories of telephone plant
and equipment is as follows:

Average lives (in vears)

Composite

Reguiator-

Approved  Economic
Asset Lives Asset Lives

Digital Switching 16.5 12.0
Circuit — Other 10.5 8.0
Aerial Metallic Cable 21.0 17.0
Underground Metallic Cable 25.0 15.0
Buried Metallic Cable 24.0 17.0

Fiber 26.0 20.0
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The application of Staternent No. 101 does not
change the telephone subsidiaries’ accounting and
reporting for regulatory purposes.

Income Tax

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are
as follows:

{In millions) 1965% 1594 1993%*
Federal:

Current $ 460.2 | $488.7 § 4669
Deferred — net 67.8 (191.5) (611.9)
Deferred tax credits - net (42.0% (49.8) (59.7)

495.0 2474 (204D

State and local:

Current 51.3 187 881
Defetred — net 89.0 313 (59.2)

140.3 50.0 28.9
Foreign 5.6 6.3 il
Total $ 640.9 | $303.7 $(172.7)

*Diges not include the deferred tax benefit of $1.6 billion ussuciated with the
Extraordinary item for the discontinuance of regulatory aceounting principles.

** Does not include the deferred tax benefit of $67.5 million associated with the
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for pustemployment benefits,

A reconciliation between the federal income tax
expense (benefit) computed at the statutory rate
and NYNEX's effective tax expense (benefit) is
as Tollows:

{In millions) 1995 1064 1593

Federal income tax expense
(benefit) computed at the

statutory rate $ 508.6 | $3837 $(155.8)
a. Amortization of
investment tax credits (31.3) (55.9) (65.8)

b. Amortization of excess
deferred federal taxes due
to change in the tax rates (8.2) (48.1} (66.8}

c. State and local
income taxes, net of
federal tax benefit 91.2 325 18.8

d. Depreciation of certain
taxes and payroll-related
construction costs
capitalized for financial
statement purposes, but
deducted for income tax
purposes in prior years 5.0 205 3L6

e, Capital loss carryforwards
and reversal of valuation
allowance on capital lass
carryforwards (16.1) (58.6) 87.1

f. Qther items ~ net 1.7 29.6 {21.8)
Income tax expense (benefit) | $ 640.9 | $ 303.7 $(172.7)

Not included in *c” above are gross receipts taxes
that New York Telephone is subject to in liew of a
state income tax. Temporary differences for which
deferred income taxes have not been provided by the
telephone subsidiaries are represented principally by
“d" above. Upon the discontinuance of Statement
No. 71 (see Note B), items “b” and “d" above have
been eliminated.

The components of current and non-current deferred
tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 1995 and
1994 are as follows:

{In millions) 1995 1994
Agsets  Liabilities Asseta  Liabilities

Depreciation and

amortization $ — $16768 | § — $3,1500
Leveraged leases — 962 — 9177
Restructuring

charges 286.1 502.9

Emplayee benefits 1,4400 1783 | 12282 1867

Unamertized ITC 68.0 168.2
Deferred publishing

revenues 167.0 — 1344 —
Other 3146 542.2 229.8 646.2
Total deferred taxes: 2,335.7 3,373.5 | 2,263.5 49036
Valuation allowanoe* (2.7 — (42.2) —
Net deferred

tax assets $2,306,0 (2,306.0)] $2,221.3 (2,221.3)
Net deferred

tax liabilities — $1,067.3 — $2,682.3

* & valuation allowance was established in 1993 primarily {or capital losses gen-
erated from the exit from the information products and services business.
Dhuring 1995 and 1994, the valuation allowance decreased by $12.5 and $71.7
million, respectively, primarily due to tax planning strategies.

During 1995, income tax-related regulatory assets and
liabilities were eliminated as a result of the discon-
tinued application of Statement No. 71 (see Note B).

At December 31, 1994, the telephecne subsidiaries
had recorded approximately $631 miilion in deferred
charges and deferred taxes representing the cumula-
tive amount of income taxes on temporary
differences that were previousty flowed through to
ratepayers. This deferral had been increased for the
tax effect of future revenue requirements and was
being amortized over the lives of the related depre-
ciable assets concurrently with their recovery in
rates. The telephone subsidiaries had recorded a
regulatory liability at December 31, 1994 of approxi-
mately $519 million, in Other long-term liabilities
and deferred credits and in Other current liabilities.
A substantial portion of the regulatory liability relat-
ed to the 1986 reduction in the statutory federal
income tax rate and unamortized ITC. This liability
had been increased for the tax effect of future
revenue requitements.
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ﬂ Employee Benefits

Pensions

Substantially all NYNEX employees are covered by
one of two noncontributory defined benefit pension
plans (the “Plans”). Benefits for management em-
ployees are based on a modified career average pay
plan while benefits for nonmanagerment employees
are based on a nonpay-related plan. Contributions
are made, to the extent deductible under the provi-
sions of the Internal Revenue Code, to an irrevocable
trust for the sole benefit of pension plan participants.
Total pension (benefit) for 1995, 1994 and 1993 was
$(269.3), $(290.6), and $(167.0) million, respectively.
The components are as follows:

{In rnillions) ] 1995 1994 1993
Estimated teturn on

plan assets:

Actual $(3,079 | $ 74 $(1,964)
o Dieferred portion 1,872 {1,265} 833

Net {1,207} (1,191) {1,131}
Service cost 179 237 199
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation 984 884 928
Qther net (225) (221} {163)
Net pension (benefit)

$ (269) | $ (291) § (167)
— —

The pension benefit for 1995, 1994, and 1993 in-
cludes the effect of plan amendments and changes
in actuarial assumptions for the discount rate and
future compensation levels.

The following tahle sets forth the Plans’ funded
status and amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets:

December 31, {In millions) 1995 1994

Actuarial present value of
accurnulated benefit obligation,
including vested benefits of
$12,319 and $10,147,
respectively

$ 13,323 $ 11,048

Plan assets at fair value, primarily
listed stock, corporate and
governmental debt and real estate

Less: Actuarial present value of

$ 15,782 [$13681

projected benefit obligation 14,546 | 12,070
Excess of plan assets over projected
benefit obligation 1,236 1,611

Unrecognized prior service cost (1,685) (2,029
Unrecognized net gain (1,010) (862)
Unrecognized transition asset (428) (488)
$ (1,887):% (1.768)

| ———

Accrued pension cost

The assumptions used to determine the projected
benefit obligation at December 31, 1995 and 1994
include a discount rate of 7.25% and 8.50%, respec-
tively, and an increase in future compensation levels
of 4.1% and 4.5%, respectively, for management
employees, and 4.0% in both years for nonmanage-
ment employees. The expected long-term rate of
return on pension plan assets used to calculate pen-
sion expense was 8.9% in 1995, 1994 and 1993. The
actuarial projections included herein anticipate plan
improvements for active employees in the future.

As a result of work force reductions primarily
through retirement incentives in 1995 and 1994,
partially offset by the 1995 formation of the Bell
Atlantic NYNEX Mobile cellular partnership
(“BANM"} (see Note F), NYNEX incurred additional
pension costs of $396.9 and $758.2 million, respec-
tively. In 1995, this cost was comprised of a charge
for special termination benefits of $725.4 million and
a curtailment gain of $328.5 million, partially offset
by 1993 severance reserves of $78.5 million which
were transferred to the pension liability. In 1994,
this cost was comprised of a charge for special termi-
nation benefits of $1,142.5 million and a curtailment
gain of $384.3 million, partially offset by 1993 sever-
ance reserves of $314.8 million.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions
NYNEX provides certain health care and life insur-
ance benefits for retired employees and their families.
Substantially all of NYNEX's employees may become
eligible for these benefits if they reach pension eligi-
bility while working for NYNEX.

Effective January 1, 1993, NYNEX adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“Statement No.
106”). Statement No. 106 changed the practice of
accounting for postretirement benefits from recog-
nizing costs as benefits are paid to accruing the
expected cost of providing these benefits during an
employee's working life. NYNEX is recognizing the
transition obligation for retired employees and the
earned portion for active employees over a 20-year
period. The cost of health care benefits and group
life insurance was determined using the unit credit
cost actuarial method.
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Net postretirement benefit cost for 1995, 1994, and
1993 includes the following components:

{In millions) 1995 | 1994 1993
Service cost $ 440 1 $ 566 $ 456
Interest cost 385.2 3730 3336

Estimated return
on plan assets

(194.6) (41.3}  (92.6}

Deferred asset gain (loss) 102.1 (47.1) 9.4
Amortization of transition

obligation 177.4 1787 1776
Net postretirement

benefit cost % 5141 | $5199 $4736

The following table sets forth the funded status and
amounts recognized for postretirement benefit plans:

December 31, (In millions) 1995 14594

Accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation attributable to:
Retirees
Fully eligible plan participants
Qther active plan participants

$(4,025.7) 1$(3,880.0)
(705.0)| (648.2)
(896.2)| (516.9)

Total accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(5,626.9)| (5,045.1}
1,230.8 | 1,081.8

Accumulated postretirement benefit |

obligation in excess of plan assets | (4,396.1)| (3,963.3})
Unrecognized net loss (gain) 257.7 (21.1)
Unrecognized prior service cost 136.2 146.1
Unrecognized transitioﬂ:;' obmlaigvat\ion 28534 | 30488

Accrued postretirernent benefit cost | $(1,148.8) |$ (785.5)

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the
1995 and 1994 obligation for postretirement benefit
plans under Statement No. 106 are as follows:
discount rate of 7.25% and 8.50%, respectively;
welghted average expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets of 8.4% in both years; weighted
average salary growth rate of 4.0% and 4.2%, respec-
tively; medical cost trend rate of 11.6% and 12.6%
in 1995 and 1994, respectively, grading down to
4.5% in 2008; and dental cost trend rate of 4.0% and
4.5% in 1985 and 1994, respectively, grading down
to 3.0% in 2002,

A one percent increase in the assumed health care
cost trend rates for each future year would have
increased the aggregate of the service and interest
cost components of net postretirement benefit cost
for 1995, 1994, and 1993 by $30.0, $30.0, and

$29.2 million, respectively, und would have increased
the accumulated postretirement benefnt obligation

at December 31, 1995 and 1994 by $360.0 and
$361.6 million, respectively.

As a result of work force reductions, NYNEX record-
ed an additional $519.5 million of postretirement
benefit cost in 1993 accounted for as a curtailment.
Due to the work force reduction retirement incen-
tives in 1995 and 1994 and the 1995 formation of
BANM, NYNEX incurred additional postretirement
benefit costs of $182.2 and $429.0 million, respec-
tively. In 1995, this cost was comprised of a
curtailment loss of $109.3 million and a charge for
special termination benefits of $72.9 million, partially
offset by $72.7 million accrued for in 1993. In 1994,
this cost was cornprised of a curtailment loss of
$325.3 millien and a charge for special termination
benefits of $103.7 million, partially offset by

$178.9 million accrued for in 1993.

NYNEX established two separate Voluntary
Employees' Beneficiary Association Trusts (“VEBA
Trusts”), one for management and the other for
nonmanagement, to begin prefunding postretirement
health care benefits. At December 31, 1992, NYNEX
had transferred excess pension assets, totaling

$486 million, to health care benefit accounts within
the pension plans and then contributed those assets
to the VEBA Trusts. No additional contributions
were made in 1995, 1994 and 1993. The assets in
the VEBA Trusts consist primarily of equity and
fixed income securities. Additional contributions to
the VEBA Trusts are evaluated and determined by
Management.

Regulatory Treatment

With respect to interstate treatment, in 1994 the
FCC’s 1993 order denying exogenous treatment of
additional costs recognized under Statement No. 106
was overturned in the court. Tariff revisions were
filed by the telephone subsidiaries with the FCC in
1994 to amend price cap indices to reflect additional
exogenous costs recognized under Statement No.
106, inchuding $42 million of costs already accrued,
increased annual costs of $21 million and increased
rates of $2.2 million. Commencing December 30,
1994, the telephone subsidiaries began collecting
these revenues, subject to possible refund pending
resolution of the FCC Common Carrier Bureau’s
investigation. The annual update to the price cap
rates, effective August 1, 1995, included tariff revi-
sions to recover approximately $21 million of
exogenaus costs resulting from the implementation
of Statement No. 106,
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With respect to intrastate treatment, in January 1994 E Property, Plant and Equipment - Net
the New York State Public Service Commission
(“NYSPSC") approved New York Telephone's plan
for regulatory accounting and rate-making treatment.

The components of property, plant and equipment-
net are as follows:

. N December 31, (In. milli 1995 1094
They allowed the adoption of both Statement No. BZTIZI;;? (In, millions) 3 20437 | 28479

X : : ; g AA ! .
1‘06 and Statement ‘?f Fmanma% Accountfng Telephone plant and equipment 30.100.9 | 29.902.0
Standards No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Furniture and other equipment 1,543.3 | 1,5486
Pensions” (“Statement No, 87", on a revenue Other 1410 148.6
requirement neutral basis, providing for the amorti- Total depreciable property,
zation of existing deferred pension costs within a plant and equipment 34,728.9 | 34,447.1
ten-year period, and eliminating the need for addi- Less: accumulated depreciation 18,679.3 | 14,843.7
tional deferrals of Statement No. 106 and Statement Land 16,(1313:2 19,?22»2

H an .

No. 87 costs. The NYSPSC required New York Plant under construction and other | 8630 | 8644
Telephone to write-off $75 million of previously Teeal I 1
deferred pension costs in 1993, In December 1994, otea ul?l;ﬁ:;y’_ i:;‘t an $17,055.3 | $20.623.4
New York Telephone amortized $39 million of d — -
deferred pension costs ?—CCDFding to this accounting The discontinued application of Statement No. 71
plan. Upon the discontinuance of Statement No. 71, resulted in a net decrease to telephone plant and
remaining deferred pension costs were eliminated equipment of $3.6 billion, primarily through an
(see Note B). increase in accumulated depreciation (see Note B).

New England Telephone implemented a similar plan
in each of its states, providing for immediate adop- ﬂ Long-term Investments

tion of Stateme.nt No. 106 and Sta.ternent No. ?7 on A reconciliation of NYNEX’s equity and cost method
a revenue requirement neutral basis, amortization of ) , _
investments is as follows:

existing deferred pension costs within a ten-year

period, and discontinuance of additional deferrals of {In millicns} . 199 199¢
Statement No. 106 and Staternent No. 87 costs. In Beginning of year, equity method 1§ 30L21§ 2452
. Additicnal investments 1,005.4 177.2
December 1994, New England Telephone amortized Equity in net income (loss) 33.8 (9.4)
$12.1 million of deferred pension costs according to Dividends received 7% (4.2)
this accounting plan. Upon the discontinuance of Other 71.3 (107.6)
Statement No. 71, remaining deferred pension costs End of year, equity method 1,497.5 3012
were climinated (see Nate B). Cost method investments 1,788.7 | 16982
p | ot Total long-term investments '$ 3,286.2 |$ 1,999.4
ostemployment benefits Ma—
NYNEX adopted Statement of Financial Accounting NYNEX’s long-term investments include equity and
Standards No. 112, “Employers' Accounting for cost method investments in domestic and interna-
Postemployment Benefits” (“Statement No. 112”), in tional interests, including cellular, real estate,
the fourth quarter of 1993, retroactive to January 1, telecommunications, and publishing ventures.

1093, Statement No. 112 applies to postemployment
benefits, including workers' compensation, disability
plans and disability pensions, provided to former ot
inactive employees, their beneficiaries, and covered
dependents after employment but before retirement.
Statement Na. 112 changed NYNEX's method of
accounting from recognizing costs as benefits are
paid to accruing the expected costs of providing
these benefits. The initial effect of adopting
Statement No. 112 was reported as a cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principle and Bell Atlantic NYNEX Mobile Cellular Partnership

resulted ip a one-time, nc?nl-cash charge O_f Effective July 1, 1995, NYNEX and Bell Atlantic

$189.2 million ($121.7 million after-tax) in 1993. completed the combination of substantially all of
their domestic cellular properties by contributing
them to a partnership, BANM, to own and operate

Effective January 1, 1994, NYNEX adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities” (“Statement No. 115”).
Statement No. 115 specifically excludes equity secu-
rities accounted for under the equity method and
equity securities accounted for under the cost
method that do not have readily determinable fair
market values.
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these properties. The combination represents the
consummation of the transaction that was agreed

to and announced in June 1994. Bell Atlantic owns
approximately 62.4% of BANM, and NYNEX owns
approximately 37.6%. The partnership is controlled
jointly by NYNEX and Bell Atlantic,

NYNEX contributed certain celiular assets and liabil-
ities of NYNEX Mobile, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NYNEX, in exchange for an equity interest in
BANM. Subject to post-closing adjustments, NYNEX
deconsolidated approximately $640 million of net
assets and recorded an equity method investment in
the partnership.

As a condition to the completion of the combination,
in July 1995, NYNEX Mobile sold certain of its
cellular properties overlapping with Bell Atlantic’s
cellular properties to SNET Cellular, Inc. As a result
of the formation of the partnership, NYNEX record-
ed a net after-tax gain of $67.4 million resulting
primarily from the sale of overlapping cellular
properties and a pension curtailment.

Other Long-term Investments

1995 investments included the following: a

$282.5 million additional investment in the venture
between NYNEX, Bell Atlantic, AirTouch
Communications Inc. and U § WEST Inc. which will
provide national wireless personal communications
services; an additional $35.6 million investment in
the Tele-TV Partnerships between NYNEX, Bell
Atlantic, and Pacific Telesis Group formed to
develop programming and other products and
services for transmission over wireline and wireless
networks; a $33.9 million investment in Bayan
Telecommunications Holdings Corporation
(“BayanTel”), a newly-formed holding company
whose subsidiaries have been awarded licenses to
provide telecommunications services in certain
regions of the Philippines; 2 $28.5 million additional
investment in FLAG Limited (“FLAG”) which will
construct 2 submarine cable system from the United
Kingdom to Japan; a $55.0 million investment in
P.T. Excelcomindo Pratama (“Excelcom"), 2 newly
formed Indonesian corporation which holds a license
to operate a nationwide cellular business in
Indonesia; and a $50.0 million investment in BANX
Partnership between NYNEX and Bell Atlantic
which will invest in wireless cable systems.

NYNEX did not make any significant long-term
investments in 1994,

Financial Commitments and Guarantees

As of December 31, 1995, NYNEX had invested
approximately $46.5 million in FLAG. NYNEX is the
managing sponsor of FLAG and holds a 38% equity
interest and a 41% funding obligation in the venture.
Under the terms of the FLAG project documentation
and the related financing agreements, NYNEX's oblig-
ation to furnish its pro rata share of funding would
require additional cash contributions of approximately
$181 million to FLAG. The contributions are antici-
pated to be completed by the end of 1997

A $950 million limited recourse debt facility was
made available to the project by a number of major
lending institutions. As of December 31, 1995,

$50 million of this facility was utilized. Under the
terms of the financing, the funding FLLAG sharehold-
ers have entered into contingent sponsor support
agreements which could require additional payments
in an aggregate amount of $500 million by such
shareholders on a pro rata basis upon the occurrence
of certain limited events of default. These events of
default represent risks of a type that equity share-
holders typically are required to assume in
construction projects, and which the FLAG share-
holders consider to be unlikely to occur. The
maximum contingent payment each funding share-
helder may be required to make may be reduced in
the future on a pro rata basis based primarily on the
remaining amount of FLAG's outstanding debt
which, in turn, is dependent upon the level of sales.

NYNEX's allocable percentage of the contingent
sponsor support commitment is 51%, up to a maxi-
mum of $255 million. This includes an additional
10% share that NYNEX assumed on behalf of
another shareholder in return for a fee. In addition,
NYNEX has backstopped, for a fee, the guarantee of
the parent corporation of a third shareholder of its
contingent sponsor support obligation in an amount
not to exceed $95 million, This backstop obligation
would be triggered only upon a failure by such par-
ent corporation to fulfill the obligations under its
primary guarantee, if required to do so upon the
default of its subsidiary to make any payment under
the aforementioned contingent sponsor support
agreement. This contingent obligation of NYNEX is
itself supported by a reimbursement agreement
between NYNEX and the shareholder and further
supported by a direct guarantee by that shareholder’s
parent corporation in favor of NYNEX.

B e e
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NYNEX maintains a 33% equity interest in the Tele-
TV Partnerships (the “Partnerships”), and Bell
Atlantic and Pacific Telesis Group are equal pattners
in this venture. As of December 31, 1995, NYNEX
had invested approximately $37 million into the
Partnerships. NYNEX is obligated to make additional
cash contributions on a pro rata basis of approx:-
mately $79 million, currently anticipated to be
completed by the end of 1998,

NYNEX holds a 15% interest in BayanTel. As of
December 31, 1995, NYNEX had invested approxi-
mately $34 million in BayanTel and is committed
to invest an additional $14 million over the next
two years.

In December 1995, NYNEYX invested $55 million in
Excelcom for a 23% interest, and in January 1996,

NYNEX invested an additional $60 million. Under
the terms of the partnership agreement, NYNEX is

currently obligated to invest an additional $72 mil-
lion by October 1997.

mong-term Debt

As of December 31, 1995, New York Telephone had
deferred $188 million of revenues ($161 million un-
der an NYSPSC-approved regulatory plan associated
with commitments for fair competition, universal ser-
vice, service quality and infrastructure improvements,
and $27 million for a 1994 service improvement plan
obligation). These revenues will be recognized as
commitments are met or obligations are satisfied
under the plans. If New York Telephone is unable to
meet certain of these commitments, the NYSPSC has
the authority to require New York Telephone to
refund these revenues to customers,

In December 1995, Telesector Resources Group, Inc.
(“Telesector Resources”), a NYNEX subsidiary,
entered into purchase agreements with various sup-
pliers to purchase, on behalf of the telephone
subsidiaries, equipment and software to upgrade the
network. The purchase agreements are over five years
with a commitment of approximately $550 million.

Interest rates and maturities on long-term debt outstanding are as follows:

December 31,

{In millions) Tnterest Rates Maturities 1995 14994
Refunding Mortgage Bonds: 33/8% - 7 3/4% 1997 - 2006 $ 6200 § 6750
6% -7 1/2% 2007 - 2011 425.0 425.0

Debentures: 41/2% - 73/8% 1999 - 2008 780.0 780.0
T% - 93/5% 2010 - 2017 898.6 918.7

65/7% - 9 3/8% 2022 - 2033 1,900.0 2,250.0

Notes 4% -10 1/7% 1997 - 2009 2,736.7 2,683.3
Other 1,951.9 30.5
Unamortized discount — net (36.5) (47.9)
- 9,275.7 7,714.6
Long-term capital lease obligations 61.2 69.9
Total long-term debt $ 9,336.9 $ 7,784.5

The annual requirements for principal payments on
long-term debt, excluding capital leases, are $497.8,
$481.2, $265.0, $491.0 and $232.0 million for the
years 1996 through 2000, respectively.

The Refunding Mortgage Bonds and $3.2 billion of
the telephone subsidiaries' Debentures outstanding at
December 31, 1995 are callable, upon thirty days’
notice, by the respective telephone subsidiary, after
the required term of years.

Substantially all of New York Telephone’s assets are
subject to lien under New York Telephone's Refund-
ing Mortgage Bond indenture. At December 31, 1995,
New York Telephone's total assets were approxi-
mately $11.6 billion.

Pursuant to the indentures for certain of its deben-
tures, New York Telephone has covenanted that it
will not issue additional funded debt securities rank-
ing equally with or prior to such debentures uniess
it has maintained an earnings coverage of 1.75 for
interest charges (excluding extracrdinary items) for a
period of any 12 consecutive months out of the 13-
month period prior to the date of proposed issuance.
As a result of the 1993 and 1994 business restructur-
ing charges (see Note R), beginning in March 1994,
New York Telephone did not meet the earnings cov-
erage requirement. As of December 31, 1994 and
1995, New York Telephone met the earnings cover-
age requirement.
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On November 10, 1995, NYNEX and NYNEX

Credit Company {“Credit Company™'} entered into a
$2.75 billion unsecured revolving credit facility, with
Chemical Bank as the administrative agent. (Credit
Company may borrow up to $300 million under this
facility.) Further, NYNEX may request an increase in
the aggregate commitments under the facility of up to
$500 million. The initial term is for five years, but
the borrowers may request two extensions of the
facility, in each case for an additional year. Currently,
a fee of .075% per annum is paid by NYNEX on the
aggregate outstanding commitments. Under the terms
of the agreement, the proceeds may be used to fund
working capital and/or any lawful corporate purpos-
es, including suppert of outstanding commercial
paper. NYNEX had no borrowings under this credit
facility at December 31, 1995. However, $1.9 billion
of cutstanding commercial paper borrowings was
classified as Long-term debt at December 31, 1995

n Short-term Debt

and presented in “Other” in the table above because
NYNEX has the intent to refinance the commercial
paper borrowings on a long-term basis and has the
ability to do so under the credit facility.

At December 31, 1995, the following unissued debt
securities were registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC"): $250 million of
New York Telephone unsecured securities, $300 mil-
lion of New England Telephone unsecured
securities, and $637 million of NYNEX Capital
Funding medium-term debt securities (when issued,
these securities will be guaranteed by NYNEX).

At December 31, 1995, NYNEX had $950 millien of
unissued, unsecured debt and equity securities regis-
tered with the SEC. The proceeds from the sale of
these securities would be used to provide funds to
NYNEX and/cr NYNEX's nontelephone subsidiaries
for their respective general corporate purposes.

NYNEX's short-term borrowings and related weighted average interest rates are as follows:

Weighted average interest rates

Deecember 31, (In millions) 1945 1994 ’—19’95 1594
Commercial paper and short-term debt — $1,987 .4 6.0% 6.0%
Debt maturing within one year 497.8 132.3 | 7.3% 6.8%
Current portion of long-term capital lease obligations 3.8 9.1 .
Total short-term debt $506.6 . $2,128.8 !

—  —

As previously discussed, at December 31, 1995, NYNEX had an unused line of credit amounting to $2.75 billion
through an unsecured revolving credit facility with an initial term of five years. This line of credit, together with
cash and temporary cash investments, may be used to support outstanding commercial paper. As such, $1.9 bil-
lion of outstanding commercial paper borrowings was classified as Long-term debt at December 31, 1995.

$350 million of New England Telephone's Debentures are repayable on November 15, 1996, in whole or in part,
at the option of the holder, and as such are classified as Short-term debt at December 31, 1995.

n Minoerity Interest

December 31, (In millions) o 1995?____ 1994
Portion subject to redemption

requirements § 7312 %3905
Portion non-redeemable 346.2 1767
Tatal $1,077.4 | $ 5672

Financing of Operations in the United Kingdom
On December 31, 1993, a financing arrangement was
entered into for the southern cable franchises in the
United Kingdom (the “South”). Prior to this financing,
twao partnerships were formed: South CableComms,
L.P. ("SC"), and Chartwell Investors L.P.
(“Chartwell”), both Detaware limited partnerships.
These partnerships and their subsidiaries are legal
entities separate and distinct from NYNEX, as are

their assets and liabilities. Two wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries of NYNEX contributed assets, consisting of
cash and stock, with an aggregate initial market
value of $130 million and a bock value of $109 mil-
lion at December 31, 1993, to SC in exchange for
general partnership interests, and Chartwell con-
tributed $20 millien in cash to 3C in exchange for a
limited partner interest,

Prior to March 31, 1995, the financing arrangements
for the South were similar in substance to, but struc-
turally different from, those for the northern cable
franchises in the United Kingdom (the “North”). On
March 31, 1993, the financing structure for the South
was changed to closely resemble the structure for the
North (see explanation of transaction below) as it
existed at December 1994, In preparation for this

- e,
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restructure, SC distributed to its partners intercornpa-
ny loans receivable of $295 million in the form of
dividends. These loans were payable to SC from

the southern cable franchises. Of these dividends,
$214 miltion was distributed to Chartwell and

$81 million was distributed to the two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of NYNEX (the “NYNEX South general
partners”). The NYNEX South general partners in
turn distributed the $81 million to NYNEX, who in
turn contributed it to two other wholly-owned
NYNEX subsidiaries (the “NYNEX South members”).

In connection with the financing restructure to facili-
tate an initial public offering (“IPQ"), a new entity
was formed, South CableComms L.L.C. (“SCLLC"),
a Delaware limited liability company. Chartwell
contributed its existing partnership interests in 5C
having a book value of $8 million and loans of

$214 million to SCLLC, and, as a result, is no longer
a partner in SC. The NYNEX members contributed
the aforementioned $81 million of loans to SCLLC.

All of the partners of Chartwell and members of
SCLLC have committed to make future capital contri-
butions as required by the various documents, and
with respect to Chartwell's commitment, such contri-
butions must be matched by NYNEX subsidiaries. As
of December 31, 1995, total cumulative contributions
to SCLLC were as follows: $200 million from the
NYNEX South members and $295 million from
Chartwell; and total cumulative contributions to SC
were as follows: $474 million from the NYNEX South
general partners and $128 million from SCLLC.

SC’s purpose is to manage and protect a portfolio of
assets, which is being used to fund the construction,
operations and working capital requirements of cable
television and telecommunications systems in certain
licensed areas in the South. SCLLC's purpose is to
provide funding arrangements to 5C and its operat-
ing companies in the South with the proceeds of
capital contributions received from its members. A
wholly-owned subsidiary of NYNEX manages and
controls the business and operations of SCLLC. 5C
and SCLLC are included in NYNEX's consolidated
financial staternents, and Chartwell's interest in
SCLLC is reflected in “Minority interest, including

a portien subject to redemption requirements.”

NYNEX also contributed cash to Chartwell in
exchange for an initial 20% limited partnership
interest. The purpese of Chartwell is to invest up to
$426 million (based on the applicable year-end
exchange rate) over a five-year contribution term in
SCLLC, and the funding of Chartwell consists of
equity and amounts made available to it, subject to

the satisfaction of funding conditions, under existing
arrangements with financial institutions. A portion of
the funding is collateralized by Chartwell’s assets, 15
non-recourse to the partners of Chartwell, and bears
interest at market rates. [t includes representations,
warranties, covenants and events of default custom-
ary in financings of this nature. The remaining term
of the funding arrangement is eight years, with
repayments beginning in 1999, and Chartwell is en-
titled to receive cumulative preferential distributions
from SCLLC sufficient to meet these repayment
requirements. The redemption requirements are

$30 million for 1999 and $52 million for 2000. For
financial reporting purposes, NYNEX's investment in
Chartwell is reflected in “Long-term investments”
and is accounted for under the equity method.

On December 19, 1994, a financing arrangement was
entered into for the North. Prior to this financing,
three entities were formed: North CableComms L.P.
(“NCLP"), a Delaware limited partnership; North
CableComms, L.L.C. (“NCLLC"), a Delaware limit-
ed liability company; and Winston Investors L.L.C.
(“Winston”), a Delaware limited liability company.
These entities and their subsidiaries are legal entities
separate and distinct from NYNEX, as are their
assets and liabilities. Three subsidiaries of NYNEX
(“NYNEX North general partners”) contributed stock
to NCLP in exchange for general partnership inter-
ests (with an aggregate market value of $827 million
and an aggregate book value of $142 million at
December 19, 1994). NCLLC contributed $79 mil-
lion in cash to NCLP in exchange for a limited
partnership interest. Two wholly-owned subsidiaries
of NYNEX (“NYNEX North members”) contributed
in the aggregate $82 million in cash, and Winston
conttibuted $225 million in cash, each for rmember
interests in NCLLC.

All of the partners of NCLP and members of NCLLC
have comunitted to make future capital contributions
as required by the various documents, and with
respect to Winston's commitment, such contributions
must be matched by NYNEX contributions. As of
December 31, 1995, total cumulative contributions

to NCLLC were as follows: $214 million from the
NYNEX North members and $385 million from
Winston: and total cumulative contributions to NCLP
were as follows: $401 million from the NYNEX North
general partners and $209 million from NCLLC.

NCLP’s purpose is to manage and protect a portfolio
of assets, which is being used to fund the construc-
tion, operations and working capital requirements of
cable television and telecommunications systems in
certain licensed areas in the North, NCLLC's pur-
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pose is to provide funding arrangements to NCLP
and its operating companies in the North with the
proceeds of capital contributions received from its
members. A wholly-owned subsidiary of NYNEX
manages and controls the business and operations of
NCLLC. NCLP and NCLLC are included in
NYNEX's consolidated financial statements, and
Winston's interest in NCLLC is reflected in
“Minority interest, including a portion subject to
redemption requirements.”

NYNEX also contributed cash to Winston in exchange
for an initial 20% equity interest. The purpose of
Winston is to invest up to $1.1 billion (based on the
applicable year-end exchange rate) over a five-year
contribution term in NCLLC, and the funding of
Winston consists of equity and amounts available to
it, subject to the satisfaction of funding conditions,
under existing arrangements with financial nstitu-
tions. A portion of the funding is collateralized by
Winston's assets, is non-recourse to the partners of
Winston, and bears interest at market rates. It
includes representations, warranties, covenants and
events of default customary in financings of this
nature. The remaining term of the funding arrange-
ment is nine years, with repayments beginning in
2000, and Winston is entitled to receive cumulative
preferential distributions from NCLLC sufficient to
meet these repayment requirements. The redemption
requirements are $36 million for 2000. For financial
reporting purposes, NYNEX's investment in Winston
is reflected in “Long-term investments” and 1s
accounted for under the equity method.

NYNEX provides certain performance guarantees to
Chartwell and Winston, and for the first five years, a
completion guarantee that requires a specified num-
ber of homes be passed by the network in the South
and in the North by December 31, 1998 and 1999,
respectively (subject to one-year extensions). At
December 31, 1995 and 1994, the related construc-
tion program was progressing toward the appropriate
targets for release from the completion guarantee. In
order to gain release from the completion guarantee,
NYNEX must demonsirate that various financial
ratios, based on, among other things, operating cash
flows, and other tests such as material compliance
with communication licenses, are satisfied. If the con-
struction program does not meet such tests and these
shortfalls are not cured within a specified time period,
the completion guarantee will necessitate payments to
be made directly to Chartwell or Winston, as appro-
priate. NYNEX also provides indemnifications to
these entities, among others, in respect of certain lia-
bilities, including all liability, loss or damage incurred

as a result of any breach of the agreements set forth,
and tax indemnifications relating to events pricr to
the creation of SC, SCLLC, NCLP and NCLLC. In
addition, NYNEX is required to maintain certain
financial and operating standards and may, at any
time, elect to purchase the equity interest in
Chartwell and Winston on certain terms.

During February 1995, two entities were formed:
NYNEX CableComms Group PLC (“UK
CableComms™), a public limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of England and Wales,
and NYNEX CableComms Group Inc. ("US
CableComms™), a Delaware corporation {(both being
referred to collectively as “CableComms™). Prior to
the IPQ discussed below, both were wholly-owned
subsidiaries of NYNEX. Both are separate and distinct
legal entities. The sole assets of UK CableComms
and US CableComms are 90% and 10%, respectively,
of the outstanding stock of NYNEX CableComms
Holdings, Inc. which holds, through various sub-
sidiaries and partnerships, interests in cable television
and telecommunications franchises, assets and opera-
tions in the United Kingdom,

An PO was completed in June 1995 of 305 million
equity units of CableComms. These units are

traded as “stapled units” and are comprised of one
ordinary share of UK CableComms and one share of
common stock of US CableComms (the “Combined
Offering”). Of the 305 million units issued,
170,222,000 were 1ssued as units at a price of 137
pence per unit in the United Kingdom, and
13,477,800 were issued as American Depository
Shares (“ADS”) at $21.81 per ADS in the United
States, each ADS comprising 10 units, The Combined
Offering represented 33% of the total units cutstand-
ing, with NYNEX retaining the balance. Net proceeds
from the offering were approximately $610 million.
(CableComms is using the proceeds to repay cut-
standing revolving loans under credit facilities, to
fund a portion of the cost of construction of its net-
work, and for operating cash flow and interest.

NYNEX's policy is to recognize in income any gains
or losses related to the sale of stock by an investee,
NYNEX recognized an after-tax gain on the IPO of
$155.1 million 1n the second quarter of 1995, net of
$109.0 million in deferred taxes, in recognition of the
net increase in the value of NYNEX's investment in

CableComms.

Other Financing

In November 1993, NYNEX invested $1.2 billion in
Viacom Inc. (“Viacom') for 24 million shares of
Viacom Series B Cumulative Preferred Stock
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(“Viacom Preferred”), carrying an annual dividend
of five percent. The stock is convertible into shares
of Viacom Class B non-voting common stock at a
price of $70 per share.

In December 1995, NYNEX entered into a contract
for the non-recourse securitization that permits a
monetization of approximately 50% of its investment
in the Viacom Preferred, of which 8% was imple-
mented in 1095. NYNEX realized proceeds of

$100 million from this monetization which were used
to reduce outstanding commercial paper. In connec-
tion with this transaction, NYNEX has invested in
three newly formed Delaware limited liability com-
panies: a majority owned and controlled subsidiary,
“Weatherly Holdings L.L.C.", and its 50% owned
and controlled subsidiary, Kipling Associates
LL.C.”" (Weatherly Holdings L.L.C. and Kipling
Associates L.L.C. are collectively referred to as the
"Monetization Subsidiaries”), and a third-party
owned and controlled entity, “Mandalay Investors
LLC. (the “Outside Membet"), which has invested
in the Monetization Subsidiaries. These companies
are legal entities separate and distinct from NYNEX,
as are their assets and liabilities.

At the time of formation, NYNEX contributed, in
the aggregate, two million shares of Viacom
Preferred with a book value of $100 million and

$35 million in cash for its member interests in the
Monetization Subsidiaries. The Qutside Member
contributed $100 million in cash for its member
interest in Kipling Associates L.L.C. and $10 thou-
sand in cash for its member interest in Weatherly
Holdings L.L.C. The Monetization Subsidiaries have
approximately $12 million in cash which has been
loaned to NYNEX, cash equivalents, the Viacom
Preferred, certain intercompany financial obligations
and approximately 2.4 million shares of NYNEX
common stock. The purpose of the Monetization
Subsidiaries is to manage and protect their financial
assets for sale or distribution at a later date. The
Monetization Subsidiaries are included in NYNEX's
consolidated financial statements, and the Qutside
Member's interest in the Monetization Subsidiaries 1s
reflected in “Minority interest, including a portion
subject to redemption requirements.” NYNEX has
invested $10 thousand in cash in the Qutside
Member for a less than 1% ownership interest,
which is accounted for under the cost method and is
included in “Long-term investments.” '

In connection with the monetization of the Viacom
Preferred, NYNEX has provided certain
indemnifications to the Monetization Subsidiaries

and the Qutside Member including certain tax
indemnifications. The term of the monetization
transaction is five years at which time the Outside
Member's interest in the Monetization Subsidiaries
will be redeemed through the liquidation of the
Monetization Subsidiaries’ assets, Under the terms
of an extension agreement, NYNEX has the ability
and intends to increase the amount of the monetiza-
tion up to $600 million by March 31, 1996 under
terms and conditions that are substantially the same
ag the December 1995 transaction. NYNEX may,
upon meeting certain funding requirements, elect to
purchase the member interests of the Qutside
Member in the Monetization Subsidiaries or termi-
nate the transaction and cause the liquidation of the
assets of the Monetization Subsidiaries.

[ stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock

NYNEX's certificate of incorporation provides
authority for the issuance of 75 million shares of
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, in one or more
seties with such designations, preferences, rights,
qualifications, limitations, and restrictions as
NYNEX’s Board of Directors may determine.

Commen Stock

On July 15, 1993, the Board of Directors of NYNEX
declared a two-for-one common stock split in the
form of a 100 percent stock dividend, payable
September 15, 1993 to holders of record at the close
of business on August 16, 1993.

As of November 1, 1993, NYNEX discontinued
purchasing shares of its common stock and began
issuing new shares in connection with employee
savings plans, the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan, stock compensation plans, and stock
option plans.

Dividends Declared

from Additional Paid-In Capital

The second, third, and a portion of the fourth quar-
ter 1995 dividends were declared from Additional
paid-in capital.

Shareholder Rights Agreement

In October 1989, NYNEX adopted a Shareholder
Rights Agreement, pursuant to which shareholders
received a dividend distribution of one right for
each outstanding share of NYNEX's common stock.
As a result of the two-for-one common stock split,
the rights have been adjusted so that shareholders

roem
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receive one right for every two shares of common
stock. Each right entitles the shareholder to buy
1/100 of a share of $1.00 par value Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock from NYNEX at an
exercise price of $250 per right. 5 million shares of
this Preferred Stock have been authorized, with 3
million shares reserved for exercise of the rights. The
rights, which are subject to adjustment, will not be
exercisable or separable from the common stock until
ten days following a public announcement that a per-
son or group has acquired beneficial ownership of
15% or more of NYNEX's outstanding common stock
or ten business days following the commencement of,
or public announcement of the intent to commence,
a tender or exchange offer by a beneficial owner of
15% or more of the outstanding common stock.

If any person becomes the beneficial owner of 15%
or more of the outstanding common stock, each
holder of a right will receive, upon exercise at the
right's then current exercise price, common stock
having a value equal to twice the exercise price. If
NYNEX is acquired in a merger or business com-
bination, or if 50% or more of NYNEX's assets or
earning power is sold, each right holder will receive,
upon exercise at the right's then current exercise
price, common stock in the new company having a
value equal to twice the exercise price of the right.

NYNEX may exchange rights for shares of common
stock or redeem rights in whole at a price of $.01
per right at any time prior to their expiration on
October 31, 1999,

Leveraged Stock Ownership Plan

[n February 1990, NYNEX established a leveraged
employee stock ownership plan (“LESOP”) and
loaned $450 million to the LESOP Trust (“internal
LESOP note”). The LESOP Trust used the proceeds
to purchase, at fair market value, 5.6 million shares
of NYNEX's common stock held in treasury. NYNEX
issued and guaranteed $450 million of 9.55%
Debentures, the proceeds of which were principally
used to repurchase 5.4 million shares in the open
market, completing the stock repurchase plan. The
Debentures require payments of principal annually
and are due May 1, 2010. Interest payments are due
semiannually. The Debentures and the internal
LESOP note are recorded as Long-term debt and as
Deferred compensation, respectively, Deferred com-
pensation will be reduced as shares are released and
allocated to participants.

NYNEX maintains savings plans that cover sub-
stantially all of its employees. Under these plans,
NYNEX matches a certain percentage of eligible
employee contributions. Under provisions of the
Savings Plan for Salaried Employees, NYNEX's
matching contributions are allocated to employees

in the form of NYNEX stock from the LESOP Trust,
based on the proportion of principal and interest
paid by the LESOP Trust in a year to the remaining
principal and interest due over the life of the internal
LESOP note. Compensation expense is recognized
based on the shares allocated method. LESOP shares
are not considered outstanding until they are
allocated to participants.

NYNEX's matching contributions to the savings
plans and any change in the required contribution
as a result of leveraging this obligation are recorded
as compensation expense. Compensation expense
applicable to the savings plans for 1995, 1994 and
1993 was $77.2, $88.2 and $81.3 million, respec-
tively, and has been reduced by $25.9, $26.1, and
$26.2 million, respectively, for the dividends paid
on LESOP shares used to service the internal LESOP
note. As of December 31, 1995 and 1994, the num-
ber of shares allocated to the LESOP were 2.2 and
1.9 million, respectively, and the number of shares
held by the LESOP for future allocation were 8.6 and
8.1 million, respectively.

Stock Option Plans

NYNEX has stock option plans for key management
employees under which options to purchase NYNEX
common stock are granted at a price equal to or
greater than the market price of the stock at the date
of grant. The 1990 Stock Option Plan, which
expired on December 31, 1994, permitted the grant
of options through December 1994 to purchase up to
4 million shares. In January 1995, NYNEX estab-
lished the 1995 Stock Option Plan, that permits the
grant of options no later than December 31, 1999 to
purchase up to 20 million shares of common stock;
options may not be exercisable for a period less than
one year or greater than ten years from date of grant.

Both the 1990 and the 1995 Stock Option Plans for
key management employees allow for the granting of
stock appreciation rights {“SARs") in tandem with
options granted. Upon exercise of a SAR, the holder
may receive shares of commeon stock or cash equal to
the excess of the market price of the common stock
at the exercise date over the option price. SARs may
be exercised in lieu of the underlying option only
when those options become exercisable.
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Effective March 31, 1992, NYNEX established stock
option plans for nonmanagement employees and for
management employees other than those eligible to
participate in the 1990 and 1995 Stock Option Plans.
Employees were granted options, with the number of
options varying according to employee level, to pur-
chase a fixed number of shares of NYNEX common
stock at the market price of the stock on the grant
date. Fifty percent of the options could be exercised
one year from the grant date, with the remaining
fifty percent exercisable two years from the grant
date. These options expire ten years from the grant
date. In October 1994 and January 1996, employees
were granted additional options under these plans.

The following summarizes the activity for those
shares under option under the various stock option
plans including the related SARs:

Price Range
Stock Options Shares fier Share

Qutstanding at
December 31, 1992 0,453,140  $27.60 to $88.13
Granted prior to stock split 806,801 $70.63 to $83.88
Exercised prior to stock split  (644,196) $31.34 to $88.13
Canceled prior to stock split ~ (79,473)  $69.13 to $88.13
Stock split 9,519,950
Granted after stock split 16,595 $42.32 to $46.07
Exercised after stock split (281,500) $16.50 to $44.07
Canceled after stock split (106,605) $21.91 to $44.07
831 net activity® (16,412) $13.80 to $18.98
QOutstanding at
December 31, 1593

18,668,300  $13.80 to $46.07

(Granted 14,724,360  $37.94 to $39.88
Exercised (261,131) $21.91 to §36.13
Canceled (716,391} $32.97 to $44.07

Qutstanding at

December 31, 1994 32,415,228  $24.69 to $46.07

Granted 3,169,470  $33.00 to $50.19
Exercised (3,559,057) $24.69 to $42.66
Canceled (353,216} $35.32 to $44.07

Qutstanding at

December 31, 1995 31,672,425 $32.75 to $50.19

* NYNEX acquired Stockholder Systems, Tnc, ("S81"1 in 1090, and 351
employees could exercise S81 oprions for NYNEX common stock. 881 was
gold in 1904, and 5T uptions sre no longer exercisable.

For the year ended December 31,

{Number of sharea) 1995 1954 1943
Stock appreciation rights:
Qutstanding at

beginning of year 1,864 1,864 29247
Granted —_ — —
Exercised (1,864} —  (7.551)
Canceled — — (23,571}
Stock split — — 3939
Qutstanding at end of year — 1,864 1864

—

There were 20,977,556 and 16,604,260 stock options
exercisable at December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively. In January 1996, options to purchase
approximately 11 million shares of common stock
were granted under the stock option plans estab-
lished on March 31, 1992, and options to purchase
approximately 5 million shares of common stock
were granted under the 1995 Stock Option Plan.

[ Leaces

NYNEX leases certain facilities and equipment used
in its operations. Rental expense was $381.4, $310.5
and $337.0 million for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respec-
tively. At December 31, 1995, the minimum lease
commitments under noncancelable leases for the
periods shown are as follows:

(In millions) Operating Carpital
1996 $1420 3% 197
1997 113.4 158
1998 102.8 149
1999 86.4 11.5
2000 69.0 11.3
Thereafter 389.7 381.6
Total minimum lease payments $003.3 45438
Less: executory costs — 11.4
Net minimum lease payments — 443.4
Less: interest — 370.8
Present value of net minimum

lease payments — § 726

Credit Company is the lessor in leveraged and direct
financing lease agreements under which commercial
aircraft, railroad cars, industrial equipment, power
generators, residential real estate, telecommunications
and computer equipment are leased for terms of 3 to
35 years. Minimum lease payments receivable repre-
sent unpaid rentals, less principal and interest on
third-party non-recourse debt relating to leveraged
lease transactions. Since Credit Company has no gen-
eral liability for this debt, the related principal and
interest have been offset against the minimurn lease
payments receivable. Minimum lease payments receiv-
able are subordinate to the debt, and the debt holders
have a security interest in the leased equipment.
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At December 31, 1995 and 1594, the net investment
in leveraged leases was $407.7 and $406.7 million,
respectively, and in direct financing leases was $186.1
and $133.7 million, respectively. The components of
Credit Company's net investment in these leases are
included in Deferred charges and other assets and are
as follows:

December 31, (In millions) 1995 1594
Minimum lease payments receivable | $1,826.7 [$1,561.2
Unguaranteed residual value 1,165.2 | 1,027.6

Initial direct costs 13 1.2
Less: Unearned income 1,301.6 | 1,1272
Deferred income taxes 1,073.5 600.2
Allowance for uncollectibles 24.3 222

$ 593.8 |3 5404

Net investment

At December 31, 1995, future minimum lease pay-
ments receivable, in millions, in excess of debt service
requirements on non-recourse debt related to lever-
aged and direct financing leases, are collectible as
follows: $70.7 in 1996; $70.9 in 1997; $68.0 in 1998,
$59.6 in 1999; $44.5 in 2000; and $1,513.0 thereafter.

m Financlal Instruments

Risk Management, Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

and Concentrations of Credit Risk

NYNEX has entered into transactions in financial
instruments with off-balance-sheet risk, to reduce its
exposure to market and interest rate risk in its short-
term and long-term securities. NYNEX entered into
various interest rate, currency, and basis swap trans-
actions, with an aggregate notional amount of

$2.9 billion and $2.3 billion at December 31, 1995
and 1994, respectively, to manage interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, and tax exposures. These
transactions mature at various dates from 1995

through 2004,

Risk in these transactions involves both risk of coun-
terparty nonperformance under the contract terms
and risk associated with changes in market values,
interest rates, and foreign exchange rates. The coun-
terparties to these contracts consist of major financial
institutions and organized exchanges. NYNEX contin-
ually monitors its positions and the credit ratings of
its counterparties and limits the amount of contracts
it enters into with any one party. While NYNEX may
be exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperfor-
mance by these counterparties, it does not anticipate
such losses, due to the aforementioned control proce-
dures. The settlement of these transactions is not
expected to, but may, have a material effect upon
NYNEX's financial position or results of operations.

A desctiption of NYNEX's financial instruments is
presented in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
on pages 20-22.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents the carrying amounts
and fair values of NYNEX's financial mstruments at
December 31, 1995 and 1994, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” defines fair
value as the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between will-
ing parties, other than a forced liquidation or sale.

1995 1994
Carrying Fair | Carrying Fair
{In millions) Amount Value | Amount Value

Non-Derivatives:
Long-term investments:
Practicable to

estimate fair value |$ 492.1 $1,055.8 |§ 492.2  § 990.8

Mot practicable 1,296.6 1,296.6(1,2000 1,206.0
Long-term debt 7.336.3 7,712917,7146 70835
Derivatives:"

Assets 114 18.2| 118 183

Liabilities (36.9) (50.0) (7.5) (100.5)

*The carrying ameunts in the table are inchuded in Deferred charges and
other assets, Other currant lisbilities, and Other long-term liabilities #nd
deferred credits.

The fair value of the derivative contracts includes
the remaining unamortized costs of foreign exchange
hedges, which are ($34.9) and ($43.6) million for
1995 and 1994, respectively. These values reflect the
implicit incremental borrowing costs assoclated with
NYNEX’s overseas investments in the United
Kingdom and Thailand. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of
each type of financial instrument for which estima-
tion was practicable.

Long-term investments

The estimated fair value of some investments
accounted for under the cost method is based on
quoted market prices for those or similar investments.
For other investrents for which there are no quoted
market prices, a reasonable estimate of fair market
value could not be made without incurring excessive
costs. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value
of NYNEX's investment in the Viacom Preferred or
NYNEX's investments in untraded entities because of
the nature of the investments. Accordingly, the carry-
ing value is presented as the fair value.
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Long-term debt

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is based
on quoted market prices or discounted future cash
flows using the weighted average coupon rate and
current interest rates.

Derivatives

The estimated fair value of most derivatives is based
on amounts NYNEX would receive or pay to termi-
nate such agreements taking inta account current
mid-market rates. The estimated fair value of the
basis swaps is based on the amounts NYNEX would
pay to replicate such agreements taking into account
current rates.

a Additional Financial Information

{In miilicns) 1985 1994 1593
Taxes other than income:

Property $ 35083 3519 $ 3996
Gross receipts 508.2 495.3 500.1
Payrol]-related 65.9 65.4 65.1
Other 81.7 80.6 74.1
Total $1,015.6(|% 993.2 $1,0389
December 31, {In millions) 1993 1694
Accounts payable:

Trade $ 081.4)$1,146.5
Taxes 118.3 97.9
Compensated absences 310.2 3059
Dividends 255.8 2499
Payroll 129.5; 1313
Interest 131.8 125.6
Other ! 9752 611.1
Total $2,002.2| §2,608.2

Other current liabilities:
Advance billings and
customers’ deposits

$ 2815/% 2013

Deferred income taxes 6.3 1.1
Other 2959 761.1
Total $ 583.7|$1,053.5

Total research and development costs charged to
expense for 1995, 1994 and 1993 were $279.1,
$159.7 and $162.8 million, respectively.

In 1095, 1994 and 1993, AT&T Corp. (“AT&T")
provided approximately 14%, 15% and 16%, respec-
tively, of NYNEX’s total operating revenues, primarily
Network access reventes and Other revenues from
billing and collection services performed by the tele-
phore subsidiaries for AT&T.

Telesector Resources owns a one-seventh interest in
Bell Communications Research, Inc. (“Bellcore”).
Bellcore furnishes technical and support services to
NYNEX relating to exchange telecommunications
and exchange access services. For 1995, 1994 and
1993, NYNEX recorded charges of $93.8, $112.2
and $128.5 million, respectively, in connection with
these services.

“ Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following information is provided in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows'":

Decernber 31, (In millions} 1985 1594 1993
Income tax payments |$ 4783 | $510.4 $50L8
$ 7407 | $6300 $623.6

Interest payments

Nen-cash transactions:

Additions to property,
plant and equipment
under capital lease
chligations $ 3

Contribution of certain
cellular net assets in
exchange for an
equity investment in
Bell Atlantic
NYNEX Mobile cellular
partnership (see Note F) | $ 61161 § - § —

Common Stock issued for
dividend reinvestment
and stock purchase plan i
and stock compensation :

plans $ 1102 $107.1 § 296

Short-term debt classified

as Long-term debt
{see Note H)

$ 106 $§ —

$19394] § $ 588.6

——
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E Revenues Subject to Possible Refund

Several state and federal regulatory matters,
including affiliate transaction issues in New York
Telephone's 1990 intrastate rate case ($188.0 mil-
lion), may possibly require the refund of a portion of
the revenues collected in the current and prior peri-
ods. As of Decemnber 31, 1995, the aggregate amount
of such revenues that was estimated to be subject to
possible refund was approximately $260.7 million,
plus related interest. The outcome of each pending
matter, as well as the time frame within which each
will be resolved, is not presently determinable.

n Business Restructuring
In 1995 and 1994, $514.1 and $693.5 miltion,

respectively, of pretax pension enhancement charges
were recorded. These charges are a portion of an
estimated $2.0 billion of pretax charges to be record-
ed for pension enhancements as employees leave
NYNEX through retirement incentives. The pension
enhancement charges were included in the
Consolidated Statements of Income as Selling,
general and administrative,

In the fourth quarter of 1993, $2.1 billion of pretax
business restructuring charges were recorded, pri- v
marily related to efforts to redesign operations and

work force reductions, These charges include:

$1.1 billion for severance and postretirement medical

costs; $626 million for re-engineering service deliv-

ery; $283 million for sale or discontinuance of

information product and services businesses; and

$106 million for restructuring at other nontelephone

subsidiaries. The restructuring charges were included

in the Consolidated Statements of Income as follows:

Maintenance and support — $192 million;

Marketing and customer services - $53 million; i
Selling, general and administrative — $1.8 billion; f
and Other income (expense) — net - $31 million. :

E Litigation and Other Contingencies

Various legal actions and regulatory proceedings

are pending that may affect NYNEX. While counsel
cannot give assurance as to the outcome of any of
these matters, in the opinion of Management based
upon the advice of counsel, the ultimate resolution
of these matters in future periods is not expected

to have a material effect on NYNEX’s financial
position but could have a material effect on annual
operating results.
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Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Far the quatter ended

{In millions, except per share amounts) March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
1995

Cperating revenues $ 3,354.2 $ 3,495.6 % 32528 $ 3,304.3
Qperating income $ 573.0 $ 396.7 § 6279 $ 4946
Earnings before extraordinary item $ 250.2 $ 2408 $ 3429 $ 2356

Extracrdinary item for the discontinuance
of regulatory accounting principles,

net of taxes $ — $(2,919.4) $ — $ —
Net income (loss) $ 2502 $(2,678.6) $ 3429 $ 2356
Farnings per share before

extraordinary item $ .59 $ .58 % 80 $ 35
Extraordinary item per share $ — $( 6.84) $ — $ —
Earnings (loss) per share $ .59 $( 628 $ .80 $ .55
Dividends per share $ 59 $ 59 $ .59 3 5%
Market price:*

High $ 41.500 $ 43.125 $ 48.750 $ 54.000

Low $ 35.875 $ 39.375 $ 39.250 $ 46,000
1954
Operating revenues $ 32733 $ 33116 $ 3,330.8 $ 3,300.9
(Qperating income $ 5955 $ 1292 $ 5830 $ 4485
Net income § 2006 $ 1.2 $ 3025 $ 1983
Earnings per share $ 70 $ — $ 72 $ 47
Dividends per share 3 .59 $ 59 $ .59 $ .39
Market price:*

High § 41.375 $ 39.750 $ 36125 $ 39750

Low $ 34250 $ 33.250 % 35.625 $ 36.250

* Market price obtained from the New York Stock Exchange-Uompesite Transactions Index,

Results for the firat, second, third and fourth quarters of 1995 include $83.8, $165.9, $38.0 and $226.4 millicn, respectively, of pretax
charges for pension enhancements, which were reflected in operating expenses. The after-tax effect of these charges was $53.8, $106.2,
$23.7 and $143.1 million, respeatively.

Results for the second quarter of 1995 include the effects of the discontinuance of regulatory accounting principles, recorded as an extraordi-
nary itern [see Note BJ: a $264.1 million ($155.1 million after-tax) “Gain on sale of stock by subsidiary” related to an initial public offering
of equity in NYNEX CableComms (see Note [1; and $210.5 million ($155.0 million after-tax] of special charges to meet various tax, benefit
and legal obligations and contingencies, $199.0 million of which was included in operating expenses and $11.5 million of which was in
Other incorne [expense) - net. Results for the third quarter of 1993 include a $123.8 million {$65.8 million after-tax) net gain resulting pri-
marily from the sale of certain NYNEX Mobile assets and actuarial changes associated with BANM, and $102.6 million ($66.0 million
after-tax) of special charges to meet various tax and legal obligations and contingencies. The third quarter pretax effect was distributed as fal-
lows: 2 $62.0 million gain in Other income {expense] - net, $39.0 million in operating expenses, and $1.8 million in interest expense.
Results for the fourth quarter of 1905 include a net $33.8 million of pretax credits in operating expenses ($22.0 million after-tax) primarily
due to revised estimates associated with benefit aceruals, and a $13.7 million ($8.9 millinn after-tax) reduction in Interest expense on the
revenue set asicle as ordered by the NYSPSC, partially offset by a $15.0 million {$9.7 million after-tax) charge in operating expenses for a
gross receipts tax settlement and a $17.4 million charge in Other income (expense] - net for an unrealized mark to market valaation adjust-
ment on a financial instrument.

In the third quarter of 1995, NYNEX decansolicated certain assets and liabilities of NYNEX Mobile, in exchange for an equity interest in BANM
(see Note F}. For the third and fourth quarters of 1995, NYNEX's interest in BANM is reported under the equity method. Results for the first
quarter of 1995 include N¥YNEX Mobile aperating revenues and operating expenses of $189.3 and $174.5 million, respectively. Results for the
second quarter of 1993 include NYNEX Mobile operating revenues and operating expenses of $210.5 and $161.7 million, respactively.

In the third quarter of 1995, there was a change in the presentation of gross receipts taxes that were collected from customers. In the first two

quarters of 1093, these taxes were included in operating revenues and expenses, In the last two quarters, as a result of a tax law change, these
taxes were no longer required to be collected.

Results far the second, third and fourth quarters of 1994 include $446.3, $31.2 and $213.0 million, respectively, of pretax charges for pension en-
hancerments, which were reflected in operating expenses. The after-tax effect of these charges was $291.5, $20.5 and $140.8 million, respectively.

Results for the fourth quarter of 1994 include $51.9 million of pretax credits to pension and medical expense associated with plan amend -
ments and favorable plan experience, and $30.1 million for research tax credits and federal and state tax credits, partially offset by 2 $10.8
miliion pretax charge for costs associated with planned exits from media communication ventures. The total pretax effect was distributed as
follows: a $41.8 million benefit in operating expenses, a $30.1 millivn benefit in income taxes and a $0.7 million charge in Other income
(expense) - net. The after-tax effect of these net lsenefits was an increase in net inceme of $55.9 million, of which $1.2 million was applicable
to the fourth quarter.

For farther discussion of these items, see Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Notice of Annual Meeting
of Share Owners

The 1996 Annual Meeting of Share Qwners of
NYNEX Corporation will be held at

the John Hancock Hall, 180 Berkeley Street,

Boston, Massachusetts, on Wednesday, May 1, 1996
at 10:30 a.m., for the following purposes:

» To elect four Directors;

* To ratify the appointment of auditors to audit
NYNEX's consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal year 1996;

* To approve changes in the NYNEX Non-Employee
Director Compensation Program; and

* T act upon such other matters, including three
Share Owner proposals regarding the classified Board
of Directors, charitable contributions, and cumulative
voting, as may properly come before the meeting.

Holders of record of shares of Common Stock of
NYNEX at the close of business on Monday,
March 18, 1996 will be entitled to vote at the
meeting and any adjournment thereof.

/7%% . ki

Morrison DeS. Webb
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

March 18, 1996

Your Vote is Important

Whether or not you intend to be present at the
meeting, please sign and date the enclosed proxy and
return 1t in the enclosed prepaid envelope.
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moting of Shares

Proxy Statement

This proxy statement and the accompanying proxy
voting instruction card (“proxy card”) are being
mailed, beginning March 18, 1996, to owners of
shares of Common Stack (“Shares”) of NYNEX
Corporation (“NYNEX”) in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors
(“Board”) for the 1996 Annual Meeting of Share
Owners (“Meeting”) in Boston, Massachusetts. This
proxy procedure is necessary because many of
NYNEX's Share Owners, wha live throughout the
United States and in many foreign countries, will not
be able to attend the Meeting. Proxies are solicited
to give all Share Qwners an opportunity to vote.
Shares can be voted at the Meeting only if the Share
Owner is represented by proxy or is present in per-
son (see ‘'Voting of Shares” below).

If you plan to attend the meeting, please mark the
appropriate box on the proxy card, detach and return
in the envelope provided, and retain the accompany-
ing admission ticket. Beneficial owners can obtain
admission at the door by presenting a legal proxy or
other proof of ownership, such as a bank or broker
account statement, the day of the Meeting. No Share
Owner will be permitted into the Meeting without a
ticket or proper identification.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you
plan to attend the Meeting, you are urged to
execute and return the accompanying proxy
card as soon as possible to ensure your represen-
tation. If you do attend, you may vote by ballot
at the Meeting, thereby canceling any proxy
vote previously given,

Share Owners who are recelving more than one
Annual Report may discontinue mailing of the
duplicate copies by marking the appropriate box on
the proxy card of the selected accounts. This will
help reduce the expense of printing and mailing
duplicate materials but will not affect the mailing of
dividend checks, dividend reinvestment statements,
special notices and proxy materials.

|Voting of Shares

The holders of a majority of the outstanding Shares
entitled to vote, present in person or represented by
proxy, will constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. Each Share represented is entitled to one
vote on all matters properly brought before the
Meeting. Where a quorum is present, the vote of the
holders of a majority of Shares present in person or
by proxy and entitled to vote will decide any ques-
tion voted upon, and the four nominees for Director

receiving the highest number of votes will be elected
as Directors. For purposes of determining whether a
proposal has received a majority of those Shares enti-
tled to vote, abstentions will be included in the vote
totals with the result that an abstention has the same
effect as a negative vote. In instances where brokers
are prohibited from exercising discretionary authority
for beneficial owners who have not returned a proxy
(so-called “broker non-votes”), those Shares will not
be included in the vote totals and, therefore, will
have no effect on the vote.

When proxies are returned properly executed, the
Shares represented will be voted by the Proxy
Clommittee of the Board in accordance with Share
Owners' directions. You are urged to specify your
choices by marking the appropriate boxes on the
enclosed proxy card. If the proxy is executed and
returned without specifying choices, the Shares will
be voted by the Proxy Committee as recommended
by the Board of Directors. A Share Owner giving a
proxy has the power to revoke it at any time before it
is voted at the Meeting by submitting a written revo-
cation to NYNEX or by attending the Meeting and
voting by ballot at the Meeting.

A Share Owner wishing to give a proxy to someone
other than the Proxy Committee should cross out all
three committee members’ names appeating on the
enclosed proxy card and insert the name(s) of another
persan or persons (not more than three). In addition,
the “Vote Limitations” box should be marked. The
executed proxy must be returned as indicated or pre-
sented at the Meeting by the Share Owner or the
person(s) representing the Share Qwner.

For a Share Owner who is a participant in the
NYNEX Corporation Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan, the proxy card represents the
number of full Shares in the participant’s Dividend
Reinvestment Plan account as well as Shares regis-
tered in the participant’s name. For a Share Owner
who is a participant in the NYNEX Corporation
Savings Plan for Salaried Employees or the NYNEX
Coorporation Savings and Security Plan (Non-Salaried
Employees), the proxy will serve as a voting instruc-
tion for the trustees of those Plans. If proxies
representing Shares in the NYNEX Corporation
Savings Plan for Salaried Employees or the NYNEX
Corporation Savings and Security Plan (Non-Salaried
Employees) are not executed and returned, those
Shares will be voted by the trustees in the same pro-
portion as the Shares for which executed proxies are
returned by other participants.

In accordance with NYNEX's Policy on Confidential
Voting, proxies, ballots and voting tabulations are
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Stock Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers/Board of Directors H

available for examination only by the independent
Inspector(s) of Election and tabulators. The vote of
any Share Owner cannot be disclosed to the Board of
Directors or managerment of NYNEX except as may be
required by law and in other limited circumstances.

A list of Share Owners eligible to vote will be avail-
able for examination by Share Owners for any
purpose germane to the Meeting at 185 Franklin
Street, Boston, Massachusetts, from April 17 through
April 30, 1996, and at the John Hancock Hall on the

day of the Meeting.
|Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Holders and Management

On January 31, 1996, there were 435,932,086 Shares of NYNEX Common Stock outstanding. The following table
sets forth information as of January 31, 1996 (except as otherwise noted), relating to beneficial ownership of
Shares by (i) each person known by NYNEX to awn beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding Shares of
NYNEX Common Stock, (if} each Director, {iii) each of the named Executive Officers and (iv) all Directors and

Executive Officers as a group:

Total Number  Bhares Subject to Options  Percent

of Sharesth {included in total @ of Clazs
FMR Corp., 82 Devonshire Street, Boston, MA 02109 30,286,289 N/A 7.053)
John Brademas 1,300 0 "
Randolph W. Bromery 1,020 0 *
Richard L., Carrion 125 0 .
Laodewijk J.R. de Vink 43 0 *
Stanley P. Goldstein 2,500 0 *
Richard A. Jalkut 175,229 146,661 *
Helene L. Kaplan 2.500 4] *
Elizabeth T, Kennan 1,345 0 ¥
Edward E. Phillips 1,851 Q »
Hugh B, Price 42 0 *
Donald B. Reed 95,431 83,795 *
Frederic V., Salerna 218,660 177,786 *
Ivan G. Seidenberg 206,223 164,731 *
Alan Z. Senter 54,6574 38,858 *
Walter V. Shipley 2,500 0 *
John R. $tafford 4,200 0 *
All Executive Officers and Directors {as a group) 1,454,521 1,137,481 *

* Lens than 1% of outstanding Shares of NYNEX Coramen Stack,

(1) Except as utherwise noted, all persons listed in the table have sale voting und investment power with respect 1o their Shares,

(2) Shares subject to acquisition through exercise of stock options within 60 days.

(3) Based on Schedule 133G dated Pebruary 14, 1996, filed with the SEC by PMR Corp. The Schedule 13G filing was made on behalf of FMR Corp., Edward . Johnson 11,
Chairman of FMR Gorp., and who, together with farnily members and trusts, represents a controllng group of FPMR Corp., Fidelity Management & Rescearch Company

["FMRC"), a wholly ewned subsidiary of FMR Corp., Fidelity Management Trust Cornp:
International Limnited (“FIL"), an inclependent Bermudian joint stock company alfiliu

any ("FMTC"), = wholly owned subsidiary o FMR Corp., and Fidelity
2d with Mr. Joboson and members of his family. The Schecule 13C reports that

as of December 31, 1995: FMR Corp. had sole voting power with respect to 2,986,280 Shares, shared voting power with respect to no Shares, role

dispositive power with respect 1o 30,266,284 Shares and shared dispositive power with respect to no Shares; Mr. [ohnson had sole dispositive power with respect 1o
30,296,289 Shares, shared dispositive power with respect to no Shares, sole votng power with respect to 2,986,280 Shares and shared voting power with respect to no
Shares; FMRC was the beneficial owner of 25,800,109 Shares as 4 result of acting as investrnent advisor W certain investment companies; FMTC was the heneficial
owner of 4,204,130 Shares as & result of serving as investment manager of certain institutional aceounts; and FIL was the heneficial owner of 292,050 Shares us the
result of providing investment advisory and management services to a mumber of non-i".5, investmen| cumpanies and certaln institutional investors.

4 Includes Shares held in the NYNEX Corporatian Savings Tlan for Salaried Employees.

NYNEX has instituted stock ownership guidelines for
all Executive Officers and Directors. These guidelines
require ownership (subject to certain transition
requirements) of NYNEX Common Stock equal to
three times annual salary for the Chief Executive
Officer; two times annual salary far a Vice Chairman
and those Executive Officers reporting directly to the
Chief Executive Officer; and one times annual salary
for all other Executive Officers. Directors are expected
to hold throughout their tenure a minimum of 1,000
Shares, to be acquired over a period of not longer
than three years.

|Board of Directors

"The business of the Corporation is conducted by
management under the direction of the Board of

Directors, Although Directors are not involved in
day-to-day operating details, they are kept informed
of NYNEX's business by various reports and docu-
ments given to them regularly, as well as by operating
and financial reports presented by the Chairman of
the Board and other Officers at meetings of the Board
of Directors and coramittees of the Board,

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors are held
each month, excluding August, and special meetings
are called when required. The Board of Directors
held fourteen meetings in 1995. On average, the
Directors attended approximately 93% of the aggre-
gate number of meetings of the Board of Directors
and committees of the Board; no Director attended
fewer than 75% of such meetings.
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The Board of Directors has adopted a tenure policy
for Directors which establishes 70 as the retirement
age for non-employee Directors, as well as for any
Director who was the Corporation’s Chief Executive
Officer. A Director who reaches retirement age shall
retire from the Board not later than the next Annual
Meeting, regardless of any unexpired term of office.
The policy also provides that a non-employee
Director who discontinues his or her principal
employment, business or professional relationship, or
continues in a less responsible capacity, shall offer to
submit his ar her resignation, but may, at the

request of the Chairman of the Board, following con-

sultation with the Nominating and Board Affairs
Committee, continue as a Director. A Director who
is an Officer of the Corporation (other than the
Chief Executive Officer) shall resign at the same
time as he or she ceases to be an Officer.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has established six standing
committees: an Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Committee on Benefits, Nominating and
Board Affairs Committee, Finance Committee and
Public Responsibility Committee.

The Executive Committee, composed of one
employee Director and three non-employee
Directors, has responsibility for activities in those
areas not assigned to other committees of the Board
of Directors and may exercise the full power and
authority of the Board of Directors to the extent per-
mitted by Delaware law. The Executive Committee
held no meetings in 1995.

The Audit Committee, composed of six non-
employee Directors, is responsible for
recommending to the Board of Directors the
accounting firm to be employed by NYNEX as its
independent auditors. The Audit Committee's
duties include consulting with NYNEX's indepen-
dent auditors concerning the scope of the audit and
reviewing the audit results. The Audit Comnmittee
also consults with the independent auditors with
regard to the adequacy of internal controls and
meets with appropriate corporate personnel to
review internal auditing programs and findings. In
1995, the Audit Committee held six meetings.

The Committee on Benefits, composed of four non-
employee Directors, is responsible for reviewing and
approving for presentation to the Board of Directors
compensation for Officers who are members of the
senior management compensation group (“Senior
Managers”), administering the NYNEX management
incentive plans, keeping informed as to the adminis-

tration and management of NYNEX's employee
benefit plans, and insuring that the actions of
Officers and benefit plan administrators are in the
best interest of the participants in, and beneficiaries
of, such benefit plans. The Committee on Benefits
also approves or disapproves the presentation of pro-
posed new trusteed employee benefit plans and
material changes to such benefit plans to the Board
of Directors and, further, recommends to the Board
of Directors new benefit plans and programs, and
amendments thereto, which exclusively benefit Senior
Managers. No member of the Committee on Benefits
is eligible to receive benefits under any of such
benefit plans, The Committee on Benefits met on
five occasions in 1995.

The Nominating and Board Affairs Committee, com-
posed of three non-employee Directors, makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors concern-
ing the selection of candidates as nominees for
election as Directors and advises on all directorship
practices. In recommending candidates for the Board
of Directors, the committee seeks individuals who
have the experience and expertise which will allow
them to contribute significantly to NYNEX's success.
The committee’s goal is to create a Board that is
diverse and balanced in its membership, consistent
with NYNEX's equal employment opportunity policy.
NYNEX Directors must have integrity and indepen-
dence and be willing to represent all Share Cwners
rather than a special interest or constituency.
Directors must also be willing to commit the neces-
sary time and energy to prepare for, attend and
participate in Board and committee meetings. The
Nominating and Board Affairs Committee held four
meetings in 1995, Share Owners who wish to suggest
qualified candidates should write to the Secretary of
NYNEX Corporation at 1095 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, New York 10036, stating in detail the
qualifications of such persons for consideration by the
Nominating and Board Affairs Commuttee.

Compensation of Directors

Directors who are not employees receive an annual
retainer fee of $30,000 and a fee of $1,500 for each
Board and committee meeting attended. Non-
employee Directors who serve as chairpersons of the
committees of the Board receive an additional annual
retainer fee of $5,000. Non-employee Directors may
elect to defer the receipt of all or a part of their fees
and retainers. Currently, amounts so deferred earn
interest, compounded quarterly, at a rate equal to the
average interest rate for ten-year United States
Treasury notes for the previous quarter.
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At the Meeting, Share Owners will be asked to
approve certain changes to non-employee Director
compensation which were adopted by the Board of
Directors on December 21, 1995, These changes
(which are detailed in this proxy statement, begin-
ning on page 58) will affect the manner of payment
of the annual retainer and pension benefits of the
nan-employee Directors.

Currently, under the NYNEX Stock Plan for Non-
Employee Directors, each non-employee Director is
granted 100 shares of NYNEX Common Stock on an
annual basis, Non-employee Directors elected by the
Board ¢o fill vacancies and newly created director-
ships in the interim between Annual Meetings
receive a prorated grant based upon the number of
full or partial months such Director will serve
between his or her election and the next Annual
Meeting, A committee of the Board, consisting of not
more than three Directors (or such lesser number as
there may be from time to time) who are not eligible
to receive grants, administers and interprets the plan.

Non-employee Directors are entitled to reimburse-
ment for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with attendance at Board of Directors
and committee meetings. In addition, NYNEX
provides non-employee Directors with travel accident
insurance when on NYNEX business. The total

cost of the travel accident insurance policy for 1995
was approximately $1,900.

Under the current NYNEX Non-Employee Director
Pension Plan (pending amendment subject to Share
Owner approval at the Meeting), each non-employee
Director who serves on the Board of NYNEX, or any
of its subsidiaries, and retires from the NYNEX Board
with a minimum of five years’ combined service on
such Boards as a non-employee Director qualifies for a
yearly pension equal to 50% of the Dhirector’s annual
refainer fee (excluding the retainer received for chairing
a committee of the Board). Pension payments increase
by 10% of the annual retainer fee for each additional
year served up to 100% of such fee. The pension

is adjusted to reflect the first subsequent increase, if
any, in the annual retainer for service on the Board fol-
lowing the Director’s retirement. Such pension is
payable to a qualified Director upon (i) retirement from
the NYNEX Beard and (i) the attainment of age 65.

Directors are eligible to participate in the Directors’
Charitable Award Program, which is designed to
acknowledge the service of Directors and to recognize
the mutual interest of NYNEX and its Directors in
supporting worthy educational and charitable institu-
tions. Under the program, NYNEX will contribute up

to $1 million to tax-exempt organization(s) designated
by a Director, payable over a ten-year period, on
behalf of a participating Director who retires or
attains age 65 (whichever occurs later) after five years
of service on the Board of NYNEX, or dies or
becomes disabled while serving as a Director, All
charitable deductions accrue to NYNEX and the indi-
vidual Directors derive no financial benefit from the
program, NYNEX has purchased life insurance on the
Directors, naming NYNEX as beneficiary, which is
expected to recover the costs of contributions and the
premium payments.

Directors who are also employees of NYNEX or
one of its subsidiaries receive no remunetation for
serving as Directors.

[Election of Directors
{(Ttem A on Proxy Card)

The Board of Directors consists of thirteen mem-
bers, divided into three classes, with the terms of
each class staggered so that the term of cne class
expires at each Annual Meeting of Share Owners.
Mr. William C. Ferguson, former Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of NYNEX
{1989-1995) and a Director since 1987, retired as a
Director on December 31, 1995, and the Board was
reduced to its present number, On May 1, 1996,
Dr. Randolph W. Bromery, a Director since 1986,
will retire in accordance with the previously
described tenure policy, and it is anticipated that
the Board of Directors will be reduced on that occur-
rence to twelve members.

The terms of Directors in one class, consisting of
four Directors, expire at the 1996 Annual Meeting.
Unless otherwise instructed on the proxy card, the
Proxy Committee intends to vote for the election of
the four nominees to three-year terms expiring at the
1999 Annual Meeting, in each case subject to the
tenure policy described on page 54. These nominees
have been selected by the Board on the recommen-
dation of the Nominating and Board Affairs
Committee, If any nominee becomes unable or
unwilling to serve at the time of the Meeting, the
Shares represented by proxy will be voted for the
remaining nominees and for any substitute nomi-
nee(s) designated by the Board. The Board of
Directors does not anticipate that any nominee will
be unavailable to serve,

The following sets forth information regarding prin-
cipal occupation, other major affiliations, NYNEX
committee memberships and age, for the four nomi-
nees and each Director continuing in office.
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INominees for Election at this Meeting

Class ITI-Terms expiring at 1999 Annual Meeting

Lodewijk J.R. de Vink, President and Chief Operating Officer of Warner-Lambert
Company since 1991; Executive Vice President (1990-1991). Directar of Warner-
Lambert Company. Director of NYNEX since July 20, 1995; member of Committee on
Benefits. Age 51.

Helene L. Kaplan, Of Counsel to the firm of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom
since 1990. Director of The May Department Stores Company, Chemical Banking
Corporation, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company and Mobil Corporation. Director of
NYNEX since 1060; member of Committee on Benefits and Public Responsibility
Committee. Age 62.

Hugh B. Price, President and Chief Executive Officer of the National Urban League
since 1094 Vice President of Rockefeller Foundation (1988-1994). Director of
Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Director of NYNEX since December 1, 1995;
member of Audit Committee and Public Responsibility Committee. Age 54.

Ivan G. Seidenberg, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of NYNEX
since April 1, 1995; President and Chief Executive Officer ( January-March, 1995); Chief
Operating Officer (March-December, 1994); Vice Chairman of the Board (1991-1995);
Fxecutive Vice President and President of NYNEX Worldwide Information and Cellular
Services Group (1990-1991). Director of AlliedSignal Inc., Melville Corporation and
Viacom Inc. Director of NYNEX since 1991; Chairperson of Executive Committee. Age 49.

|Incumbent Members of Board of Directors

Class I-Terms expiring at 1997 Annual Meeting

John Brademas, President Emeritus, New York University since 1992; President (1981-
1992}, Director of Loews Corporation, Texaco Inc. and Scholastic, Inc. Director of
NYNEX since 1991; member of Audit Committee and Public Responsibility Commuttee.
Age 69,

Elizabeth T. Kennan, President Emeritus, Mount Holyoke College since June 1995;
President (1978-1995). Director of Northeast Utilities, Kentucky Home Mutual Life
Insurance Company, Kentucky Home Life Insurance Company, Putnam Funds, Inc. and
Talbots Inc. Director of NYNEX since 1984; member of Nominating and Board Affairs
Committee and Chairperson of Audit Committee. Age 58.

T VS ———
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Nominees for Election at this Meeting —H

Class II =Terms expiring at 1998 Annual Meeting

Frederic V. Salerno, Vice Chairman of the Board-Finance and Business Development L
of NYNEX since 1994; President of NYNEX Worldwide Services Group, Ine. (1991- :
1994); President and Chief Executive Officer of New York Telephone Company (1987-

1991}, Director of Avnet Inc., Qrange and Rockland Utilities, Inc., The Bear Stearns

Companies Inc. and Viacom Inc. Director of NYNEX since 1991; member of Finance

Committee. Age 52.

John R. Stafford, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of
American Home Products Corporation since 1986 (for the period 1990-1993 did not hold
the additional title of President). Director of AlliedSignal Inc., Chemical Banking
Corporation and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. Director of NYNEX since 1989,
member of Finance Committee and Chairperson of Committee on Benefits. Age 58.

Richard L. Carrion, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of
BanPonce Corporation (bank helding company) since 1990. Director of NYNEX since
February 16, 1995; member of Audit Committee and Committee on Benefits. Age 43.

Stanley P. Goldstein, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Melville
Clorporation since 1987; President {1985-1993). Director of NYNEX since 1990; member
of Audit Committee and Finance Committee. Age 61.

Edward E. Phillips, Retited. Chairman of the Board of New England Mutual Life
Insurance Company (1978-1993); Chief Executive Officer (1978-1991). Director of New
England Mutual Life Insurance Company and New England Investment Companies.
Director of NYNEX since 1983; member of Executive Committee, Finance Committee
and Chairperson of Nominating and Board Affairs Committee. Age 68.

Walter V. Shipley, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Chemical
Banking Corporation since 1994; President (1992-1993); Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer {1983-1991). Dhrector of Champion International Corporation
and The Reader’'s Digest Association, Inc. Director of NYNEX since 1983; member of
Executive Committee, Nominating and Board Affairs Committee and Chairperson of
Finance Committee. Age 6.
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[Ratification of Appointment of Auditors

{(Item B on Proxy Card}

Subject to Share Owner ratification, the Board of
Directors, upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has reappointed the firm of Coopers &
Lybrand L.L.P. (“Coopers & Lybrand"), Certified
Public Accountants, as independent auditors to audit
the consolidated financial statements of NYNEX for
the fiscal year 1996. Coopers & Lybrand has audited
NYNEX’s financial statements since NYNEX's incor-
poration in 1983,

One or more representatives of Coopers & Lybrand
are expected to be present at the Meeting, They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they so
desire and will be available to respond to appropri-
ate questions.

If Share Owners do not ratify the appointment of
Coopers & Lybrand, other certified public accoun-
tants will be considered by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote

FOR ratification.

Directors’ Proposalto Approve
Changes in the Non-Employee
Director Compensation Program

(Item C on Proxy Card}

Your Board of Directors recommends approval of
certain changes in the compensation program for
each member of the Board of Directors who is not
an Officer or employee of NYNEX or any of its
affiliates {“non-employee Directors”), currently
eleven in number.

On December 21, 1995, upon the recommendation
of NYNEX's management, the Board of Directors
approved and adopted, subject to Share Owner
approval, the NYNEX Corporation Non-Employee
Director Retainer Stock Plan {“Retainer Plan”) and
certain amendments to the NYNEX Corporation Non-
Employee Director Pension Plan (“Pension Plan™).
The Retainer Plan and the amended Pension Plan
will change the compensation program for non-
employee Directors by providing for (1) the
replacement of the NYNEX Stock Plan for Non-
Employee Directors {“Stock Plan”) with the annual
grant of 250 shares of NYNEX Common Stock
(“Shares”) as part of the annual Director retainer fee
under the Retainer Plan, effective May 1, 1596, (i1)
the automatic payment in Shares of 50% of the bal-
ance of the annual Director retainer fee, effective

May 1, 1996, (iii) at the Director's discretion, the
payment in Shares of the remaining 50% of such
annual Director retainer fee and/or 100% of the
annual committee chairperson retainer fee, effective
May 1, 1996, and (iv) the termination of future
benefits under the Pension Plan and the voluntary
conversion of a Director’s accrued benefits into
Shares, effective August 1, 1996, These changes are
designed to increase generally the portion of
non-employee Director compensation that is equity-
based, thereby aligning the Directors’ interests more
closely with those of the Share Owners.

Retainer Plan. The Retainer Plan is designed to
provide non-employee Directors with an additional
proprietary interest in NYNEX in a manner that is
competitive with compensation programs of other
major corporations. This should serve to promote
NYNEX'’s long term interests by attracting and
retaining qualified and experienced leaders of busi-
ness and other fields,

Under the Retainer Plan, 250 Shares will be granted
to each non-employee Director as part of his or her
annual retainer fee, provided that the initial grant
for the period July 1, 1996 through December 31,
1996 shall be 125 Shares. These Shares will replace
the Shares currently granted under the $tock Plan,
which will be terminated. In addition, (1} 50% of the
balance of the non-employee Director annual retain-
er fee, as determined from time to time by the
Board, will be paid automatically in Shares, and (i)
up to the remaining 50% of such annual retainer fee
and/or 100% of the Committee chairperson annual
retainer fee may be paid in Shares at the Director’s
election. Such election shall be effected by filing a
written notice with the Secretary of NYNEX and
shall be irrevocable with respect to the first payment
of retainer fees occurring more than six months after
the date of the election. Further, the election shall
continue in effect until terminated or modified by
written notice ta the Secretary.

Shares granted or paid under the Retainer Plan shall
be issued and delivered to each non-employee
Director in four installments on or as soon as practi-
cable after the dates that cash instaliments of their
annual retainer fee are scheduled to be paid. In
accordance with the terms of the NYNEX
Corporation Non-Employee Director Deferred
Compensation Plan, as amended (“Deferral Plan"),
each Director may make a prospective election to
defer the receipt of all or any pottion of the Shares
to be granted under the Retainer Plan. All deferred
compensation which would otherwise have been
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payable currently in Shares shall be credited to the
Directar’s account under the Deferral Plan, provided
that, in lieu of being so credited, compensation
payable in Shares may, in the sole discretion of the
Committee (described below), be issued to and held
by the NYNEX Corporation Non-Employee Director
Trust (“Trust”) for the period specified by the
Director in his or her deferral election.

The Retainer Plan will be administered and inter-
preted by a committee (“Committee”) which shall be
composed of three Directors (or such lesser number
of Directors as there may be from time to time), all
of whom are not eligible to receive grants or pay-
ments under the Retainer Plan. The total number of
Shares that may be granted under the Retainer Plan
may not exceed 300,000, subject to adjustments
deerned equitable by the Committee to prevent dilu-
tion or enlargement of rights resulting from a
recapitalization, stock split or other similar change in
the corporate structure or Shares outstanding. The
Shares may be authorized but unissued Shares or
Shares which have been or may be reacquired by
NYNEX, whether purchased in the open market

or otherwise.

The Board of Directors may at any time amend or
terminate the Retainer Plan, provided that no alter-
ation or amendment may be made which would
increase the number of Shares which may be granted
(except previously discussed equitable adjustments)
or change the category of Directors eligible under the
Retainer Plan.

Pension Plan. The purpose of the Pension Plan is to
reward for past services those non-employee Directors
whose loyalty and efforts have made significant contri-
butions to NYNEX. To qualify for a yearly pension
under the Pension Plan {prior to amendment by the
Board), each non-employee Director who serves on
the Board of NYNEX, or any of its subsidiaries, must
retire from the NYNEX Board with a minimum of
five years’ combined service on such Boards as a non-
employee Director. A Director with five years service
is entitled to a pension equal to 30% of the Directot’s
annual retainer fee {excluding the retainer received for
chairing a committee of the Board). Pension payments
increase by 10% of the annual retainer fee for each
additional year served up to 100% of such fee. The
pension is adjusted to reflect the first subsequent
Increase, if any, in the annual retainer for service on
the Board following the Director’s retirement. Such
pension is payable to a qualified Director upon (i)
retitement from the NYNEX Board and (ii) the attain-
ment of age 63,

The Pension Plan has been amended, subject to
Share Owrer approval, to terminate the accrual of
future benefits thereunder, effective August 1, 1996,
Effective that date, any non-employee Director who
has served as a non-employee Director on the Board
of NYNEX or on a subsidiary board for an apgregate
of at least five years will be given the option to con-
vert the present value of his or her benefits under
the Pension Plan into Shares. Except as described
below, the present value of the Directors’ benefit
shall be determined as of August 1, 1996,

If a Director makes the above described conversion
election, he or she shall not be entitled to any other
benefits under the Pension Plan. The election shall
be irrevocable and shall be made by filing a written
form with the Secretary of NYNEX prior to February
1, 1996. If a Director does not elect to convert his or
her accrued benefits into Shares, then he or she shall
receive a cash pension upon retirement from the
NYNEX Board and attainment of age 65 under the
terms of the Pension Plan prior to its amendment, If
a Director files the appropriate election form prior to
February 1, 1996 and retires from the Board prior to
August 1, 1996, the present value of his or her
benefits under the Pension Plan shall be determined
as of his or her retirement date.

If the Director makes the conversion election, the
number of Shares determined upon the conversion
shall be depasited by NYNEX with the Trust, The
trustees of the Trust will be directed to held the
Shares issued to the Trust, receive dividends there-
on, reinvest such dividends in additional Shares as
soon as practicable after the receipt of such divi-
dends and, pending such reinvestment, invest the
dividend proceeds in such a manner as the trustees
deem appropriate. The Director shall have the
authority to direct the trustees’ exercise of voting
rights with respect to Shares credited to the
Director’s account, but shall have no other rights
with respect to such Shares.

The Darector's conversion election shall also include
an election with respect to the distribution of Shares
held by the Trust upon the Director's ceasing to serve
on the NYNEX Board. Shares may be distributed
either in one payment, in up to ten approximately
equal annual installments, or in approximately equal
quarterly payments for a period of up to ten years.

The total number of Shares which may be granted
under the Pension Plan may not exceed 50,000,
subject to adjustments deemed equitable by the
Executive Committee of the Board to prevent
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dilution or enlargement of rights resulting from
recapitalization, stock split or other similar change in
the corporate structure or Shares outstanding. The
Shares granted under the Pension Plan may be
authorized but unissued Shares or Shares which have
been or may be reacquired by NYNEX, whether pur-
chased in the open market or otherwise.

The Pension Plan is administered and interpreted by
the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.
The Pension Plan may be modified or terminated at
any time, provided that no such modification or ter-
mination shall affect the rights of a Director to &
pension to which e or she had become entitled.
Cash payments under the Pension Plan are made
from the general assets of NYNEX and no assets are
earmarked in respect of any amount due thereunder.
Share payments are made from the Trust, subject to
the claims of NYNEX creditors.

The foregoing summary of each of the Retainer Plan
and the Pension Plan is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of such plan, a copy of
which has been filed with the Securities and
Fxchange Commission. Although approval of the
Retainer Plan and the amendments to the Pension
Plan by Share Owners is not required as a matter of
law, the Board of Directors believes that it is appro-
priate to give Share Owners the opportunity to vote
on matters of this kind, Share Qwner approval s a
condition of listing stock issued under the Retainer
Plan and the Pension Plan on the New York Stock
Exchange and will exempt the receipt of shares
issued under such plans from Section 16(b) of the
Securities Act of 1934. Approval of the Retainer
Plan and the amendments to the Pension Plan
requires the affirmative vote of the holders of the
majority of the Shares present, in person or by
proxy, and entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote
FOR this proposal.

|Share Owners’ Proposals

Proponents have stated they intend to have the
following proposals presented at the Meeting. The
proposals and supporting statements are quoted
below. Approval of a Share Owner Proposal serves
only as a recommendation to the Board of Directors
to take the necessary steps to initiate such action as
called for. The Board of Directors has concluded it
cannot support these proposals for the reasons given.

Share Owner Proposal 1:

Mrs. Fvelyn Y. Davis, Watergate Office Building,
2600 Virginia Avenue, N.W., Suite 215, Washington,
D.C. 20037, record owner of 120 shares of NYNEX
Common Stock, has stated that she intends to have
the following proposal presented at the Meeting.

“RESOLVED: ‘That the shareholders of NYNEX rec-
ommend that the Board of Directors take the
necessary steps to reinstate the election of directors
ANNUALLY, instead of the stagger system which
was recently adopted.™

The supporting statement by the proponent is:

“REASONS: ‘Until recently, directors of NYNEX
were elected annually by all shareholders.

“The great majority of New York Stock Exchange
listed corporations elect all their directors each year.

“This insures that ALL directors will be more
accountable to ALL shareholders each year and to
a certain extent prevents the self-perpetuation of
the Board.

“Last year the owners of 120,217,178 shares, repre-
senting approximately 37.3% of shares voting, voted
FOR this proposal.

‘If you AGREE, please mark your proxy FOR this
resolution,’”

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote
AGAINST this proposal.

The Board of Directors notes that the proponent has
submitted an identical proposal yearly, commencing
with the 1988 Annual Meeting. The Board of
Directors continues to believe, for reasons stated
below, that & classified board is in the best interests
of NYNEX and its Share Owners.

Currently, under NYNEX's Classified Board
Provision, the number of Directors in each class is
as nearly equal in number as possible, with each
Director serving for three years and with one class
being elected each year. This provision is similar to
those which have been adopted by the stockholders
of many major corporations. In the opinion of the
NYNEX Directors, a classified Board of Directors
facilitates continuity and stability of leadership and
policy by assuring that experienced personnel famil-
jar with NYNEX and its business will be on the
Board of Directors at all times. The classified Board
of Directors is also intended to prevent precipitous
changes in the composition of the NYNEX Board
and, thereby, serves to moderate those changes in




NYNEX Proxy Staternent

Share Owners' Proposals m

NYNEX policies, business strategies and operations
which the Board of Directors does not deem to be in
the best interests of NYNEX and its Share Owners.
Board classification 1s intended to encourage any per-
son seeking to acquire control of the Corporation to
initiate such an action through arm's-length negotia-
tions with management and the Board of Directors,
who are 1n a position to negotiate a transaction
which is fair to all NYNEX Share Owners.

If approved, the proposal would serve as a recommen-
dation to the Board of Directors to take the necessary
steps to reinstate the annual election of all Directors.
Such steps would include the repeal of the Classified
Board Provision in the NYNEX Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, which requires the affirmative vote of
fully 75% of the outstanding Shares entitled to vote at
a subsequent meeting of Share Owners.

Your Board of Directors urges that Share Owners
vote AGAINST this proposal.

Share Owner Proposal 2

Mr. Hans R. Reinisch, 155 West 68th Street,

New York, New York 10023, record owner of 800
shares of NYNEX Cemmon Stock, has submitted the
following proposal;

"RESOLVED: ‘That the NYNEX Corporation
specifically list in its annual report all donations and
contributions made to charitable and not-for-profit
organtzations by NYNEX and any subsidiaries, and
that the total amount contributed during the course of
the year be stated as a separate item in the financial
tables of the annual repart — especially since this is a
very large amount nearing the $20 million mark!"”

“SUPPORTING STATEMENT: ‘At recent annual
meetings a number of fellow shareholders strongly
supported my contention that a list of charitable
contributions could easily be printed on one page of
the annual report, except for smaller matching con-
tributions for employees’ donations, Despite the
usual misguided opposition by the Board of
Directors and management to this and other share-
holder resolutions, the number of shares voted in
favor of my resolution has neatly doubled during the
past few years,

‘On one hand NYNEX claims that its charitable con-
tributions are of vital importance to the corporation
because these donations enhance its standing in the
community and improve its public image! Why then
exclude this vital information from the annual report
and try to hide it from the shareholders?

'"Nevertheless, the Board and management continue
to claim that it would be too “costly” and “burden-
some” to provide only a one page listing of
contributions in the annual report. What utter non-
sense! In the annual report and other corporate
publications dozens of pages of photography and art
work are printed at far greater cost, providing no
particular useful information to shareholders or
potential investors.

‘And as to NYNEX's offer to send a listing of contri-
butions to shareholders requesting this information,
shareholders have communicated to me that either
they never received a response or that only a sum-
mary of the largest contributions was sent.

‘One particularly outrageous contribution made by
NYNEX and which the Board of Directors has refused
to explain for the past several years is why a senior
NYNEX officer was provided with a $100,000 dona-
tion upon her retirement to start her own foundation.
Unless there 15 full public disclosure questionable
donations will be made on an ongoing basis.

“Yet NYNEX refuses to contribute to Planned
Parenthood because its policies are too controversial.
Nevertheless, it is willing to support equally contro-
versial religious institutions which are strongly
opposed to a woman's right to choose.

‘No, it is not our intention to question each and
every contribution and decision made by the NYNEX
Foundation. However, under a veil of secrecy lasting
many years, a clear pattern of favoritism and ques-
tionable donations has emerged. Full disclosure in
the annual report may induce the Foundation to be
more even-handed and equitable in the distribution
of funds, which after all belong to the shareholders.

‘The $20 million distributed annually to charities in

behalf of NYNEX shareholders should be done more

equitably and better reflect the diversity of the share-
holders and customers of the corporation.

‘If the $20 million distributed annually to charities
in behalf of NYNEX and its shareholders, is so useful
for enhancing our public image and standing in the
community this information must be included in the
annual report!"”

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote
AGAINST this proposal.

The NYNEX contributions process is conducted in
an entirely open manner with full disclosure. The
Board has long recognized that contributions infor-
mation should be available to NYNEX Share Owners
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and NYNEX has made that information available.
However, the Annual Report to Share Owners is
intended to be a synopsis of business activity in a
given year rather than a detailed accounting. There-
fore, we have consistently highlighted and described
NYNEX's philanthropic programs and contributions
in a detailed Corporate Responsibility Report avail-
able to all Share Owners upon request, This report
describes the grant programs and the contribution
guidelines pursuant to which these programs are
selected. Moreover, specific listings of corporate con-
tributions are fully disclosed, as required, to federal
and state regulatory agencies and are available to the
public on request. The Board of Directors believes
that to o beyond the aforementioned policy, that

is, to provide detailed information to the over one
million NYNEX Share Owners, when not more than
a few hundred have expressed an interest, would not
be prudent or practical.

In 1995, the NYNEX family of companies made
charitable grants totaling approximately $19.5 mil-
lion, reflecting NYNEX's strong commitment to
corporate social responsibility. In addition, NYNEX
has instituted programs that encourage and recognize
employee participation in community service, result-
ing in many thousands of employee hours devoted
to charitable work without compensation. The Board
of Directors is justifiably proud of NYNEX's philan-
thropic efforts and will continue to share this
information with interested parties.

Your Board of Directors urges that Share Owners
vote AGATNST this proposal.

Share Owner Proposal 3:

Mr. John ]. Gilbert and Mrs, Margaret R. Gilbert,
29 Fast 64th Street, New York, New York 10121-
7043, co-trustees of family trusts holding 3,058 shares
of NYNEX Common Stack and owning of record an
additional 252 shares, and Ms. Edith Rudy and

Mr. Edward Rudy, owners of 413 shares of NYNEX
Common Stock, have stated that they intend to

have the following proposal presented at the Meeting:

“RESOLVED: ‘That the stockholders of NYNEX
Corporation, assembled in annual meeting in person
and by proxy, hereby request the Board of Directors
to take the steps necessary to provide for cumulative
voting in the election of directors, which means
each stockholder shall be entitled to as many votes
as shall equal the number of shares he or she owns
multiplied by the number of directors to be elected,
and he or she may cast all of such votes for a single
candidate, or any two or more of them as he or she
may see fit.'"

“REASONS: ‘A California law provides that all state
pension holdings and state college funds, invested in
shares must be voted in favor of cumulative voting
proposals, showing increasing recognition of the im-
portance of this democratic means of electing directors.

“The National Bank Act provides for cumulative
voting. In many cases companies get around it by
forming holding companies without cumulative vot-
ing. Banking authorities have the right to question
the capability of directors to be on banking boards.
In many cases authorities come in after and say the
director or directors were not qualified. We were
delighted to see the SEC has finally taken action to
prevent bad directors from being on boards of pub-
lic companies. The SEC should have hearings to
prevent such persons becoming directors before
they harm investors.

“We think cumulative voting is the answer to find
new directors for various committees.

‘Some recommendations have been made to carry out
the CERES 10 points. The 11th should be, in our
opinion, having cumulative voting and ending stag-
gered boards.

“When Alaska became a state it took away cumula-
tive voting over our objections. The Valdez oil spill
might have been prevented if environmental directors
were elected through cumulative voting, The huge
derivative losses might have also been prevented with |
cumulative voting. '

‘Many successful corporations have cumulative vot-
ing. Example, Penzoil defeated Texaco in that
famous case. Ingersoll-Rand also having cumulative
voting won two awards. Fortune magazine ranked it
second in its industry as “America's Most Admired
Corporations” and the Wall Street Transcript noted
“on almost any criteria used to evaluate manage-
ment, Ingersoll-Rand excels.” In 1994 and 1995 they
raised their dividend.

‘Lockheed-Martin, as well as VWR Corporation
now have a provision that if anyone has 40% of the
shares cumulative voting applies, it applies at the
latter company.

‘In 1995 American Premier adopted cumulative
voting. Allegheny Power Systems tried to take away
cumulative voting, as well as put in a stagger system,
and stockholders defeated it, showing stockholders
are interested in their rights.

‘If you agree, please mark your proxy for this resolu-
tion: otherwise it will automatically be cast against it,

ity

unless you have marked to abstain. |
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Your Board of Directors recommends a vote
AGAINST this proposal.

The Board of Directors believes that the present sys-
tem of electing Directors, in which those Directors
receiving a plurality of votes cast by the Share
Owners as a whole are elected, best represents the
interests of all NYNEX Share Quwners. Electing
Directors in this manner avoids the aggravated
conflicts that can occur in Board activities when a
Director is elected by a narrow constituency, which
cumulative voting rules would foster.

Cumulative voting is a device that can be used by
relatively small factions of Share Owners to elect a
Director through ‘stacking’ of their votes, Directors
elected in such a manner may have their loyalty and
judgement compromised and directed toward the
interests of the particular constituency responsible
for their election. This may lead to partisanship
among Directors and interfere with each Director's
fiduciary responsibility to act in the best interest of
all NYNEX Share Owners. Furthermore, cumulative
voting can be employed as a coercive tactic, such as
threatening to obtain Board representation, in an
effort to unduly influence management.

The majority of companies listed on the New York
Stock Exchange elect their directors in a fashion sim-
ilar to NYNEX. The Board of Directors believes that
the present electoral method is the most universally
accepted, appropriate and democratic practice avail-
able and should be retained.

Your Board of Directors urges that Share Owners
vote AGAINST this proposal.

Other Matters To Come
Before the Meeting

An address by the Chairman is planned, followed by
a general discussion period during which Share
Owners will have an opportunity to ask questions
about the business of NYNEX.

If any matter not described herein should come before
the Meeting, the Proxy Committee of the Board of
Directors will vote the Shares represented by it in
accordance with its best judgment. At the time this
proxy statement went to press, NYNEX knew of no
other matters which might be presented for Share
Owner action at the Meeting, with the exception

of matters omitted from this proxy statement pur-
suant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.

Submission of Director Nominations,
Proposals or Other Business
at Share Owner Meetings

Proposals intended for inclusion in next year's proxy
statement should be sent to the Secretary of NYNEX
Corporation, 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New
York, New York 10036, and must be received by
Novemnber 18, 1996.

Share Owners who do not submit proposals for
inclusion in the proxy statement but who intend to
present a proposal, nomination for Director, or other
business for consideration at any meeting of Share
QOwners are required to notify the Secretary of
NYNEX of their intentions and provide certain other
information in advance of such meeting, in accor-
dance with the procedures detailed in the NYNEX
By-Laws. Share Owners interested in making any
norination or proposal should request a copy of the
By-Laws from the Secretary of NYNEX.

Committee on Benefits Report
on Executive Compensation

To our Share Owners:

A primary role of the Committee on Benefits
("Committee") is to determine and oversee the
administration of compensation for NYNEX's
Executive Officers. In this capacity, the Committee is
dedicated to ensuring that NYNEX's compensation
policies and practices are used effectively to support
the achievement of NYNEX's short and long term
business objectives. In carrving out its responsibili-
ties, the Committee reviews the recommendations of
compensation consulting firms engaged by NYNEX.
There are several principles that guide the Committee
in its decision-making capacity. The Committee:

» Emphasizes a pay-for-performance philosophy,
ensuring that overall compensation paid to Executive
(Officers reflects the fulliliment of NYNEX's key goals.

s Reinforces the central importance of Share
Owner value creation through the use of several
key compensation plans, each of which provides
Executive Officers with value when Share Owners
realize corresponding gains.

» Encourages NYNEX stock ownership by Execu-
tive Officers with the objective of strengthening
the common interests of management and Share
Owners, thereby promoting the maximization of
Share Owner value.
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+ Targets executive compensation levels at rates that
are consistent with levels at comparable companies
(“Comparable Companies”), consisting of the siX
other Regional Holding Companies, as well as 123
large industrial companies with revenues in excess of
$1 billion, and 24 industrial companies with sales of
approximately $15 billion, selected by compensation
consulting firms advising the Committee.

» Maintains a total compensation perspective on
executive pay in judging the appropriateness of
rewards for NYNEX's Executive Officers.

In 1995, the Committee approved a completely new
compensation program for NYNEX's Executive
Officers. This program is characterized by long
intervals between salary adjustments; a strong and
direct connection between compensation and
NYNEX's stock price; a single, streamlined compen-
sation plan to replace the prior Executive and Senior
Management Short and Long Term Incentive Plans;
mandatory deferral of a portion of incentive earnings;
and an enhanced emphasis on stock options,

The Committee believes that the new compensation
program will serve as a powerful catalyst for directing
Executive Officer activities in support of NYNEX's
goal achievernent and that it will appropriately recog-
nize the contributions of the Executive Officer group.

Description of Executive Compensation Policies
It is NYNEX’s policy to target levels of Executive
Officer compensation to reflect pay rates that are typi-
cal at Comparable Companies. Consistent with
NYNEX's pay-for-performance orientation, actual
compensation levels may lead or lag target rates, but
under the terms of the new compensation framework,
such variances depend on NYNEX's stock price
appreciation and demonstrated operating success.

The principal elements of the new compensation
program are a merit-driven base salary; a single,
value creation based, variable compensation opportu-
nity; and stock optiens. In addition, NYNEX has
terminated its supplemental executive defined
benefit pension plan and replaced it with a defined
contribution plan in which one-half of all annual
contributions to an Executive Cfficer’s account must
be invested in shares of NYNEX Common Stock.

Dwuring 1994, the compensation consulting firm pre-
vided the Committee with survey information
comparing NYNEX's Executive Officer compensation
to median 1994 executive compensation at
Comparable Companies. This data indicated that
NYNEX Executive Officers' salaries paid in 1994 and
total compensation were approximately at the median

paid by Comparable Companies, The Committee has
used this comparison to assist it in setting 1995 salary
levels, variable compensation award target levels, and
stock option grants.

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the “Code”) generally denies a tax deduction to any
publicly-held corporation for compensation that
exceeds $1 million paid to any proxy-named execu-
tive in a taxable year, subject to an exception for
“performance-based compensation” as defined in the
Code and subject to certain transition provisions.
Base salaries paid to such NYNEX Executive Officers
for 1995 will continue to be tax-deductible since no
such amount will exceed the $1 million limit.
Compensation for such NYNEX Executive Officers
for 1995 received under the variable compensation
plan also should qualify for the “performance-based
compensation”’ exception since the Share Owner-
approved terms of the Executive Officer Short Term
Tncentive Plan comply with the stipulated require-
ments of Section 162{m) governing the tax
deductibility of such income. Gains on the exercise
of non-qualified stock options granted through
December 31, 1995 should be fully deductible since
the Share Owner approved terms of the 1995 Stock
Option Plan also comply with the stipulated require-
ments of Section 162(m). Notwithstanding the
Committee's belief that Executive Officer compensa-
tion will be fully deductible, the Committee reserves
the right to pay compensation that is not tax-
deductible if it is determined to be in the best
interests of NYNEX and its Share Owners,

Salary. In 1995, the Committee changed its policy
of annual salary reviews to one of considering the
salary level of each Executive Officer once every 18
months. The longer intervals between salary actions
allow the Committee to assess more accurately the
contributions of each Executive Officer and to make
salary decisions accordingly.

NYNEX's executive compensation policy is to estab-
lish new Executive Officer salaries at levels that
reflect the median salaries paid by Comparable
Companies. In determining salary levels paid by
Comparable Companies, NYNEX reviews a number
of executive compensation surveys conducted by var-
ious consulting firms which include information
regarding salaries paid by the companies shown in
the Share Owner Return Performance Graph con-
tained in this proxy statement.

Salaries for experienced Executive Officers are
expected to vary from those of entry level Executive
Officers, reflecting the incumbent’s demonstrated
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contributions to NYNEX's goal achievement. In
assessing whether salary increases are warranted, the
Committee's ptincipal consideration is the Executive
Officer's performance on the job, including the
impact such Executive Officer has had on effecting
strategic change. The Committee also reviews any or
all of the following factors in assessing salary actions:

« Internal compensation equity;

+ Compensation practices for Comparable
Companies; and

¢ The Executive Officer’s level of responsibility,
experience, and expertise,

Executive Officer Short Term Incentive Plan. The
Committee believes that the new Executive Officer
Short Term Incentive Plan (“Short Term Plan™) is a
cornerstone in reinforcing NYNEX's pay-for-perfor-
mance philesophy. Beginning in 1995, awards from
this program represent the only cash-based incentive
compensation opportunity available to Executive
Officers. The Short Term Plan is characterized by its
method of solely rewarding accomplishments that
create value for all NYNEX Share Owners.

The Short Term Plan provides Executive Officers
with the opportunity to earn incentive compensation
from two sources:

» Achievement of annual performance goals that
correlate with value creation; and

+« NYNEX’s Total Share Owner Return compared to
the returns generated by the Comparable Companies.

The sum of the awards earned relative to these
accomplishments comprises an Executive Officer’s
overall incentive compensation reward. Payment of
one-half of the incentive award is mandatorily
deferred, and deferred account balances are credited
with interest each year at a rate equal to NYNEX's
annualized Total Share Owner Return over the pre-
ceding three-year period. One-half of an Executive
Officer’s deferred account balance is distributed after
the end of each year; the remaining deferred account
balance carries over to future years. The account
balance is paid out in full enly upon the Executive
Officer’s retirement or other termination from service.

Annual Performance Goals. Each year, the Committee
reviews management's suggestions and recommends
for Board of Directors’ (“Board”} approval perfor-
mance goals, the achievernent of which will enhance
NYNEX's value. The Clommittee also reviews and
recommends to the Board maximum levels of perfor-
mance for determining the ultimate payment of

awards, For this purpose, maximum means the level
of performance above which no incremental incentive
awards will be paid. Achievement of the maximoum
performance level results in an award that is equal to
one-half of the maximum possible incentive compen-
sation payment.

For Executive Officers in 1995, the approved goals
were exclusively financial and related to pre-estab-
lished levels of NYNEX Net Income and Cash Tlow
Return on Investment. The Committee also recom-
mended, and the Board approved, Service Quality
standards at each organization level, the achievement
of which were intended to medify incentive award
levels for every Executive Officer. In 1995, there
were na other factors the Committee considered in
determining Executive Officer incentive compensa-
tion awards.

Total Share Ouner Return. Executive Officers also
earn incentive awards based on NYNEX's Total
Return to Share Owners (stock price growth and div-
idends paid over the previous twelve-month period)
compared to the returns generated by the six other
Regional Holding Companies. Top relative ranking
by NYNEX yields awards equal in size to one-half of
the maximum incentive payment permuissible for the
Executive Officer under the plan. Lower NYNEX
rankings generate proportionally smaller awards.

The levels of incentive compensation earned by the
proxy-narned executives for the 1995 fiscal year are
reflected in the “Bonus” column of the Summary
Compensation Table contained in this proxy state-
ment. For the 1995 performance year, the Committee
determined that the Corporate Net Income goal had
been achieved, the Cash Flow Return on Investment
had been achieved, and taking into account perfor-
mance against Service Quality imperatives, the
Committee awarded Executive Officers 41% of their
maximum incentive awards. The Committee also
determined that NYNEX's Total Share Owner Return
for the year placed it fourth relative to the
Comparable Companies and, therefore, awarded 25%
of the maximum incentive award for this factor for a
total award of 66% of the maximum award payable
to Executive Officers. Cne-half of these awards were
automatically deferred in accordance with the terms

of the Short Term Plan.

Senior Management Long Term Incentive Plan.
No grants were made under this plan in 1995, and
no future grants are planned; however, the payout of
the 1992-1995 performance period is reflected in the
Summary Compensation Table. In addition, any pay-
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outs for the 1993-1996 and the 1994-1997 performance
periods will be contained in future proxy statements
as these performance periods are completed.

Each year, the Committee recommends te the Board
for approval grants of long term incentive awards to
Executive Officers. The Committee establishes a max-
imum award based on an assessment of the average
long term award levels at Comparable Companies.
Long term incentive opportunities reinforce NYNEX's
policy of requiring stock ownership by Executive
Officers in support of building Share Owner value.
Plan participants have the opportunity to earn incen-
tive compensation over a four-year performance period
based on two factors, each accorded equal weight:

¢ Return to Share Owners
« Corporate achievement of strategic objectives

Return ta Share Owners, Payment of one-half of the
maximum award is determined by reference to
NYNEX’s Total Return to Share Owners (stock price
growth and dividends paid over a four-year period)
as compared with the returns generated by the six
other Regional Holding Companies. A top relative
ranking of NYNEX yields awards equal in size to
one-half of the maximum long term incentive awards
payable under this plan. Lower rankings of NYNEX
generate proportionally smaller awards.

Strategic Objectives. Payment of the remaining one-
half of the maximum award reflects the Committee's
assessment of management’s effectiveness during the
four-year period in positioning NYNEX for future suc-
cess. In conducting its assessment, the Committee
considers: regulatory and legislative progress, business
growth and focus, customer service and quality, and
employee-related issues, each accorded approximately
equal weight. The Committee can recommend to the
Board for its approval payment of up to one-half of
the maximum long term incentive award payable
under this plan for strategic accomplishments.

Awards are paid at the completion of each perfor-
mance period in a combination of cash and shares of
NYNEX stock. Participants may elect the extent to
which they are paid in stock. However, to encourage
stock ownership among Executive Officers, a mini-
mum of one-half of the value of the award must be
paid in NYNEX stock.

For the 1992-1995 performance period, the
Committee determined that NYNEX's Total Return
to Share Owners over the period relative to the other
six Regional Holding Companies was below the tar-
get level and, therefore, awarded 16.7% of the

maximum long term incentive award for this factor.
The Committee also determined that there was signi-
ficant progress in implementing NYNEX's strategic
objectives and that the target objective level had been
exceeded and, therefore, awarded to Executive
Officers a payout of 50% of the maximum long term
award for this factor, for a total payout of 66.7% of
the maximum award payable to Executive Officers.

Stock Option Plan, Each year, the Committee rec-
ommends to the Board for approval grants of stock
options to Executive Officers. Stock options provide
Executive Officers with the opportunity to acquire an
equity interest in NYNEX and to participate in the
creation of Share Owner value as reflected in growth
in the price of NYNEX Common Stock. Under the
terms of the plan, the aption exercise price is equal
to 100% of the fair market value of NYNEX
Common Stock on the date of option grant, thereby
ensuring that plan participants will derive benefits
only as Share Owners realize corresponding gains. To
ensure a long term perspective, options have a ten-
year term and become exercisable at the cumulative
rate of one-third per year for the first three vears.

The number of options the Committee may grant in
a plan year to the Chief Executive Officer and other
proxy-named Executive Officers is limited by the
plan, in each case, to 250,000 options. The actual
number of options granted is based upon competitive
compensation practices, as reflected in the surveys

of Comparable Companies as prepared by the con-
sulting firm and the individual Executive Officer’s
performance as compared to the performance of the
other Executive Officers.

The Committee believes that the practice of granting
stock options annually reinforces NYNEX's policy of
requiring stock ownership by Executive Officers.
Furthermore, options only provide value to Execu-
tive Officers when Share Owners realize positive
returns on their investment in NYNEX. In this way,
stock option grants rewatd Executive Officers only in
conjunction with value creation for Share Owners.

Restricted Stock Award Plan. The Committee also
administers the Restricted Stock Award Plan and
determines the key employees to whom Restricted
Stock awards will be granted, the number of shares
of NYNEX Common Stock with respect to which
Restricted Stock awards will be made, the applicable
restriction periods and any other terms and condi-
tions of each award. The purpose of the plan is to
attract and retain selected individuals of exceptional
skill. The grant criteria reflect the Committee’s
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assessment of the requirements for hiring and
retaining the particular individual. Restricted Stock
awards were granted in 1995 to certain newly
appointed NYNEX Officers, but none to the proxy-
named Executive Officers.

Rationale for Chief Executive Officer (*CEO")
Compensation in Last Fiscal Year

Salary. The CEQ's salary is based solely upon com-
petitive campensation practices. Mr, Seidenberg was
named President and CEQ of NYNEX on January 1,
1995. On January 1, 1995, his annual salary rate
was increased to $640,000 to give recognition to his
new position and to bring it more in line with com-
pensation of other CEOs in Comparable Companies.

Short Term Incentive Compensation. Mr. Seidenberg’s
variable incentive award for 1995 reflected NYNEX's
financial performance discussed above. In accor-
dance with the terms of the plan, the Committee
recommended to the Board that it approve an award
for Mr. Seidenberg equal to 66% of his maximum
possible award.

Long Term Incentive Compensation. Mr. Seidenbergs
available long term incentive awards are also a func-
tion of salary and are based on compensation practices
for similar jobs in Comparable Companies. As dis-
cussed above under the heading Senior Management
Long Term Incentive Plan, Return to Share Owners
and strategic objectives are each accorded equal
weight in determining long term incentive compen-
sation. In 1996, the Committee recommended to the
Board a long term award for the 1592-1995 perfor-
mance period under the Senior Management Long
Term Incentive Plan. Tt was the Committee’s
assessment that there was significant progress in
implementing NYNEX's strategic objectives. The
Committee believes that such strategic accomplish-
ment should serve as a platform for future business
success and resultant appreciation of Share Qwners’
investmnent over the long term. The Committee also
considered Total Return to Share Qwners, which
was below the target level over the period relative to
the other six Regional Holding Companies.

Stock Options. In January 1995, the Committee
awarded Mr. Seidenberg options to purchase 105,727
shares of NYNEX Common Stock at a price of
$36.32 per share, which was the fair market value at
that time. The number of options granted reflected
the Committee's assessment of competitive compen-
sation practices and Mr. Seidenberg’s individual
contribution toward the achievement of NYNEX's
strategic objectives.

Summary

The Committee is respansible for reviewing,
monitoring and approving for presentation to the
non-employee Directors of the Board, for their
approval, all compensation decisions affecting
NYNEX Executive Officers. The Committee endeav-
ors to ensure that the entire remuneration paid to
Executive Officers is consistent with NYNEX's inter-
est in providing market competitive compensation
opportunities, reflective of its pay-for-performance
philosophy, and supportive of its business mission.
We will continue to actively monitor the effective-
ness of NYNEX's executive compensation plans and
assess the appropriateness of executive pay levels to
assure prudent use of NYNEX's resources.

John R. Stafford, Richard L. Carrion
Chairperson

Lodewijk ].R. de Vink  Helene L. Kaplan

Compensation Committee Interlocks
and Insider Participation

M. Ivan Seidenberg, Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive QOfficer of NYNEX, is a Director of
Melville Corporation and serves as a member of its
Compensation Committee. Mr. Stanley (Goldstein,
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of Melville Corporation, serves on the NYNEX
Board of Directors but does not serve on NYNEX's
Committee on Benefits.
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The following table shows, for the fiscal years ending December 31, 1993, 1994, and 1995, the cash compensa-
tion, as well as certain other compensation, paid or accrued to the named Executive Officers by NYNEX and its

subsidiaries.
~ Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation
Avwards Payouts
Restricted
Stock Becuritiea  L.ong Term All Other
Marme and Principal Position{1) Awards  Underlying  Incentive  Compen-
at Decernber 31, 1995 Year Salary($)  Donus($2)  Other(S)(3) 1$34) Options(#)  Payouts($) sation(§i(5}
Tvan (. Seidenberg 1995 640,000 844,800 50,613 0 105727 288,480 369552
Chairman of the Board and 1994 540,000 189,000 62,598 380,520 40,248 231,312 26,371
Chief Executive Officer 1093 474,000 222,000 46,267 0 38,892 37,170 20,052
Frederic V. Salerno 1995 530,000 699,600 48,332 O R7555 289,438 305330
Vice Chairman of the Board - 1994 491,000 278,000 64,636 3B0,520 40,248 233,478 26,967
Finance and Business Development 1993 474,000 313,500 47,459 0 38862 57,320 20,661
Richard A. Jalkut 1995 500,000 620,000 47,090 0 82599 334561 276,393
President and Group Executive — 1994 464,000 153,000 58,888 359,520 37,302 215353 24566
NYNEX Telecommunications 1993 416,000 208,500 45,262 0 18018 36,746 19,960
Alan Z. Senter 1995 411,000 396,000 49,747 0 60,573 0 222,108
Executive Vice President and 1994 133,000 100,000 11,183 600,000 56,000 0 1,500
Chief Financial Officer 1993
Donald B. Reed 1995 370,000 429,600 29,028 G 55,011 152,344 195,783
President and Group Executive — 1994 341,000 194,000 32,599 272,500 27,420 99,647 18,353
External Affairs & Communications 1993 293,000 139,500 23514 0 8,180 249832 13,815
William C. Ferguson 1995 200,000 264,000 156,137 0 132,158 625971 13,103
Retired Chairman of the Board 1994 B00,000 885,000 210,194 0 87126 511,351 32,751
and Chief Executive Officer 1993 773,000 526,000 103,446 0 34,180 120,605 31,671

(1) Mir, Seilenberg was electeck Chief Exerutive Otheer, effective January 1, Y995, und 1o the additional ulfice of Chuirman of the Board, effective April 1, 1995,

M. Ferguson retired as Chainnan of the Board, effective April 1, 1945, M. Senter joined NYNEX on September 1, 1994,

(2} As deseribed in the Commimee on Benefits Report on Executive Compensation, effective Tanuary 1, 14493, ane half of the Short Tenn Incentive award is
Inandawrlll}' d@r(:’l']'ed undn’.r 1}!(3 SQ_’[li[IT M:magmﬂnemt AL.‘['.UUD[ Balan(‘.u r)cfurrzil pl:m; h(:we\'er, tht‘ arount Sh[]“'l] Eihl}\'e Ill'lC]ud(.‘.S &IE dt_‘.rf_'rrﬂj.

13) These amounts include dividend equivalents paid pursuant to the Senior Blanagemenst Lanyg Term Incentive Plan: dividends pursuant to the 1087 Restrinted Stock

Avward Plan; amnounts renmbursed for the puyment of taxes in connection with personal benefits; and, in the tase of Mr. Fermuson anly, perquisites and other per-
sonal benefits of which $18,730 was fur nancial counselling snd 524,014 or the personul use ol the corpurate aircrali,

{(4) On Devember 29, 1993, the number and value of all outstanding grants of resiricted NYNEX Shares held by naned Executive Officers were as follows: Mr.

Seidenberg 10,535/$557,120: Mr. Salerno 104,535/$557.126: Mr. Julkut 4,954/$326,380; Mr. Senter 15,609/$825,404 and Ms. Reed 7,543/$399,(602. Except in
the case of Mr. Senter, these figures include dividends that have been retovested in additional restricted NYNEX Shares, These NYNEX Shares were awarded pursuant

to the Executive Hetention Agreernents, effective January 3, 1994, and for Mesws. Sulerno and Senter, emplovment sgreminents effective August 1, 1994 und

September 1, 1994, resprctively, Theidends are paid un Mr. Sentin’s restricted NYNEX Shares and are inclucled in the Other Annual Cnmpensation column for 1995

(3] These amounts include company contibutions to tax qualified and non-qualified savings plans; company contributions 1 Executive Relirernent Accounts
(described under the beading Retiremaent Plans on page 70 of the proxy statement); plus the value of premiums paid by NYNEX for split-dollar life msurance cover-

age. The company contributions ta the tax qualified savings plan for Messs. Seidenberg. Salerno, Jalkut, Senter, Reed and Ferguson were: $7,793, $6,750, $6,750,

$9.923, $6,750. and $6.750, respectively. The company contributions to the Non-Cualifed Savings Plan fur Messes, Seidenberg, Salerna, Jalkue, Senter, Reed and
Fergusun were: $19,654, $15,243, $15.596, $10,474, $8.831 and 52,000, respertively. Company contributions to the Excewrive Retirartent Aceount fir Messts.
Seidenberg, Salerno. Jalkut, Senter and Reed were $333,700, S209,900, $242,500, $201,713 and $176,285, respectively. The amount of the dollar benefir for
1893 projected on an actuarial basis which represents the excess ol the ancunt needed Lo fund the death benefit under the splic-dollar life insurance policy for

Messrs, Sexlenherg, Balerno, Jalkur, Beed and Ferguson were: $8,406, $13.433, $11,547, $7.917 and $4,333, respecdvely.
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|Aggregated Option Exercises in Fiscal Year 1995 and 1995 FY-End Option Values

The following table shows information with respect to the named Executive Officers concerning the exercise of
options to purchase Shares of NYNEX Common Stock during 1995 and unexercised stock options held as of the
end of 1995.

Number of Hecurities Yilue of Unexercised
Underlying Unexereised In-the-Money
Options at 1995 Oiptions at 1995
Fiscal Year-Fnd _ Fiscal Year-End($)(1)
Shares Acquired Value
Name of Individual on Exercise Realized(3} __ Execrcisahle  Unexercisable Exercisuble Unexercisable
Ivan G, Seidenberg 4,730 50,208 103,108 145,523 1,480,713 2,232,147
Frederic V. Salerno 0 0 122,224 127,351 1,761,415 1,931,219
Richard A, Jalkut 12,286 87,649 92,455 121,706 1,300,393 1,831,702
Alan Z. Senter 0 0 18,667 97,906 269,551 1,542,178
Denald B. Reed 0 ] 50,858 78,751 626,873 1,204,423
William C. Ferguson 0 0 278,836 218,302 4,081,505 3,230,401

(1] Amounts reflect potential gains on outstancling aptions besed upun the Decermber 29, 1995 aversge NYNEX Commeon Stock price of $32.886,

|Option Grants in Fiscal Year 1995

The following table contains information concerning the grant of aptions under the NYNEX 1995 Stock Option
Plan to the named Executive Officers during 1995,

Number of % of Total

Securities Options

Underlying Granted to Exercise or CGirant Date

Options Granted Ermployees Rase Price Expiration Present

Warne of Tndividual ) {#)11) in1995 _ {$/Share}(d) Liate{3} Value(3)(4)
Ivan . Seidenberg 103,727 3.338 36.32 1/12/05 441,939
Frederic V. Salerno 87,555 2,764 36.32 1/12/05 365,980
Richard A. Jalkut 82,599 2.608 3632 1/12/05 345,264
Alan Z. Senter 60,573 1.913 36.32 1/12/05 253,195
Donald B. Reed 55,011 1.737 36.32 1/12/05 229,945
William C. Ferguson 132,158 4,173 36.32 3/30/00 552,420

{1} The date of grant for cptions subject to this footnmte is Jamuary 13, 1995,

{21 The exercise price of the optien is equal o the fair market vilue of NYKEX Common Stack on the daw of grant of the options. The exercise price muy be puid in
eash, or by tendering alreardy owned NYREX Shares with o fair market value on the date of exercise equal to the exercise price. For exercises where NYNEX Shares
have been tendered in payment of the exercise price. 4 new grant of ptions will be made equal 1 the number of Shares lendencd, A want made under these cir-
cumstznees will have an exerclge price equal to the fair market vilue on the date of such exercise and grant,

{3) Options expire ten yoars from dare of grant or in case of retrement, the fifth anniversary date of the cossation of emnplayment. Options become one-third exercisable
ome year after the date of grunt, two-thirds exercisable two years after the date of grant, and fuily exercisable three yoeurs uller the date of grant. To the extent not
already exercisable, the options became fully exereisable in the event of @ “change in control”, as defincd in the NYNEN 1995 Lung Term locentive Frogran,

(4] As permitted by SEC rules, the Black-Scholes nethud of vption valuation has been used to determine yrant date present value, The assumptions used in the Black-
Schales option valuation caleulation are: estimated tuture annual stock price volstiliey of 0,153, risk-frev rne of retarn 7.83%; and estionated future dividend yield of
6.50%. NVKEX does nat advocats or necessarily agee that the Black-8choles methed, ar any other method permitted by the SEC, can propetly determine the value
of en eption. However, no gain ta the uptionees is possihie without an increase in the stock price, which will henelit all Share Cwners. Thus, o zero increase or
decrease in stock price, compared to the exercise price, will not produce any gain for the oplionee,
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|Retirement Plans tribution plan. The annual company contribution to
. . . the defined contribution plan 1s determined as 25%

Durmg 19§5f:1 NZNbEX ;lermmatedl%;s Zupplep‘ient?l of base salary that exceeds $150,000, plus 25% of

executive defined benellt hon-quatied pension pian bonus. This amount is included in the All Other

and replaced it with a defined contribution plan. The
value of the pension accrued for years prior to 1995
under the supplemental defined benefit plan was
converted into a starting balance for the defined con-

Compensation column of the Summary Compen-
sation Table on page 68 of this proxy statement.

|Pension Table

This table provides the estimated annual benefits payable upon retirement under the NYNEX qualified pension
plan. Pensions are computed on a straight-life annuity basis and are not reduced for Social Security or other off-
set amounts except in cases where a joint or survivor annuity is selected. Participants receive a pension based
upon average compensation up to $150,000 multiplied by 1.6%. Average compensation is determined as five-
year average base pay for the period January 1, 1986 to December 31, 1990, times years of service on December
31, 1990, plus all future base pay. The Executive Officers named below receive a benefit under this table, plus
the annual credit under the defined contribution plan which has been included in the All Other Compensation
column of the Summary Compensation Table.

Years of Service

Average Compensation ) 15 0 25 0 35

$ 300,000 $36,000 $48,000 $60,000 $72,000 $84,000
400,000 36,000 48,000 60,000 72,000 84,000
500,000 36,000 48,000 60,000 72,000 84,000
600,000 36,004 48,000 60,000 72,000 84,000
700,000 36,000 48,000 60,000 72,000 84,000
800,000 36,000 48,000 60,000 72,000 84,000

Current Base Credited Years

Name of [ndividual o Compensation® ___of Service?
Ivan G. Seidenberg** $640,000 29
Frederic V. Salerno 530,000 30
Richard A. Jalkut 500,000 29
Alan Z. Senter** 411,000 1
Donald B. Reed 370,000 29

*oasuf 127317495

Alhough not currently somviee pension-cligible under the sge andZor servive requirements of the NYNEX pensian plans, the amouns shown fir Messrs, Seidenberg
andd Senrer are as if they were pension-uligible, [n addition, pensions ure suijeet to 4 reduetion for tetirement priur W age 60,

Mot Bengfits shoewn o <his table may e tirther Bmited uncler the litemal Reverue Gode of 1986, as amended.

Under the prior executive non-qualified pension plan, executives retiring during 1995 received an annual benefit
based upon average compensation multiplied by the number of years service, times 1.6%. Average compensation
was determined by adding the average of the five highest Short Term Incentive Plan awards received during the
last ten years of employment, plus the total of the last sixty full months of salary divided by five. Pensions may
not exceed 60% of the average compensation used in the pension formula. In connection with his retirement on
March 31, 1995, Mr. Ferguson elected and received a lump sum payment of $4,671,468 under the Senior
Management Non-Qualified Pension Plan. Mr. Ferguson also receives an annual pension of $268,747 from the
NYNEX Management Pension Plan.
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Employment Contracts,
Termination of Employment and
Change in Control Arrangements

On December 16, 1993, the Board of Directors
approved the NYNEX Executive Severance Pay Plan
(the “Severance Plan”) and the Executive Retention
Agreement {the “Agreement”) to be entered into
with certain NYNEX Executive Officers as well as
certain other Officers of NYNEX companies. The
purpose of the Severance Plan and the Agreement is
to enable NYNEX and its subsidiaries to remain
competitive in attracting and retaining the very best
executive talent. The Agreement provides the
Executive Officer with certain benefits, pursuant to
the Severance Plan, upon termination of employment
under specified conditions.

Certain NYNEX Executive Officers, including

Messrs. Seidenberg, [alkut and Reed but excluding
Messrs. Salerno and Senter, entered into an Agreement
with NYNEX, effective January 3, 1994, for a term of
employment to continue day to day. Mr. Balerno
entered into an employment agreement with NYNEX
on terms substantially similar to those in the
Agreement, but for a minimum term commencing
August 1, 1994 through December 31, 1996. A reten-
tion award consisting of a grant of restricted stock was
made to each such NYNEX Executive Officer at the
time of signing the Agreement. The value of the reten-
tion award equals 50% of the sum of the Executive
Officer’s 1994 annual salary and the standard award
granted under the NYNEX Senior Management Short
Term Incentive Plan for 1994 performance.

During the term of the Agreement, dividends on the
restricted stock will be reinvested in additional NYNEX
restricted stock. The retention award restrictions on the
restricted stock shall lapse at the time of termination of
employment only if the Executive Officer voluntarily
separates from employment with the consent of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of NYNEX (or,
in the case of Mr. Seidenberg, with the consent of the
Board of Directors); dies; or is terminated by NYNEX
without cause during the term of the Agreement. In
the case of all other terminations, the restricted stock
will be forfeited by the Executive Officer.

An Executive Officer who separates from active ser-
vice with the consent of the Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer (or, in the case of

Mr. Seidenberg, with the consent of the Board of
Directors) or is separated from active service pur-
suant to the terms of the NYNEX Force Management
Plan, and in either case signs a separation agreement
and release, or dies during the term of the
Agreement, shall be entitled to a severance payment.
The severance payment will be the value of the re-

stricted stock, including reinvested dividends, which
is designated as the retention award in the Executive
Officer's Agreement, plus an additional three times
salary as of July 1, 1996 for Mr. Seidenberg and two
times such salary for Messrs. Salerno, Jalkut and
Reed and certain other NYNEX Executive Officers
and one times such salary for certain other Officers of
NYNEX companies, plus interest accrued based upon
the earnings of the Global Balanced Fund investment
option of the NYNEX Corporation Savings Plan for
Salaried Employees. An Executive Officer will not
receive benefits or payment under the Severance Plan
if he or she is separated from active service for cause;
is separated from active service with an Employing
Company that is sold and the Employing Company
hires or offers employment within 60 days of the
Executive Officer’s separation from the Employing
Company; or if the Executive Officer has an emplay-
ment agreement other than the Agreement with the
Employing Company.

Mr. Senter entered into a three-year employment
agreement with NYNEX commencing September 1,
1994. The agreement provides for a sign-on bonus
of $600,000 in restricted NYNEX Shares which vest
at the rate of one-third per year, subject to certain
conditions. Under terms of the agreement, if NYNEX
terminates Mr. Senter's employment without cause
prior to the third anniversary of the commencement
of his employment, he will continue to receive
monthly payments equal to his base salary until the
end of the term of his agreement. In addition, Mr.
Senter is entitied to receive a severance payment
equal to two times his salary as of July 1, 1996, on
substantially the same terms and conditions as con-
tained in the Agreement described above.

NYNEX maintains various plans pursuant to which
NYNEX Executive Officers and certain other Officers
of NYNEX companies defer (on a voluntary and, in
certain cases, involuntary basis) the receipt of all or
part of certain specified compensation payments.
NYNEX also maintains certain non-qualified pension,
savings and retirement plans for such individuals.
Amounts credited to the accounts of such individuals
accrue earnings based upon vanous investment
options selected by such individuals. To safeguard
these benefits and other non-qualified benefits for
other Officers, NYNEX will establish a trust which
would become fully funded and irrevocable upon a
Change of Control. As defined in the trust, a
Change of Contral occurs if {a) any person (other
than a trustee or other fiduciary of securities held
under an employee benefit plan of NYNEX) becomes
the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the NYNEX
voting stock, (h) a tender offer 1s made and the
offerer owns or has accepted payment for 15% or
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more of the NYNEX voting stock, or (¢) during any Tn the event of a Change in Control (defined sub-
period of twenty-four consecutive months members stantially identical to “Change of Control” above),
of the Board at the beginning of such period, togeth- NYNEX's 1995 Long Term Incentive Program pro-
er with new Directors nominated or appointed vides that all stock options and stock appreciatiop
during that period by a vote of at least two-thirds of rights previously granted will become fully exercis-
such existing Directors {or of Directors whose elec- able, the restrictions on restricted stock prexlrmusly
tion or nomination for election was previously so granted will terminate, and performance units under
approved), cease to comprise a majority of the Board the Senior Management Long Term Incentive Plan
of Directors. The assets in the trust, however, will be immediately valued based on the highest fair

market value of NYNEX Common Stock during the
period beginning thirty days prior to and ending
thirty days after the Change in Control.

remain subject to the claims of NYNEX's general
creditors in the event of insolvency.

|Share Owner Return Performance Graph

The following line graph compares the yearly percent change in the cumulative Total Share Owner Return of
NYNEX Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the
Regional Holding Company peer group stock index for the period of five fiscal years (1991-1995).

Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Return®

~ $220
..200! -

180

- G

Dec. 31 90 M 92 93 94 35

# Agsumes $100 invested on Decernber 31, 1990 in NYNEX Cemmon $tock, Standard & Poor's 500 Index and Peer Group Index, with all dividends
reinvested: also assumes retention by Pacific Telesis Group stackholders of the AirTouch Communications stack spin-off, effective Apnl 1, 1994, and
conversion of U % WEST's eommen stock inte Communications Stock and Media Steck effective November 1, 1995,

NYNEX 1000 120.7 132.8 134.2 130.5 202.9
PEER's** 100.0 103.1 4.4 137.3 134.7 195.9
sap500  100.0 130.5 140.4 154.6 156.7 215.6

**Composite of § Regional Holding Companies: Ameritech Corporation, Bell Atlantic Corporation, Bell8outh Corporation,
Pacific T'elesis Group, 3BC Communicstions [ne, U & \\_«’EST. Tne.

|Other Information

As required by SEC rules, it is herein noted that in August 1995 four separate transactions in Shares of NYNEX
Common Stock by a retired NYNEX Executive Officer, Raymond F. Burke, were not timely reported.

Solicitation of proxies is being made by management through the mail, in person and by telephone and tele-
graph. NYNEX will be responsible for costs associated with this solicitation. NYNEX has retained Kissel-Blake
Inc., to aid in the solicitation of proxies at a cost of approximately $21,000, plus reimbursement of reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses.

By order of the Board of Directors,

MM 2& Welde

Morrison DeS. Webb
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary March 18, 1996
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Share Owner
Information

Corporate
Headquarters:

NYNEX Corporation

1095 Ave. of the Americas
New York, NY 10036
(2123 395-2121

1996 Annual Meeting:
NYNEX will hold its annual
meeting at the John
Hancoeck Hall in Boston,
Mass., on May 1, 1996, at
10:30 a.m.

Share Owner Services:
Let NYNEX Share Owner
Services help with your
account needs:

Dividend Reinvestment
and Stock Purchase Plan
(DRISPP): Provides you
with a convenient way to
increase your stock holdings
at a mintmal cost.

Direct Deposit of
Dividends: Deposit your
dividends via electronic
funds transfer to a desig-
nated account at your bank
or financial institution.

Qdd-Lot Sales Program:
Provides share owners own-
ing less than 100 shares with
a convenient way to sell
their NYNEX stock at a rea-
sonable cost.

Inguiries on these stock-
related matters, as well as
dividend payments, stock
transfers and requests for
Form 10-K reports for
NYNEX and its telephene
subsidiaries, should be
directed to NYNEX's trans-
fer agent and registrar, The
First National Bank of
Boston (“Bank of Boston™):

NYNEX Corporation
¢/o Bank of Boston
P.O. Box 9173

Boston, MA 02205-9175
1 (800) 358-1133

From outside the continen-
tal United States, call collect
on (617) 575-2407.
Hearing-impaired share
owners with access to a
Telecommunications Device
for the Deaf (TDD) may
dial 1 (800) 368-0328 toll
free for account information.

General Information:

If you have questions or
comments regarding
NYNEX, ar would like to
receive the NYNEX “1995
Profile and 3tatistics,” addi-
tional coples of the Annual
Report or the Annual
Report on audiocassette,
direct your requests to:

NYNEX Carporation
Share Cwner
Communications

16th Floor

1095 Ave. of the Americas
New York, NY 10036

Investor Relations:
Institutional investors,
financial analysts and port-
folio managers should direct
questions to:

Allen F. Pattee

Corporate Director
Investor Relations
NYNEX Corporation

1095 Ave. of the Americas
New York, NY 10036
(212) 730-635C

feonttnued on back cover)




Governmental Relations:
NYNEX Government
Affairs

Suite 400 West

1300 ] Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20005
(202) 336-7900

independent
Accountants:

Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.
1301 Awve. of the Americas
New York, NY 10019

Stock Exchange Listings:
Boston Stock Exchange
Chicago Stock Exchange
New York Stock Exchange
Pacific Stock Exchange
Philadelphia Stock
Exchange
Amsterdam Stock
Exchange
Basel Stock Exchange
Geneva Stock Exchange
The International Stock
Exchange, London
Zurich Stock Exchange

Ticker Symbol: NYN

NYNEX is fully committed to
equal employment oppor-
tunity for all employees and
applicants for employment,

Woe have a duty to ensure that
there is no untawful discrimi-
nation in recruitment, hiring,
termingtion, promoticns,
salary treatment or any other
condition of employment or
career develapment, and that
there is no harassment of any
employee on the basis of
race, color, religion, national
origin, sex, age, marital status,
sexual preference or orienta-
tion, disability, or status as a
special disabled veteran or
vetaran of the Vietnam era.

Dasign: Belk Mignogna Associates, New York

NYNEX Board
of Directors

John Brademas

Dr. Brademas is president
emeritus of New York
University, He has been a
NYNEX director since 1991
and serves on the Audit
Committee and the Public
Responsibility Commuttee.

Randolph W. Bromery
D, Bromery is president
of Springfield College and
cornmonwealth professor
emeritus of the University
of Massachusetts at
Amherst, and president of
Geoscience Engineering
Corpoeration. He has been a
NYNEX director since 1986
and serves on the Audit
Committee, Executive
Committee and Public
Responsibility Commuttee,

Richard L. Carrion

Mr. Carrion is chairman,
president and chief execu-
tive officer of BanPonce
Corporation. He has been a
NYNEX director since 1995
and is a member of the
Audit Committee and
Committee on Benefits.

Lodewijk J.R. de Vink
Mr. de Vink is president
and chief operating officer
of Warner-Lambert Com-
pany. A NYNEX director
since 1595, he is a member
of the Committee on
Benefits.

[ustration: Rosemary Webber

Stanley P. Goldstein

Mr. Goldstein is chairman
and chief executive officer
of Melville Corporation. He
was elected to the NYNEX
board in 1990 and serves on
the Audit Committee and
the Finance Committee.

Helene L. Kaplan

Mrs. Kaplan is of counsel to
Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom, a New
York City law firm, She was
elected to the NYNEX
board in 1990 and 1s a
member of the Committee
on Benefits and the Public
Responsibility Committee.

Elizabeth T. Kennan

Mrs. Kennan is president
emeritus of Mount Holyoke
College and has been a
NYNEX director since
1984 . She serves on the
Nominating and Board
Affairs Committee and
chairs the Audit
Committee,

Edward E. Phillips

Mr. Phillips is retired chatr-
man of New England
Mutual Life Insurance
Company. He has served on
the NYNEX board since
1983 and 15 a member of
the Executive Committee
and Finance Committee and
chairs the Nominating and
Board Affairs Committee.

Hugh B. Price

Mt Price is president and
chief executive officer of the
National Urban League.
Elected to the NYNEX
board 1n 1995, he is a
member of the Audit
Committee and the Public
Responsibility Committee.
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Frederic V. Salerno

Mr. Salerno is vice
chairman - Finance and
Business Development of
NYNEX. He has been a
NYNEX director since 1991
and serves on the Finance
Committee.

Ivan Seidenberg

Mr. Seidenberg is chairman
and chief executive officer
of NYNEX. He has been a
NYNEX director since 1991
and chairs the Executive
Committee.

Walter V. Shipley

Mr. Shipley is chairman
and chief executive officer
of Chemical Banking
Carporation. A NYNEX
board member since
1983, he serves on the
Executive Committee and
Nominating and Board
Affairs Committee and
chairs the Finance
Committee.

John R. Stafford

Mer. Stafford is chairman,
president and chief
executive officer of
American Home Products
Corpaoration. He has been
a NYNEX director since
1989, 1s a member of the
Finance Committee and
chairs the Committee

on Benefits.
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